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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

[xX] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 .

OR

[1 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Transition Period from to

Commission file number 000-24821

eBay Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaer)

Delaware 77-0430924
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification Number)

2065 Hamilton Avenue

San Jose, California 95125

(Address of principal (Zip Code)
executive offices)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code:
(408) 376-7400

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Securities Exchange Act of 1934:

Title of each class Name of exchange on which reqistered

Common stock The Nasdaq Global Select Market

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) tfie Securities Exchange Act of 1934:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 40%edBéturities Act.  Yes|[x] No[]

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Exchange Act. Yes
[1 Noi[x]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by SectiB or 15(d) of the Exchange Act during



the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter patiatithe registrant was required to file such reg)pand (2) has been subject to such
filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yds [No[]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lasmstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥&b site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted puntsio Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (8 232.405 of tthapter) during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the regigtwas required to submit and post such file&)es [x] No []




Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiilers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is aontained herein, and will not be

contained, to the best of the registrant's knowdedgdefinitive proxy or information statementsanporated by reference in Part 111 of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. sY&] No []

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @aocelerated filer or a smaller reporting

company. See the definitions of “large acceleréited” “accelerated filer,” and “smaller reportirgpmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act.

Large accelerated filer [x] Accelerated filer [
Non-accelerated filer [1 (Do notcheck if a staateporting company) Smaller reporting company [ ]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantstell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exge Act). Yes [] No [X]

As of June 30, 2014 , the aggregate market valtieeofegistrant's common stock held by non-affadf the registrant was
$56,598,125,397 based on the closing sale pricepasted on The Nasdaq Global Select Market.

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of e&tieaegistrant's classes of common stock, alefdatest practicable date.

Class Outstanding as of February 2, 2015
Common Stock, $0.001 par value per share 1,21(8A8&hares

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Part 11l incorporates information by reference frime definitive proxy statement for the registradthnual Meeting of Stockholders
expected to be held in April 2015.
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PART |

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwarddmg statements within the meaning of Section&thAe Securities Act of 1933
and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Ac®®4,lincluding statements that involve expectatiptens or intentions (such as those
relating to future business, future results of @iems or financial condition, new or planned fe@sior services, or management strategies,
including the proposed separation of PayPal fronaygBescribed below). You can identify these forWaaking statements by words such as
“may,” “will,” “would,” “should,” “could,” “expect, anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “intend,” “p lan” and other similar expressions.
These forward-looking statements involve risks @megertainties that could cause our actual resudtsliffer materially from those expressed or
implied in our forward-looking statements. Suckksisnd uncertainties include, among others, thaseudsed in “Item 1A: Risk Factors” of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K, as well as in oansolidated financial statements, related notesl, the other information appearing
elsewhere in this report and our other filings wiie Securities and Exchange Commission, or the 8ECdo not intend, and undertake no
obligation, to update any of our forward-lookingt&ments after the date of this report to reflezttial results or future events or
circumstances. Given these risks and uncertaintézgjers are cautioned not to place undue reliameeuch forward-looking statements.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

eBay Inc. was formed as a sole proprietorship jpt&aber 1995 and was incorporated in Californiay 1996. In April 1998, we
reincorporated in Delaware, and in September 188&,0ompleted the initial public offering of our coman stock. Our principal executive
offices are located at 2065 Hamilton Avenue, Sae JGalifornia 95125, and our telephone numbetd8) 376-7400. Unless otherwise
expressly stated or the context otherwise requiveen we refer to “we,” “our,” “us” or “eBay” in ik Annual Report on Form 10-K, we mean
the current Delaware corporation (eBay Inc.) andCialifornia predecessor, as well as all of itssodidated subsidiaries. When we refer to
“eBay.com,” we mean the online marketplace locatedww.ebay.cormand its localized counterparts. When we refer tayfal,” we mean the
online payments platform locatedvatvw.paypal.cormand its localized counterparts. When we refer totéprise,” we mean the ecommerce
and marketing solutions provided by eBay Enterpfizenerly GSI Commerce, which we acquired in J28&1. On January 21, 2015, we
announced that we will be exploring strategic aptifor eBay Enterprise, including a possible sal*©®.

We enable global commerce and payments on behalers, merchants, retailers and brands of al sidee technologies and services
we provide are designed to enable users and maschanldwide to organize and offer their inventéoy sale and buyers to find, buy and pay
for it virtually anytime and anywhere. We enablentoerce through three reportable segments: MarlagpldPayments and Enterprise. Driven
by the ubiquity of the Internet and the prolifeoatiof mobile devices, we believe that the way caomns engage with each other, brands and
services is fundamentally changing, blurring tined between offline retail and online ecommerce PBaleve that this trend has expanded our
addressable market in both the ecommerce and paginelustries. We measure our footprint in thisradgable market using a metric that we
call “Enabled Commerce Volume." Enabled Commerciuie, or ECV, consists of the total commerce andmnt volume that runs through
our platforms and which we enable on behalf ofusers, merchants, retailers and brands. We definéds the total commerce and payment
volume across all three of our business segmentsisting of Marketplaces GMV, PayPal Merchant SmsiNet TPV and eBay Enterprise
Gross Merchandise Sales not earned on eBay offgraith PayPal or PayPal Credit (formerly Bill Mater) during the period; it excludes
volume transacted through the Magento platform.tBeelefinitions of “GMV,” “Merchant Services NePV” and “Gross Merchandise Sales”
in our Marketplaces, Payments and Enterprise dssous, respectively, below.

Our primary focus is on our customers. Our comgamnly successful when the users and merchantnaiele are successful. Whether
online, through the mobile channel or in the phgisigorld, we are primarily a transaction-based bess that generates revenue from the
transactions and payments that we successfullyl@nake also generate revenue through marketingcgesclassifieds and advertising. In
addition, we have created an open source platfbangrovides software developers and merchantsadoeur applications programming
interfaces, or APIs, to develop software and sohgifor commerce. As of December 31, 2014 , ourkBtptaces segment had more than 155
million active buyers and more than 800 milliortifigs globally, while our Payments segment hadmélon active registered accounts. See
the definitions of "active buyer" and “active regi®d accounts” in our Marketplaces and Paymestaudsions, respectively, below.

For additional financial information about our refadle segments as well as the geographic areagwleeconduct business, please set
"Note 5 - Segments" to the consolidated finand&tesnents included in this Annual Report on ForrKl@dditionally, please see the
information in "ltem 1A: Risk Factors" under theptian "Our international operations are subject
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to increased risks, which may harm our businessiatimg results, and financial condition,” whictsdébes risks associated with the foreign
operations of our reportable segments.

Proposed Separation of PayPal from eBay

On September 30, 2014, we announced that our Bddddectors, following a strategic review of ouogth strategies and structure,
has approved a plan to separate PayPal (consitimgr Payments segment) into an independent guliieded company. We expect to
complete the transaction as a tax-free spin-affiéensecond half of 2015, subject to market, reguatand certain other conditions. We also
announced that Dan Schulman has been appointe@siséht of PayPal and CEO-designee of the stanedtayPal company following
separation, and that Devin Wenig, currently Predidé eBay Marketplaces, will become CEO of eBdlofeing separation. Please see the
information in "Item 1A: Risk Factors" under theddéng "Risk Factors Related to the Planned Separativhich describes some of the risks
and uncertainties associated with the proposed atma

Marketplaces

Our Marketplaces segment includes our core glotxanenerce platform, ebay.com; other localized sitesind the world such as
eBay.de and eBay.co.uk; related commerce platfomkiding our vertical shopping websites, suclsagHub, and our classifieds websites,
such as Marktplaats.nl and mobile.de; and our aidireg services business. We have made investnaadtsicquisitions to help enable
commerce on our platforms for consumers and metshaarine, on mobile devices and in the physicallhdur objective is to bring the
world’s inventory to the world’s buyers.

We had more than 155 million active buyers as afdbeber 31, 2014 . The term “active buyer” meansfasy date, all buyers
(including buyers of Half.com, StubHub, GittiGidiyand our Korean subsidiary) who successfully daséransaction on our Marketplaces
platforms within the previous 12-month period. Bigymay register more than once, and as a reswthange more than one account.

Our Marketplaces platforms offer the following features:
We are a leading commerce platform for users andrafants.

Our business model and pricing is designed sodilialMarketplaces business is successful when otehraets are successful. The
majority of our Marketplaces revenue comes frorake trate on the Gross Merchandise Volume, or GMWamsactions closed on our
Marketplaces trading platforms. In 2014 , we geteet$82.95 billion in GMV. We define GMV as theabtalue of all successfully closed
transactions between users on Marketplaces plagf@enxcluding eBay's classifieds websites, bran@sds and Shopping.com) during the
applicable period, regardless of whether the bayerseller actually consummated the transactiocludrs vehicles and real estate gross
merchandise volume.

Our eBay Top Rated Seller program, or eTRS, rewquadifying sellers with fee discounts and improsegrch standing for qualifying
listings if they are able to maintain excellenttoaser service ratings and meet specified criterisshipping and returns. We believe that se
who fulfill these standards help promote our gdahaintaining an online marketplace that is safé laassleree. eTRS is currently available
the U.S., the U.K., Germany and Australia.

eBay Money Back Guarantee covers items purchasediowebsites in the U.S., the U.K., Germany, Aalgirand Canada through a
qualifying payment method and protects most buwétts respect to items that are not received oreceived but not as described in the list
Some purchases, including most vehicles, are nared. eBay Money Back Guarantee provides coveragle purchase price of the item,
plus original shipping costs, for a limited perioictime from the original date of transaction, ancludes a streamlined interface to help buyer
and sellers navigate the process.

The size and scale of our Marketplaces platforradasigned to enable our users and merchantserafgs our economies of scale and
capital investment, for example in sales and margemobile, customer acquisition and customeriserv

We provide a variety of access points for consumtershop virtually anytime, anywhere.

Our Marketplaces platforms are accessible throughditional online experience (e.g., an Intermatreected computer), from mobile
devices (e.g., smartphones and tablets), anditait@dl extent, via screens in the physical world(ededicated terminals located within retalil
stores). We offer downloadable, easy-to-use mamfgications for the iPhone, the iPad, Android #iddows mobile devices that allow
access to eBay.com and some of our other websitegattical




shopping experiences, including StubHub, Fashiootoké and Half.com. In 2014, over $27 billion inlole commerce volume was transactec
across our platforms, representing an increaseooé tihan 40% compared to 2013.

We provide a large selection of inventory globally.

We had over 800 million items listed for sale aPetember 31, 2014 , which we believe makes usbtiee world’s largest online
marketplaces. For 2014, approximately 61% of ouAGMNas international (i.e., outside the U.S.).

We strive to provide value to consumers.

We believe that we have some of the lowest privgadable for a number of consumer products. InWh®., the U.K. and Germany over
56% of successfully closed transactions included #hipping during 2014. We have developed a nuwitfeatures on our Marketplaces
platforms in the areas of trust and safety (ineigddur Feedback Forum, SafeHarbor Program, VerRigghts Owner Program, eTRS and el
Money Back Guarantee), customer support and valdeditools and services, as well as loyalty progréior both buyers and sellers). These
features are designed to make users more comferti@aling with unknown partners and completinggeastions online or through mobile
devices, as well as rewarding our top buyers ahersdor their loyalty.

We offer consumers choice.
We offer choice to consumers across a number ofsmons:

» By listing format: Merchants and individuals camose to list their products and services thrdugid price listings or an auction-
style format on our core Marketplaces platform.

o Our fixed price format on eBay.com allows buyansl sellers to close transactions at a pre-detedprice set by the
seller. Sellers are also able to signal that theyld/be willing to close the transaction at a loywdce through the Best
Offer feature.

o Our auctionstyle format allows a seller to select a minimuricgfor opening bid

o Our classifieds websites have listings in ov&0Q,cities around the world and are designed to pebple list their
products and services generally for free and thamtetat a local level. Our classifieds websitetuhe alaMaula, BilBase!

2ememain.be, LoQUo, Marktplaats.nl and mobile.de.

» By item condition: Merchants and sellers cat) sd consumers can search for and buy, itemsatbkatew, refurbished and used,
common and rare items and branded and unbrandddgisoon our core Marketplaces platform.

e By delivery format: Consumers can have itempshi to them through shipping options offered keydéller and selected by the
buyer on our core Marketplaces platform. For carii@ms purchased from certain retailers, consumeanspick up items they
purchased online or through mobile devices in dritberetailer’s physical stores (which we refeatoin store pickup). This brings
more choice for buyers and sellers around deligest and convenience.

We offer a variety of specialized vertical expenes.

We continue to focus on customizing our buying selling experiences to make it easier for uselistafind and buy items by offering
formats dedicated to specific products or categof@n our core eBay.com websites, we have builtiafieed experiences for certain vertical
formats, such as Daily Deals, Fashion, Motors @©eki parts and accessories) and Electronics. @ily Deals vertical offers a variety of
products in multiple categories at discounted prigéh free shipping. StubHub is a leading marlkatplfor event tickets, enabling fans to buy
and sell tickets to a large selection of sporteceat, theater and other live entertainment events.

Payments

Our Payments segment includes our core paymentsl lfrayPal, which enables individuals and busingsssscurely, easily and
quickly send and receive payments online and thr@ugroad range of mobile devices in approxima2ély markets worldwide and in 26
currencies as of December 31, 2014 . The majofipuo Payments revenue comes from a take rateeoN¢h TPV that we enable. In 201de
generated $227.9 billion in Net TPV. In 2014, wegmted $59.6 billion in On
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eBay Net TPV attributable to transactions on eBaykdtplaces, which represented 26% of our Net TW¥ define Net TPV as the total dol
volume of payments, net of payment reversals, ssfakly completed through our payments networkduiging PayPal Credit, Venmo and
payments processed through Braintree’s full stagkents platform during the period,; it excludesrpagts sent or received through PayPal's
and Braintree's payment gateway businesses. Weed@fi eBay Net TPV as the total dollar volume gfpants, net of payment reversals,
successfully completed through our payments netsyankluding PayPal Credit, during the period fansactions on our Marketplaces
platforms. We define Merchant Services Net TPVhastotal dollar volume of payments, net of paymenersals, successfully completed
through our payments networks, including PayPatlitr¥enmo and payments processed through Braistfak stack payments platform
during the period; it excludes PayPal's and Brekis payment gateway businesses and paymentarisattions on our Marketplaces
platforms.

Our objective for the Payments segment is to enadiisumers and merchants to pay and get paid MWriuaywhere, anytime and on ¢
Internet connected device, whether they are owliria the physical world. We believe that simplifgiand integrating payments can provide
value to consumers and drive incremental salesdomerchant partners. The PayPal digital walleégipeople a fast, safe and convenient we
to receive, send or spend their money. Our paymetiorks are designed to be simple, safe and saagrare built upon the existing global
financial infrastructure to create global, realgipayment solutions. PayPal connects with finane#ltutions around the world, and allows
consumers to make purchases using a broad ramg/wient methods, regardless of where a sellecéddd. Users of our PayPal payments
solutions can engage in cross-border shopping,iwtaa help merchants to increase sales volumedwyiaf them to sell to a global base of
consumers, who can make payments in a wide rangerancies.

We had 162 million active registered accounts eBexfember 31, 2014 . The term “active registeret@aats” means, as of a given date
all registered accounts that successfully sene¢ceived at least one payment or payment revensaigh our PayPal payments networks,
including PayPal Credit, within the last 12 mondimgl which are currently able to transact. Users n@asg more than one account with PayPal
or PayPal Credit and therefore the number of actigéstered accounts may be greater than the nuafilbederlying users.

Our Payments platforms offer the following features
We enable payments in the online and physical werld

PayPal started as a payment solution for onlinestaetions between consumers and merchants througdiional online experience
(i.e., an Internet-connected computer). As a resfubieing simple and secure for consumers, we \eeligat PayPal can help merchants to
increase conversion of online traffic to sales.ohfine merchant can typically open a standard Plaggtaunt and begin accepting payments
through PayPal within a few minutes. Most onlingmmbile merchants are approved instantly. Procgssitine with PayPal does not require a
merchant to invest in new or specialized hardwagPal's technology platform supports growth witlagety of value-added services. This is
designed to help businesses of all sizes managectsh flow, invoice clients and pay bills, and¢duce the need for merchants to receive ar
store sensitive customer financial information,l#img Payment Card Industry, or PCI, compliant s&etions. PayPal does not charge
merchants any setup fees and offers a standaridaevith no recurring monthly fees.

With the growth of Internet-enabled mobile devideayPal is a popular form of payment for mobile omerce. In December 2013, we
completed our acquisition of Braintree to helprsgtten our position in mobile payments and extamdcoverage to a new class of retailers
who offer their services primarily through mobileps. As part of that acquisition, we also acquWedmo, which offers an application to m¢
money between friends and family using their modéeice. In 2014, PayPal's Net TPV for transactiosing mobile devices exceeded $45
billion, of which approximately 44% was from eBayaMetplaces. PayPal also offers PayPal Here, alenpayment processing solution for
small businesses in the United States, Canad&lrilied Kingdom, Australia, Hong Kong and Japan.

Our global reach and scale provides value for consers and merchants.

With 162 million active registered accounts as eEBmber 31, 2014 , PayPal provides merchants wWittga base of potential
customers. As a result of being available in apipmakely 203 markets and in 26 currencies as of bee 31, 2014 , PayPal also provides
merchants with global reach and reduces some afdimplexity and friction involved in overseas amdss-border trade. For the year ended
December 31, 2014 , approximately 49% of PayPa#sTPV was international. Our U.S. merchants ase able to offer consumer credit to
U.S. consumers at the point of sale through ouPBbgredit service.




We offer consumers choice by providing a varietyfofiding mechanisms.

Consumers can typically fund their PayPal accoimésvariety of ways, including by credit card, defard, electronic funds transfers
from their bank account and through a PayPal addmaiance if the consumer has previously receismanents through PayPal or chosen to
pre-fund their PayPal account. We refer to thecalion of funding sources used by PayPal consuageosir “funding mix.”

We also provide credit products through our PayRadit service. Currently, when a consumer fungarahase using PayPal Cred|
chartered financial institution extends creditiie tonsumer, funds the extension of credit at tiet pf sale and advances funds to the
merchant. PayPal Credit is neither a charteredhiilgh institution nor is it licensed to make loansany state. Accordingly, PayPal Credit must
rely on a bank or other licensed lender to isseditproducts and extend credit to customers. Altinothe chartered financial institution
continues to own each of the customer accountsulvsequently purchase and retain most of the cagrsteneivables related to the consumer
loans made by the chartered financial institutinod are also responsible for servicing functionatezl to the customer account.

PayPal Credit accounts are most commonly openad ®nmerchant websites, including ebay.com, oftefayPal Credit as a payment
method, but can also be opened by U.S. consunrensgh a qualified PayPal account or at the PayRadiCwebsite. U.S. consumers may be
offered an opportunity to defer payments under sproeotional arrangements offered on select metcites. Interest on such purchases cat
be deferred for up to 18 months.

For information regarding risks related to PayPad, see the information in “ltem 1A: Risk Factbunder the captions "Our credit
products and services expose us to additional'reskd "PayPal is not a bank or licensed lenderrahés upon third parties to make the loans
and provide the other services critical to its bass."

We are focused on making our solutions simple farstomers and developers.

Our Payments business seeks to put the custoraenie are focused on creating easy to use prothaitéeverage our technological
leadership and we are using a true “mobile firgpir@ach to make payments simple and intuitive. RayPal platform and open APIs are
designed to allow developers to innovate with easkto offer cutting edge applications to a largesgstem of merchants and consumers,
while at the same time maintaining the safety ofumers’ financial information. PayPal provides elepers with intuitive, flexible and
powerful tools that are designed to leverage PayB#ibal reach and payment capabilities. Someuofsoftware developer kits, or SDKs, are
specifically focused on the mobile app market areddesigned to remove friction by not requiringedirect to PayPal.com or an additional
login.

Our payments solutions offer leading fraud prevemti and protection.

PayPal enables consumers to make payments quicttlgasily without sharing sensitive financial imf@tion, such as credit card or
debit card numbers, with merchants or other conssini® make payments using PayPal, consumers nalisicdlose only their email addres:
mobile phone number to merchants. The account-brzstele of PayPal's platform helps us to bettezaetnd prevent fraud when funds enter,
flow through and exit the PayPal network. PayPsd aitilizes eBay Marketplaces global transactidia tia help manage risk. As a result of the
systems and processes that we have built over gearg, we believe that PayPal is one of the wortthst trusted payments brands.

PayPal has developed a number of trust and safeyygms, including PayPal's Seller Protection amttfase Protection Programs.
These programs provide additional protection téateraccount holders who pay or receive paymenthfeir transactions through PayPal on or
off ebay.com in certain key geographies. PayPallgiSProtection Program covers sellers in celitaiyn geographies who follow specific
shipping and handling practices against claimsdhetnsaction was not authorized by the buyehatrthe item was not received. PayPal's
Purchase Protection Program reimburses the buylgiec to specified limitations, for qualified phases using PayPal on or off ebay.com in
certain key geographies if the buyer does not vectie item or, in limited markets, if the itensignificantly not as described. In some non-
U.S. markets, protection for buyers is limited tmaximum amount per transaction.

Enterprise

In June 2011, eBay acquired GSI Commerce, Ing&G%i; which provides commerce technologies, omniokhaperations and
marketing solutions for large, nationally recoguizetailers and brands that operate in generallmardise categories, including apparel,
sporting goods, toys & baby, health & beauty anchéoln June 2013, eBay renamed the GSI segmenttagEise. Today, Enterprise
empowers retailers and brands to engage and sedl tndoday’s hyper-connected
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consumer with a modular, integrated portfolio ofntnerce solutions and services spanning the entg®mer experience journey.

Enterprise operates three primary lines of busin@emmerce Technologies, Omnichannel Operationsti®oks and Commerce
Marketing Solutions. Enterprise provides its pradwmnd services on an individual basis and as ledrailutions. Each of these three primary
lines of business complements the other, whichwallfor cross-selling opportunities.

Commerce Technologigdagento Enterprise Edition is our licensed opere gatform, offering an enterprise-class nativeueaset
and unparalleled flexibility through direct soumle access and APIs. Magento Enterprise Editipp@ts on-premise, hosted managed (via
partners) and on-demand (cloud deployment via pesjrdeployments. As a licensed-deployed solutimerchants have full control of their
deployment model and data.

« eBay Enterprise Retail Order Management solytimvides clients with a reliable and scalablefBiat-as-a-Service model to
manage orders received from multiple brands, sitescustomer touch points. It optimizes order itistion, determines the
most efficient source for order fulfillment and indes an extensive set of reporting/ businessligegice capabilities. The
solution provides tight orchestration across thigremechnology value chain, spanning several kegst distributed order
management, omnichannel inventory management,epatting. Whether delivered as part of a fully grated eBay Enterprit
commerce solution, or as a standalone integratddrtbparty storefronts, eBay Enterprise Retaiti@rManagement provides a
powerful foundation for omnichannel success. Ogtianodules include store fulfillment and paymeittss flexible to use othe
third-party webstores and is pre-integrated foy &asnbination with Magento Enterprise Edition.

* eBay Enterprise Payment and Protection modud@ isptional, end-to-end payment solution thatlmaseamlessly integrated
with eBay Enterprise Retail Order Management soiuthe eBay Enterprise payments infrastructurgiges a robust online
payment processing engine with capabilities ingigdirice, tax and shipping calculations, addressie&tion, order review,
fraud prevention, credit card authorization, setéat and alternative payment processing, and pepaigment using PayPal as
well as private label credit cards, gift cards antine gift certificates.

< eBay Enterprise Store Fulfillment solutions pdevmodular, cloud-based Software-as-a-Service-8bip Store, In-Store
Pickup and Ship-to Store capabilities that givessjtes retailers full visibility into inventory aass stores, distribution centers,
and even suppliers so they can deliver goods aighepossible speed and cost while preservingabepossible margin. This
solution has been shown to increase sales, enliamoensumer experience and improve customer ieterates.

- eBay Enterprise Retail Associate Platform isaotar mobile-based platform that brings data androerce together into a
powerful toolset. Designed to increase in-stores#irough better consumer engagement, the Retsilofate Platform offers a
variety of different modules - commerce, custorpenduct, and omnichannel fulfillment - which re¢a8 can choose from to
both increase top line revenue and decrease bditternosts. The platform is completely open and @amect to existing retalil
system implementations. This flexible architectwamnbined with a mobile interface developed by sofithe industry’s
leading mobile developers, allows retailers to @eaworld class in-store engagement capabiligyfedction of the cost and
time it takes to deploy other solutions or to biufldmselves.

eBay Enterprise Omnichannel OperatioreBay Enterprise Omnichannel Operations suppdififuent, freight and customer service
functions for its clients.

< eBay Enterprise Fulfillment and Freight solus@rovide retailers and brands with scalable, ntddesling direct to consumer
fulfillment with seven campuses across U.S., CamatbEurope with more than 6.5 million effectiveiae footage of
fulfillment space and an additional five fulfilmeeampuses with more than 2.1 million effectiveagufootage of fulfillment
space in Europe and China through its partnershiibsFEIGE and FireSwirl. eBay Enterprise Fulfillmteand Freight solutions
provide scalability, operational efficiency and cefficiencies that retailers can’t achieve on tloevn. The solution includes
regional or central distribution models, warehomsmagement systems, inbound and outbound logistittens processing,
value added services like custom packaging, peligatian, gifting and assembly, as well as fooddgrand continuity
fulfillment. eBay Enterprise can ship to 60+ coiggrand also provides freight solutions to ensasgef delivery at a lower co
A proprietary freight solution - ShipQuik - getslers to consumers faster by reducing time in ttdrsin the fulfillment center
to the consumer.




e eBay Enterprise Customer Service: eBay Entexisvides branded customer care services for cooenvéa telephone, IVR,
live chat, email, and social support through throake centers and a network of customer supporttagarthe U.S., plus an
additional call center in the U.K. The eBay Entagrcustomer care platform combines proprietarythind-party technologies,
including automatic call distribution, computergighony integration, interactive voice response,ilemvarkforce management,
voice recording/monitoring, and customer relatiopshanagement systems. The U.K. call center offastomer care in nine
languages. In addition, eBay Enterprise has acealler in China through its Fireswirl partnersk&Bay Enterprise call center
operations utilize business intelligence to opterséervice, sales, agent and cost efficiencies dsas/eevenue enhancing
services to help drive retail revenue through austoservice interactions.

eBay Enterprise Marketing SolutioreBay Enterprise Marketing Solutions is focused mviging comprehensive, industry-leading
marketing technology solutions as well as digiggrcy services.

e eBay Enterprise Marketing Solutions includesiiéesof demand generation capabilities includirf§liate marketing;
attribution; database and CRM; email & mobile mérige online advertising display targeting. In 20&Bay Enterprise will
launch its Commerce Marketing Platform, a suitelotid-based marketing solutions that enables markéd plan and execute
a consumer's entire journey while determining thlstnelevant offers and channel selections. Dediginel built from the
ground up in partnership with FICO, a leading pcédé analytics and decision management softwanepemy, the platform
combines commerce insights powered by data andibbetdss demand generation technologies of eBagrgrise in
combination with FICO’s powerful analytics applicets to optimize the relevance and value of eadlvidual customer’s
purchasing journey.

e eBay Enterprise Agency Services offers full-smndigital marketing specializing in analytics astimization; creative
services; studio services; media services; seargime marketing; user experience design and usal@search. The agency
operates three state-of-the-art testing facilitestew York City, Philadelphia and Silicon Vallegeh equipped with
tablet/mobile device testing capabilities and egeking technology. The agency also operates thrbeuse studios in New
York City, Pennsylvania and its Kentucky fulfillmiecenter. Enterprise’s flexible model can also iempént and staff a pop-up
studio at a client location or third-party fulfilent center.

While eBay Enterprise operates on a global basigly all of its net revenues in 2014 were derifreth its North American operations.
Similar to our Marketplaces and Payments segm#rganajority of our eBay Enterprise revenue comeshfa take rate on the Gross
Merchandise Sales that we enable through our Coneniérchnologies and Omnichannel Operations suigemices, with the remaining
revenue coming from Marketing Solutions. We defdress Merchandise Sales as the retail value sbédk transactions, inclusive of freight
charges and net of allowance for returns and digsowhich flow through our Enterprise Commercelifedogies whether we record the full
amount of such transaction as a product sale er@ptage of such transaction as a service fee.

Competition

We encounter vigorous competition in our busine&ses numerous sources. For our Marketplaces segrmenusers can find, buy, s
and pay for similar items through a variety of catipg online, mobile and offline channels. Thes#ude, but are not limited to, retailers,
distributors, liquidators, import and export comiganauctioneers, catalog and mail-order companlassifieds, directories, search engines,
commerce participants (consumer-to-consumer, bssiteeconsumer and business-to-business), shoppangnels and networks. As our
product offerings continue to broaden into new gaties of items and new commerce formats, we expdeice additional competition from
other online, mobile and offline channels for thosev offerings. We compete on the basis of pricedpct selection and services.

For our Payments segment, our users may choosg/thpugh a variety of alternative means, inclgdiredit and debit cards,
automated clearing house and bank wires, othen@pllyment services, offline payment methods ssdash, check or money order and u
mobile phones. Likewise, our users may elect tarfae their purchases through a broad range of stheces of financing, including credit
cards, lines of credit provided by financial instibns and store credit or layaway plans providgdnerchants.

Our Enterprise segment faces different competitoesich of its primary lines of business. Entegseseks to compete on the basis of
offering premium capabilities at attractive pricEach of Enterprise's business units competesstana-alone basis with in-house solutions
promoted and supported by internal departmentstaflers and other sellers, as well as
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technology and service providers that supply ecoroensolutions or components of ecommerce solufjerss, website and mobile platforms,
customer care/call center services and fulfillmeamd logistics) and interactive marketing serviessthe case may be. Enterprise also seeks tc
differentiate itself by cross-selling and bundlsegyvices to offer more attractive pricing and inéégd implementations.

For more information regarding these risks, sedrtftemation in “Item 1A: Risk Factors” under thaptions “Substantial and
increasingly intense competition worldwide in tle@emerce industry may materially and adverselycafber overall business and results of
operations” and “We are subject to regulatory égtiand antitrust litigation under competition laivs

To compete effectively, we will need to continueetqpend significant resources in technology andkatarg. These efforts require
substantial expenditures, which could reduce ougma and have a material adverse effect on ounbss, financial position, operating resi
and cash flows and reduce the market price of oomeon stock. Despite our efforts to preserve andued the size, diversity and transaction
activity of our users and customers and to enh#dreeser experience, we may not be able to effelgtivanage our operating expenses, to
increase or maintain our revenue, or to avoid dire our consolidated net income or a net loss.

Government Regulation

Government regulation impacts key aspects of oginess. In particular, we are subject to laws @gailations that affect the
ecommerce and payments industries in many counttiese we operate. For more information regardirggé risks, see the information in
“Iltem 1A: Risk Factors” under the captions "Our iness is subject to extensive government regulaiwhoversight" and "PayPal is subject tc
additional government regulation and supervisidatireg to the provision of financial services."

Seasonality

We expect transaction activity patterns on our Wwebdo mirror general consumer buying patterng. Enierprise segment is highly
seasonal. The fourth calendar quarter typicallypants for a disproportionate amount of Enterprisa annual revenue because consumers
increase their purchases and businesses increzsadiertising to consumers during the fourth tpraroliday seasofRlease see the additio
information in “Item 7: Management's Discussion &malysis of Financial Condition and Results of @pi®ns” under the caption
“Seasonality.”

Technology

Our Marketplaces, Payments and Enterprise platfatitize a combination of proprietary technologéesl services as well as
technologies and services provided by others. We daveloped intuitive user interfaces, customelstand transaction processing, database
and network applications that help enable our ugersliably and securely complete transactionsuamsites and help eBay Enterprise’s clients
to utilize its suite of services. Our technologfrastructure simplifies the storage and processirigrge amounts of data, eases the deployme
and operation of large-scale global products andees and automates much of the administratidargie-scale clusters of computers. Our
infrastructure has been designed around indusanydstrd architectures to reduce downtime in theteMeoutages or catastrophic occurrences.
We strive to continually improve our technologyetthance the customer experience and to incredsieeély, scalability and security. For
information regarding technology-related risks, geeinformation in “ltem 1A: Risk Factors” undéetcaption “Systems failures and resulting
interruptions in the availability of our websitegplications, products or services could harm asirtess."

Intellectual Property

We regard the protection of our intellectual prapeincluding our trademarks (particularly thoseeong the eBay and PayPal names),
patents, copyrights, domain names, trade drestrate secrets as critical to our success. We agjgedg protect our intellectual property rig
by relying on federal, state and common law righthe U.S. and internationally, as well as a wgra administrative procedures. We also |
on contractual restrictions to protect our proaigtrights in products and services. We routinelieeinto confidentiality and invention
assignment agreements with our employees and ctotsaand nondisclosure agreements with partigswiiiom we conduct business to limit
access to and disclosure of our proprietary infdiona

We pursue the registration of our domain namedetraarks and service marks in the U.S. and intenmally. Additionally, we have file
U.S. and international patent applications covededain aspects of our proprietary technology.
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Effective trademark, copyright, patent, domain natreele dress and trade secret protection is tiypieapensive to maintain and may require
litigation. We must protect our intellectual protyerights and other proprietary rights in an ingieg number of jurisdictions, a process that is
expensive and time consuming and may not be suctess

We have registered our core brands as trademacdkdamain names in the U.S. and a large numberhei garisdictions and have in
place an active program to continue to secure tnades and domain names that correspond to our biiardarkets of interest. If we are
unable to register or protect our trademarks oralomames, we could be adversely affected in amgdiction in which our trademarks or
domain names are not registered or protected. We li@ensed in the past, and expect to licenshdrfuture, certain of our proprietary rights,
such as trademarks or copyrighted material, torethe

Third parties have from time to time claimed, atigeos will likely claim in the future, that we hairdringed their intellectual property
rights. We are typically involved in a number otkuegal proceedings at any time. Please see theriation in “Item 3: Legal Proceedings”
and in “ltem 1A: Risk Factors” under the captioli¢e' are subject to patent litigation,” "The listiogsale by our users of items that allegedly
infringe the intellectual property rights of righdwners, including pirated or counterfeit itemsyrharm its business," and "We may be unable
to adequately protect or enforce our intellectwapprty rights, or third parties may allege thatawe infringing their intellectual property
rights.”

Employees

As of December 31, 2014 , we employed approxim&é4lg00 people globally and approximately 1,900perary employees.
Approximately 22,300 of our employees were locateithe U.S.

Available Information

Our Internet address wsww.ebay.com Our investor relations website is locatedhtéip://investor.ebayinc.comWe make available free
of charge on our investor relations website underhieading “SEC Filings” our Annual Reports on FA@AK, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-
Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendmentsasetheports as soon as reasonably practicablesaftbrmaterials are electronically filed
with (or furnished to) the SEC.

We webcast our earnings calls and certain evenigant&ipate in or host with members of the investincommunity on our investor
relations website. Additionally, we provide not#ttons of news or announcements regarding our diahperformance, including SEC filings,
investor events, press and earnings releases,|agsl dn our investor relations website. Furthepoasite governance information, including
governance guidelines for our board of directoogrd committee charters, and code of conductsis abailable on our investor relations
website under the heading “Corporate Governance.”

The contents of our websites and webcasts areootgorated by reference into this Annual ReporForm 10-K or in any other report
or document we file with (or furnish to) the SE@gdaany references to our websites and webcastsatareled to be inactive textual references
only.
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Item 1A: RISK FACTORS

The following discussion is divided into two seciso The first section, which begins immediatelydaing this paragraph, discusses
some of the risks that may affect our businessiltesf operations and financial condition. Them®&tsection, captioned "Risk Factors Relate
to the Planned Separation,” discusses some oistkerelating to our plan to separate PayPal intlmdependent publicly traded company. \
should carefully review both of these sectionsyalt as our consolidated financial statements atdsithereto and the other information
appearing in this report, for important informati@garding risks that affect us.

Risk Factors That May Affect our Business, ResuttsOperations and Financial Condition

Our operating and financial results are subjecvarious risks and uncertainties that could adversdfect our business, financial
condition, results of operations and cash flowswa#l as the trading price of our common stock drbt securities.

Our operating and financial results have varie@ guarterly basis during our operating history avay continue to fluctuate significan
as a result of a variety of factors, including assult of the risks set forth in this “Risk Fagtbsection. It is difficult for us to forecast thevel
or source of our revenues or earnings (loss) atayrdn view of the rapidly evolving nature of dousiness, period-to-period comparisons of
our operating results may not be meaningful, andsfwuld not rely upon them as an indication dfifeitperformance. We do not have
backlog, and substantially all of our net revenesh quarter come from transactions involving satggyments during that quarter. Due to
the inherent difficulty in forecasting revenuessitlso difficult to forecast expenses as a pdeggnof net revenues. Quarterly and annual
expenses as a percentage of net revenues reflaaed consolidated financial statements may brisaantly different from historical or
projected rates. Our operating results in one arerfiture quarters may fall below the expectatiohsecurities analysts and investors. The
trading price of our common stock and debt se@sritiould decline, perhaps substantially, as atrebthe factors described in this paragraph.

Substantial and increasingly intense competitionlgwaide in the ecommerce and global payments inglustly materially and adversely
affect our overall business and results of operatio

Marketplaces

Our Marketplaces businesses currently and potgntampete with a wide variety of online and offlicompanies providing goods and
services to consumers and merchants. The Intendetabile networks provide new, rapidly evolvinglantensely competitive channels for
the sale of all types of goods and services. Matliees compete in two-sided markets, and mustatigh buyers and sellers to use our
platforms. Consumers who purchase or sell goodsandces through Marketplaces have more and mtmatives, and merchants have n
channels to reach consumers. We expect competitioantinue to intensify. Online and offline busises increasingly are competing with
each other and our competitors include a numbenlifie and offline retailers with significant resoes and welkstablished brands. Moreov
the barriers to entry into these channels can\wedad businesses easily can launch online sitesobile platforms and applications at nom
cost by using commercially available software atmpering with any of a number of successful econtm@&ompanies. As we respond to
changes in the competitive environment, it maymftome to time, make pricing, service or marketifggisions or acquisitions that may be
controversial with and lead to dissatisfaction amsallers, which could reduce activity on our wedssand harm its profitability.

Our Marketplaces businesses face increased compegtiessure online and offline. In particular, tmenpetitive norm for, and the
expected level of service from, ecommerce and reatiimmerce has significantly increased, due tongnather factors, improved user
experience, greater ease of buying goods, lowendpshipping costs, faster shipping times and rfererable return policies. Also, certain
platform businesses, such as Alibaba, Apple, GoagteFacebook, many of whom are larger than usiee Qreater capitalization, have a
dominant and secure position in other industriesestain significant markets, and offer other goadd services to consumers and merchants
that we do not offer. If we are unable to changepsaducts, offerings and services in ways thdeotthe changing demands of the ecomm
and mobile commerce marketplaces, particularlyhigber growth of sales of fixed-price items andheigexpected service levels (some of
which depend on services provided by sellers omtaiforms), or compete effectively with and ad@pthanges in larger platform businesses
our business will suffer.

Competitors with other revenue sources may alsabreto devote more resources to marketing and giomal campaigns, adopt more
aggressive pricing policies and devote more ressut@ website, mobile platforms and applications systems development than we can.
Other competitors may offer or continue to offestéa and/or free shipping, delivery on
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Sunday, same-day delivery, favorable return pdiceother transaction-related services which imgthe user experience on their sites and
which could be impractical or inefficient for owlkers to match. Competitors may be able to inm@¥aster and more efficiently, and new
technologies may increase the competitive pressiyremabling competitors to offer more efficieni@wer-cost services.

Some of our competitors control other products serdices that are important to our success, inotudiedit card interchange, Internet
search, and mobile operating systems. Such corapetiould manipulate pricing, availability, ternrsoperation of service related to their
products and services in a manner that impactsaupetitive offerings. For example, Google, whige@ates a shopping platform service,
made changes to its search algorithms that rediheeamount of search traffic directed to Marketptafrom searches on Google. If we are
unable to use or adapt to operational changescim services, we may face higher costs for suchicesyvor face integration or technological
barriers, it could raise our costs and our busime$suffer.

Consumers who might use our Marketplaces sitesiyaggbods have a wide variety of alternatives, iditlg traditional department,
warehouse, boutique, discount and general mercbausthres (as well as the online and mobile opearsibf these traditional retailers), online
retailers and their related mobile offerings, oaland offline classified services and other shapphmannels, such as offline and online home
shopping networks. In the United States, theseiitecAmazon.com (which recently opened an experiahdnick-and-mortar store in New
York City and continues to expand into new geogregphnd lines of business), Google, Wal-Mart, Targears, Macy’s, JC Penney, Costco,
Office Depot, Staples, OfficeMax, Sam’s Club, Buyrc(owned by Rakuten), Yahoo! Shopping, MSN, QV@ Blome Shopping Network,
among others. In addition, consumers have a langa&er of online and offline channels focused on@nmore of the categories of products
offered on our site.

Consumers also can turn to many companies that@ffariety of services that provide other chanf@iHuyers to find and buy items
from sellers of all sizes, including online aggregaand classifieds websites, such as craigsfist/fich we own a minority equity stake),
Oodle.com and a number of international websitesatpd by Schibsted ASA or Naspers Limited. Conssmakso can turn to shopping-
comparison sites, such as Google Shopping. Ininartarkets, our fixed-price listing and traditiormaiction-style listing formats increasingly
are being challenged by other formats, such asitikeds.

Our classifieds websites offer classifieds listimgghe United States and a variety of local in&gional markets. In many markets in wk
they operate, including in the United States, tlidassifieds platforms compete for customers an@ddwertisers against more established
online and offline classifieds platforms.

Our online shopping comparison websites (Shoppam)acompete with sites such as Google Shopping,duay, Nextag.com,
Pricegrabber.com, Shopzilla, Buscapé in Latin Aoge(bwned by Naspers) and Yahoo! Product Searcichvdffer shopping search engines
that allow consumers to search the Internet focifipd products. In addition, sellers are increghirutilizing multiple sales channels, includi
the acquisition of new customers by paying for seaelated advertisements on horizontal searcmersgjtes, such as Google, Yahoo!, Naver
and Baidu. We use product search engines and paidisadvertising to help users find our sitestibese services also have the potential to
divert users to other online shopping destinati@mmsumers may choose to search for products amidee with a horizontal search engine or
shopping comparison website, and such sites mayselsd users to other shopping destinations.

Consumers and merchants who might use our sitgalltgoods also have many alternatives, includiergegal online ecommerce sites,
such as Amazon and Alibaba, and more specialized, such as Etsy. Our international sites alsgpetenfor sellers with general and
specialized online ecommerce sites. Sellers maydhisose to sell their goods through other chaneatsh as classifieds sites. Consumers an
merchants also can create and sell through theirsites, and may choose to purchase online adweriisstead of using our services. In some
countries, there are online sites that have lazgstomer bases and greater brand recognition, lhasveompetitors that may have a better
understanding of local culture and commerce. Weeamingly may compete with local competitors inaleging countries that have unique
advantages, such as a greater ability to operaterdocal regulatory authorities.

In addition, certain manufacturers may limit or sedistribution of their products through onlin@echels, such as our Marketplaces sites
Manufacturers may attempt to use contractual otitiga or existing or future government regulatiorptohibit or limit ecommerce in certain
categories of goods or services. Manufacturers algyattempt to enforce minimum resale price maartee or minimum advertised price
arrangements to prevent distributors from sellingpar websites or on the Internet generally, qries that would make us less attractive
relative to other alternatives. The adoption by ufacturers of policies, or their use of laws orulagjons, in each case discouraging or
restricting the sales of goods or services ovetrtternet, could force our users to stop sellingaie products on our websites, which could
result in reduced
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operating margins, loss of market share and ditnéussalue of our brands.
The principal competitive factors for Marketpladeslude the following:

» ability to attract, retain and engage buyers afidrseand user engageme
» volume of transactions and price and selectionoofdg

» trustin the seller and the transact

* customer servic

e brand recognition;

* community cohesion, interaction and s

* website, mobile platform and application easers# and accessibili

» system reliability

» reliability of delivery and payment, including caster preference for fast delivery and free shipgind return:
» level of service fees; a

e quality of search tool

We may be unable to compete successfully agaimstrtuand future competitors. Some current andrpisiecompetitors have longer
operating histories, larger customer bases andegrbeand recognition in other business and Intesaetors than we do.

Payments

The global payments industry is highly competitiWée compete against businesses in varied industniagy of whom are larger than we
are, have a dominant and secure position in otttrsitries, and offer other goods and servicesiiswoers and merchants which we do not
offer. As online and offline commerce increasingbnverge, the pace of change, innovation and dismnfs increasing. The payments indu:
is rapidly changing, highly innovative and increagy subject to regulatory scrutiny, which may riagdy affect the competitive landscape.
Our payment programs compete against all formsagfent, including:

e paperbased transactions (principally cash and che

« providers of traditional payment methods, pattdy credit and debit cards, money orders, antbfated Clearing House
transactions (these providers are primarily welidelished banks);

« providers of “digital wallets” which offer custwers the ability to pay online and/or on mobileides through a variety of payment
methods, including with mobile applications, througpntactless payments, and with a variety of paymethods (these providers
include Visa, MasterCard, American Express andMbechant Customer Exchange (“MCX” initiative supteat by Wal-Mart, Target
and other major U.S. retailers));

» providers of mobile payments solutions that &, American Express and MasterCard’s tokenized data approaches and Near
Field Communication (NFC) functionality, such aspigds mobile Apple Pay, and Google’s Android saluatithat uses Host Based
Card Emulation (HCE) functionality to eliminate theed for a physical NFC card in the device;

e payment-card processors that offer their sesvioenerchants, including Chase Paymentech, Fatd,[Bank of America Merchant
Services, Elavon, Vantiv, WorldPay, Barclays Merthaervices, Global Payments, Inc., Stripe andigadd, and payment gateways,
including CyberSource and Authorize.net (both owhed/isa), SimplifyCommerce by MasterCard, and tH¥ata;

 Amazon Payments, which offers merchants thétalbd accept payment card- and bank-funded paysnfeatn Amazon’s base of
online and mobile customers on the merchant’s owhsite. Amazon has a payment service for onlinehagits under the name Log
in and Pay with Amazon;

» providers of “person-to-person” payments thatlitate individuals sending money with an emaitieeks or mobile phone number,
such as Facebook messaging payments;

» providers of mobile payments, including BuysteFrance, Mpass in Germany, Paym in the Unitedgdam, Boku and Crandy, many
of which are owned by or supported by major motglecommunications carriers; and

» providers of card readers for mobile devices @inother new point of sale and muitirannel technologies, including Square (whict
also begun to offer a marketplace service to $ll€hase Paymentech, Bank of America, AT&T (iroaidion with Vantiv), Capital
One, and others.

PayPal also faces competition and potential coripetirom:

* money remitters such as MoneyGram, Western Unidoh& Payments, Inc., Xoom and Euro
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e bill payment service

e services that provide online merchants the tgltii offer their customers the option of paying poirchases from their bank account or
paying on credit in the United States and abroad;

e issuers of stored value targeted at online payr

« other international online payment-services fers such as AliPay, the PayU group of compariesé€d by Naspers), PagSeguro
and Bcash (owned by Naspers);

» other providers of online account-based paymesoish as Skrill, ClickandBuy (owned by Deutsché&elkem), Barclays Pingit in the
United Kingdom, Kwixo in France, and Paymate ansaayClick in Australia;

* payment services targeting users of social neétsvand online gaming, often through billing to temsumers mobile phone accou

* mobile payment services between bank accountt, a&s the Paym mobile payments service offeretidyPayments Council in the
United Kingdom;

* payment services enabling banks to offer theline banking customers the ability to send aneixecpayments through their bank
account;

» online shopping services that provide special effiiked to a specific payment provic

» services such as Coinbase and Bitpay that helphaets accept and manage virtual currencies suBlit@sn; anc

+ cash

Many of these payment providers have greater cuatdbases, volume, scale, and market share thamwehich may provide significant
competitive advantages. Some of these competitagsaiso be subject to less burdensome licensingramey laundering, counter-terrorist
financing, and other regulatory requirements thayFRl. They may devote greater resources to thelai@went, promotion, and sale of
products and services than PayPal, and they may loffier prices or more effectively introduce thaivn innovative programs and services
that adversely impact PayPal's growth. We also eixpew entrants to offer competitive products aentises. In addition, some merchants
provide such services to themselves. Competingcesrtied to established banks and other finamestitutions may offer greater liquidity and
engender greater consumer confidence in the safehefficacy of their services than PayPal. In taldli in certain countries, such as Germi
Netherlands and Australia, electronic funds tranisfa leading method of payment for both onlind affline transactions. As in the Unit
States, established banks and other financiatuistns that do not currently offer online paymetdsild quickly and easily develop such a
service.

PayPal competes primarily on the basis of the ¥ahg:

» ability to attract, retain and engage both buyeds sellers with relatively low marketing expet

» ability to show that sellers will achieve increnadrgales by offering PayP

» security of transactions and the ability for buytersise PayPal without sharing their financial infation with the selle
» low fees and simplicity of fee structu

» ability to develop services across multiple comraarigannels, including mobile payments and paynwritse retail point of sal
» trustin PayPa$ dispute resolution and buyer and seller protagtimgrams

* customer servic

* brand recognitiol

* website, mobile platform and application onbdagdease-ofise and accessibilil

» system reliability and data secur

» ease and quality of integration into thjpdrty mobile applications; a

» quality of developer tools such as our applicaposgramming interfaces and software developmesi

If PayPal is not able to differentiate itself fréts competitors, drive value for its customers,/anéffectively align its resources with its
goals and objectives, PayPal may not be able tqpetareffectively against these threats. PayPalisréato compete effectively against any of
the foregoing competitive threats could materialtygl adversely affect our overall business and testibperations.

Enterprise

Our Enterprise business provides a modular, intedrportfolio of commerce technology solutions aedvices, omnichannel operations
solutions and commerce marketing solutions thabblensompanies to operate and integrate their econewdfering and their omnichannel
business, including physical stores, in order tbtseonsumers across the entire sales journey, fiwareness to conversion, delivery and
retention. The market for such products and sesvEeontinuously
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evolving and intensely competitive. Many of our &mptise business’s prospective clients may chamseainage all or some aspects of an
omnichannel business with internal resources. fesalt, the Enterprise business often competesimndtiouse solutions promoted and
supported by internal information technology staffigrketing departments, merchandising groups &mer internal corporate constituencies,
as well as with external technology and interactharketing service providers that supply one orexammponents that allow prospective
clients to develop and operate their omnichannsinass in-house. This group of providers may irelin prospective client itself and
companies that offer one or more of the followinwgb platforms; customer care/call center serviftdfitiment and logistics; systems
integration services and technology products amndces; email management and data aggregatiomeniiarketing and design services; and
other interactive marketing services. Low barrterentry in the interactive marketing industry abalso increase the number of competitor
may face.

Our Enterprise business competes primarily on #sgshof the following:

» offering a modular, integrated portfolio of coraroe technology solutions and services that aigedet on an individual basis or as
bundled solutions;

« providing a licensed open core platform, offgram enterprise-class native feature set and flayithrough direct source code access
and APIs that supports on-premise, hosted managggdrtners) and on-demand cloud deploymentspaitners);

e promoting the cliens brand and business, rather than our

» providing enterpriséevel scale and operating levere

e establishing a commitment to enhance our solutamsservices and invest in innovat

« aligning our financial interests with those of alients

» offering a suite of commerce marketing solutiors tire integrated with our marketing solutionsfptat, which we believe provides
more strategic, cohesive and optimized approactetoand generation; and

» providing services that utilize proprietary tactogy to promote stronger customer engagemengudedito increase clients’ return on
investment.

The Enterprise business has competitors with longerating histories, larger customer bases, grea@d recognition and greater
financial, marketing, and other resources. Thosepatitors may be able to secure components of tiefimology and services on more
favorable terms and devote more resources to témimdevelopment and marketing than the Entergdrisiness. In addition, to the extent tha
we expand our Enterprise business internationiilyill face increased competition from global dodal companies, which may have a greate
understanding of, and focus on, the local customer.

Global and regional economic conditions could metér affect our business.

Our operations and performance depend significantlglobal and regional economic conditions. Adgexsonomic conditions and
events (including volatility or distress in the @guwand/or debt or credit markets) have in the pasfatively impacted regional and global
financial markets and will likely continue to do om time to time in the future. These events eoidditions could have a negative and
adverse impact on companies and customers withhwidcdo business. In addition, financial turmofeafing the banking system or financial
markets could cause additional consolidation offittencial services industry, or significant fingacservice institution failures, new or
incremental tightening in the credit markets, laguidity, and extreme volatility in fixed incomeredit, currency, and equity markets. Adverse
impacts to the companies and customers with whigllavbusiness, the banking system, or financiaketaicould have a material adverse
effect on our business, including a reduction mblume and prices of transactions on our commandepayments platforms.

We are exposed to fluctuations in foreign curreexghange rates.

Because we generate the majority of our revenutssdauthe United States but report our financialles in U.S. dollars, our financial
results are impacted by fluctuations in foreignrency exchange rates, or foreign exchange ratesréults of operations of many of our
internationally focused websites are exposed teidorexchange rate fluctuations as the financillte of the applicable subsidiaries are
translated from the local currency into U.S. ddlor financial reporting purposes. If the U.S.ldolveakens against foreign currencies, the
translation of these foreign currency denominaésenues or expenses will result in increased Wbarddenominated revenues and expenses
Similarly, if the U.S. dollar strengthens agairm€ign currencies, particularly the Euro, Britishupd, Korean won, Australian dollar, or
Canadian dollar, our translation of foreign curredenominated revenues or expenses will resutiviret U.S. dollar denominated net revenue
and expenses. For the year ended December 31, 2Bign currency movements relative to the U@lad positively impacted net revenues
by approximately $30 million (inclusive of a $36lloin negativeimpact from hedging activities relating to PayPaés revenue). In addition
this translation effect, a strengthening U.S. doMdl typically adversely affect the volume of gi®being sold by U.S. sellers to Europe,
Australia and Canada more than it positively afféhe volume of goods being sold by sellers in
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those geographies to buyers in the United Stateselby further negatively impacting our financiedults. Additionally, in connection with its
services in multiple currencies, PayPal sets itsifm exchange rates twice per day, and may faeadial exposure if it incorrectly sets its
foreign exchange rates or as a result of fluctmatia foreign exchange rates between the timedthgPal sets its foreign exchange rates.
Given that PayPal also holds some corporate artdroes funds in non-U.S. currencies, its financéults are affected by the translation of
these non-U.S. currencies into U.S. dollars.

While from time to time we enter into transactidadiedge portions of our foreign currency translagxposure, it is impossible to pre:
or eliminate the effects of this exposure. Fludtret in foreign exchange rates could significairtipact our financial results, which may have
a significant impact on the trading price of ountnon stock and debt securities.

We are exposed to fluctuations in interest rates.

Investments in both fixed-rate and floating-ratieiast-earning instruments carry varying degreeéstefest rate risk. The fair market
value of our fixed-rate investment securities mayalversely impacted due to a rise in interessrditegeneral, fixedate securities with long
maturities are subject to greater interest-ratethian those with shorter maturities. While flogtimate securities generally are subject to less
interest-rate risk than fixed-rate securities, ilogrrate securities may produce less income th@eated if interest rates decrease and may als
suffer a decline in market value if interest ratesease. Due in part to these factors, our investrincome may decline or we may suffer lo
in principal if securities are sold that have deetl in market value due to changes in interess réte of December 31, 2014he balance of o
government bond and corporate debt security pastieds $8.1 billion , which represented approxiryafd.% of our total cash and investment
portfolio. As of December 31, 2014ur government bond and corporate debt secuoitifgio earned an average pretax yield of apprataty
1.21% , with a weighted average maturity of 22 rhentf interest rates as of December 31, 2014 Wweb@ebasis points higher (lower), the fair
market value of our total fixed-income investmeottfolio as of December 31, 2014 could have dee@éimcreased) by approximately $103
million . In addition, relatively low interest radimit our investment income, including income &gn on PayPal customer balances.
Fluctuations in interest rates that increase tts @bour current or future indebtedness, causeniudet value of our assets to decline or reduc
our investment income could adversely affect onaiicial results.

Our international operations are subject to incredgisks, which may harm our business, operatisglts, and financial condition.

Our international businesses, especially in GermtreyUnited Kingdom, Australia and Korea, haveagated a majority of our net
revenues in recent years. In addition to uncestabout our ability to generate revenues from oweifjn operations and expand into
international markets, there are risks inheremtaiimg business internationally, including:

* expenses associated with localizing our prodastsservices and customer data, including offecimgjomers the ability to transact
business in the local currency and adapting oudymts and services to local preferences (e.g., paymethods) with which we may
have limited or no experience;

» trade barriers and changes in trade regulat

» difficulties in developing, staffing, and simaifteously managing a large number of varying forejgerations as a result of distance,
language, and cultural differences;

» stringent local labor laws and regulatic

« credit risk and higher levels of payment fre

»  profit repatriation restrictions, foreign curmgnexchange restrictions or extreme fluctuationforeign currency exchange rates for a
particular currency;

« political or social unrest, economic instabilitgpression, or human rights issi

» geopolitical events, including natural disastetslig health issues, acts of war, and terror

e import or export regulation

» compliance with U.S. laws such as the Foreigrri@x Practices Act, and foreign laws prohibitirgrcipt payments to government
officials, as well as U.S. and foreign laws destjteecombat money laundering and the financingobrist activities;

e antitrust and competition regulatio

» potentially adverse tax developments and conse@s

* economic uncertainties relating to sovereign aheérodeb!

» different, uncertain, or more stringent user prote; data protection, privacy, and other le

» risks related to other government regulation ounegl compliance with local law

e national or regional differences in macroeconomagh rates

* local licensing and reporting obligations; .
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* increased difficulties in collecting accounts reedie

Violations of the complex foreign and U.S. laws aedulations that apply to our international operag may result in fines, criminal
actions, or sanctions against us, our officergusremployees; prohibitions on the conduct of awsiess; and damage to our reputation.
Although we have implemented policies and procesldesigned to promote compliance with these ldvesetcan be no assurance that our
employees, contractors, or agents will not viotaie policies. These risks inherent in our inteimadil operations and expansion increase our
costs of doing business internationally and mauyltés harm to our business, operating results, farahcial condition.

Any factors that reduce cross-border trade or miakeore difficult could harm our business.

Cross-border trade is an important source of betemue and profits for us. Cross-border transastimmerally provide higher revenues
and gross margins than similar transactions that péace within a single country or market. Crossder trade also represents our primary (or
in some cases, only) presence in certain imponteankets, such as Brazil/Latin America, China, aadous other countries. In addition, our
cross-border trade is also subject to, and maynpacted by, foreign exchange rate fluctuations.

The interpretation and application of specific oaél or regional laws, such as those related &ll@dtual property rights of authentic
products, selective distribution networks, andesslin other countries listing items on the Intéraed the potential interpretation and
application of laws of multiple jurisdictions (e.the jurisdiction of the buyer, the seller, andhe location of the item being sold) are often
extremely complicated in the context of cross-bottide. The interpretation and/or applicationwgrslaws could impose restrictions on, or
increase the costs of, purchasing, selling, shgppin returning goods across national borders.

The shipping of goods across national borderstenahore expensive and complicated than domesppisly. Customs and duty
procedures and reviews, including duty-free thr&ghim various key markets, the interaction of maail postal systems, and security related
governmental processes at international borderg,imtacase costs, discourage cross-border purchdsley transit and create shipping
uncertainties. Any factors that increase the coktsoss-border trade or restrict, delay, or makss-border trade more difficult or impractical
would lower our revenues and profits and advera#ct our business.

Our business may be adversely affected by geagmlgvents, natural disasters, seasonal factorsahdr factors that cause our users to
spend less time on our websites or mobile platf@ntsapplications, including increased usage otothebsites.

Our users may spend less time on our websites @napplications for mobile devices as a result vagety of diversions, including:
geopolitical events, such as war, the threat of waterrorist activity; natural disasters; powkogages or outages, major public health issues
including pandemics; social networking or otheregt@inment websites or mobile applications; sigaifit local, national or global events
capturing the attention of a large part of the pafion; and seasonal fluctuations due to a vawéfiactors. If any of these, or any other factors
divert our users from using of our websites or rfehpplications, our business could be materiallyeasely affected.

Our success depends to a large degree on ourahilisuccessfully address the rapidly evolving mgftr transactions on mobile
devices.

Mobile devices are increasingly used for ecomméamesactions and payments. A significant and grgviortion of our users access our
platforms through mobile devices. We may lose ugeve are not able to continue to meet our usersbile and multi-screen experience
expectations. In addition, while we focus on iO8 apps to enable users to access our platformsghrmobile devices, Android is the lead
mobile platform in Europe and Android users relyrenon mobile web than apps. The variety of techrind other configurations across
different mobile devices and platforms increasesctmallenges associated with this environmentdtitemn, a number of other companies with
significant resources and a number of innovatiaetsps have introduced products and services fogusi mobile markets.

Our ability to successfully address the challenmesed by the rapidly evolving market for mobilensactions is crucial to our continued

success, and any failure to continuously increlaserdlume of mobile transactions effected throughpatforms could have a material adve
effect on our results of operations, financial dtind and business.
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If we cannot keep pace with rapid technologicaledlepzments to provide new and innovative progransjycts and services, the use of
our products and our revenues could decline.

Rapid, significant technological changes contiruednfront the industries in which we operate. \&hépidly changing technology
affects all of our business segments, the challefaged by our Payments segment are particulayhifgiant and include developments in
smart cards, tokenization, ecommerce, mobile, adibrfrequency and proximity payment devices, achontactless payments. We cannot
predict the effect of technological changes onbmsginess. In addition to our own initiatives andawations, we rely in part on third parties,
including some of our competitors, for the develepinof and access to new technologies. We expath#w services and technologies
applicable to the industries in which we operati saintinue to emerge. These new services and tdabies may be superior to, or render
obsolete, the technologies we currently use inppoducts and services. Incorporating new technekito our products and services may
require substantial expenditures and take conditketame, and ultimately may not be successfulddition, our ability to adopt new services
and technologies that we develop may be inhibitethbustry-wide standards, payments networks, raaveland regulations, resistance to
change from clients or merchants, or third partietllectual property rights. Our success will de@ on our ability to develop new
technologies and adapt to technological change&waolding industry standards.

Our business is subject to extensive governmentatgn and oversight.

We are subject to laws and regulations affectingdmmestic and international operations in a nunob@reas, including consumer
protection, data privacy requirements, intellecfuraperty ownership and infringement, prohibitesiris and stolen goods, resale of event
tickets, tax, anti-competition, export requiremeatsti-corruption, labor, advertising, digital cent, real estate, billing, ecommerce,
promotions, quality of services, telecommunicationsebile communications and media, environmentad, lkealth and safety regulations, as
well as laws and regulations intended to combateydaundering and the financing of terrorist adi@s.

Compliance with these laws, regulations, and simnéguirements may be onerous and expensive, araheas and inconsistencies from
jurisdiction to jurisdiction may further increadeetcost of compliance and doing business. Any sosts, which may rise in the future a
result of changes in these laws and regulatiotis threir interpretation, could individually or ihé aggregate make our products and services
less attractive to our customers, delay the intctido of new products or services in one or moggams, or cause us to change or limit our
business practices. We have implemented policidgpascedures designed to ensure compliance witlicapje laws and regulations, but there
can be no assurance that our employees, contraotagents will not violate such laws and regolagior our policies and procedures.

PayPal is subject to additional government regaatand supervision relating to the provision o&figial services.

PayPal is subject to various laws and regulatiorteé United States and other countries wheredtaips. Such laws and regulations
include those governing banking, deposit takingsstborder and domestic money transmission, foreghange, and payment services, such
as payment processing and settlement servicede@hkand regulatory requirements that apply toFRgdyary in the markets where PayPal
operates and have increased over time as the géogmhscope and complexity of PayPal’'s businesisproducts have expanded. While
PayPal has a compliance program focused on conepliaith applicable laws and regulations and hasased the resources allocated to that
program in the last several years, there can tsssorance that PayPal will not be subject to foregher enforcement actions in one or more
jurisdictions or be required to make changes tbutsiness practices or compliance programs inutued. Nol-compliance could also result in
significant criminal and civil lawsuits, penaltidsrfeiture of significant assets, or other enfonesmt actions. Costs associated with fines,
enforcement actions, as well as reputational hahanges in compliance requirements or limits orPRa#lg ability to grow its business could
adversely affect our financial results.

PayPal has obtained licenses to operate as a ni@msynitter (or its equivalent) in the United S¢ate the states where it is required, anc
the District of Columbia, the U.S. Virgin IslandscaPuerto Rico. PayPal’s subsidiary, Venmo, is itemsed as a money transmitter in certair
U.S. states. As licensed money transmitters, PagihVenmo are subject to restrictions on theiegtment of customer funds, reporting
requirements, bonding requirements and inspectyostdte regulatory agencies. Accordingly, PayPdl\d@nmo could be subject to liability
and/or additional restrictions, forced to ceasagdiusiness with residents of certain states, fbtcehange their business practices or be
required to obtain additional licenses or regulatgwprovals that could impose substantial costaf/tviolate these laws or regulations.

While PayPal currently allows its customers withdit cards to send payments from approximatelyr@@itkets, PayPal allows customers
in only approximately half of those markets (inéhgithe United States) to also receive paymentspime cases with significant restrictions or
the manner in which customers can withdraw fund&se limitations may affect PayPal’s
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ability to grow in these markets. Of the marketoagresidents can use the PayPal service, appr@ynd® markets are in member states of
the European Union. PayPal provides localized wassof its service to customers in the Europeamitiirough PayPal (Europe) S.ar.l. et
Cie, SCA (PayPal (Europe)), a wholly-owned subsidat PayPal that is licensed and subject to rd@gnaas a bank in Luxembourg.
Accordingly, PayPal (Europe) is subject to sigmifitfines or other enforcement action if it viokathe disclosure, reporting, anti-money-
laundering, capitalization, funds management, a@gogovernance, privacy, information security,kbs@crecy, taxation, sanctions, or other
requirements imposed on Luxembourg banks. Any faresther enforcement actions could adversely affayPal’s business. In addition,
European Union laws and regulations are typicallyject to different and potentially inconsisterteipretations by the countries that are
members of the European Union, which can make damge more costly and operationally difficult tomage. Moreover, new laws and
regulations affecting payments services provideag be adopted, and existing laws and regulationsbeasubject to ongoing revision and
interpretation, all of which may increase compliagosts and be operationally difficult to manage.

PayPal is also subject to regulation in other markewhich it does business and PayPal has begexpects to continue to be require
apply for various licenses, certifications and taguy approvals in a number of the countries wliehas operations. In some countries it may
not be clear whether PayPal is required to be $iedras a bank, financial institution or otherwisesuch markets, PayPal may rely on
partnerships with local banks to process paymerdscanduct foreign exchange in local currency. Loegulators may use their power to slow
or halt payments to local merchants conducted tirdeayPal’s local banking partner. Such regulasations or the need to obtain licenses,
certifications or other regulatory approvals comighose substantial costs and involve consideratliydo the provision or development of
PayPal services in a given market, or could regigrificant and costly operational changes or en¢WPayPal from providing any services i
given market.

PayPal is subject to consumer protection laws agglitations.

PayPal is subject to consumer protection laws agdlations in the United States and other counimieghich it operates. PayPal is
focused on compliance with these laws and reguiatéamd has programs designed to comply with neweaisting consumer protection
requirements. However, any errors, failures, oayein complying with such consumer protection lawd regulations could result in
significant criminal and civil lawsuits, penaltidsyfeiture of significant assets, or other enfonesmit actions, as well as reputational harm. Any
new consumer protection laws and regulations (anghs to, or expansion of, the interpretation pliegtion of existing laws and regulations)
applicable to PayPal could subject PayPal to amditirestrictions on its operations, additional ptance and licensure requirements, and
increased regulatory scrutiny, which could forcgRPal to change its business practices or limilitifity to grow its business. Costs associatec
with fines or enforcement actions, changes indtsjgliance requirements, or limitations on its apito grow our business, could have an
adverse effect on its financial results and haryPRha

Although there have been no definitive interpretadito date, PayPal has taken actions as thougéritie is subject to the Electronic
Fund Transfer Act and Regulation E issued by thesGmer Financial Protection Bureau, or CFPB. Uisdeh regulations, among other thir
PayPal is required to provide advance disclosuhahges to its service, to follow specified eresolution procedures and to reimburse
consumers for losses from certain transactionsathtorized by the consumer. PayPal seeks to pastsahthese losses on to the relevant
merchants, but PayPal incurs losses if the merataed not have sufficient funds in its PayPal antoAdditionally, even technical violations
of these laws can result in penalties of up to &1 f@r each non-compliant transaction or up to $800 per violation in any class action, and
we could also be liable for plaintiffs’ attorneyges. In the second quarter of 2010, two putati@essaction lawsuits (Devinda Fernando and
Vadim Tsigel v. PayPal, Inc. and Moises ZepedaayHal, Inc.) were filed in the U.S. District Cotot the Northern District of California.
These lawsuits contain allegations related to timtes of aspects of the Electronic Fund Transferakd Regulation E and violations of a
previous settlement agreement related to Regul&j@nmd/or allege that PayPal improperly held udersls or otherwise improperly limited
users’ accounts. These lawsuits seek damages basngianges to PayPal’s practices, among othexdies A determination that there have
been violations of the Electronic Fund Transfer,Regulation E or violations of other laws relatingPayPal’s practices could expose PayPa
to significant liability. Any changes to PayPalmsaptices resulting from these lawsuits could regjiiayPal to incur significant costs and to
expend substantial resources, which could delagrgitanned product launches or improvements aridgfuharm our business.

The financial services sector has been increassgtject to regulatory scrutiny. In January 20h2, €FPB finalized rules under
Regulation E, mandated by the Dodd-Frank Act, whézfuired PayPal, beginning in October 2013, toipladditional disclosures, error
resolution rights, and cancellation rights to Lt&isumers who make international remittance paysnémtNovember 2014, the CFPB
proposed a new prepaid account rule that wouldyapgbrepaid cards and mobile wallets, includingfRa accounts. In December 2014,
PayPal became subject to CFPB supervision and esdiom pursuant to a new regulation that allowsGR&B to supervise all companies,
including PayPal, that provide more than one millio
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international money transfers per year. Under topgsal, CFPB examiners are now able to examina&dgr compliance with the remittan
transfer rule and other laws and regulations.

PayPal (Europe) implements its localized servindsturopean Union countries through a “passportifioation process through the
Luxembourg regulator to regulators in other Europgaion member states pursuant to European Unicecies, and has completed the
“passport’notification process in all European Union membmirrdries other than Croatia. The regulators inghmsintries could notify PayF
(Europe) of local consumer protection laws thathappits business, in addition to Luxembourg cansu protection law, and could also see
persuade the Luxembourg regulator to order PayRabfe) to conduct its activities in the local coythrough a branch office. These or
similar actions by these regulators could incréhsecost of, or delay, PayPaplans for expanding its business in European tJoduintries. It
addition, the countries that are members of thentaly each have different and potentially inconstsitgerpretations of regulations
implementing the European Union Payment Servicesdilve, which could make compliance more costly aperationally difficult to manac
The European Commission has proposed revisioriget®ayments Services and Anti-Money Launderingdiiires, which could further make
compliance more costly and operationally diffideltmanage. Finally, if the assets of PayPal (Euregeeed certain thresholds, PayPal
(Europe) could become regulated by the Europeatr&ddank rather than Luxembourg, which would likéicrease its costs.

PayPal is subject to anti-money laundering and d¢ettterrorist financing laws and regulations.

PayPal is subject to various anti-money laundeaimd counter-terrorist financing laws and regulaiaround the world that prohibit,
among other things, its involvement in transferiing proceeds of criminal activities. PayPal hagmms designed to comply with new and
existing legal and regulatory requirements. Howgeaay errors, failures, or delays in complying witderal, state or foreign anti-money
laundering or counter-terrorist financing laws aegdulations could result in significant criminaldacivil lawsuits, penalties, forfeiture of
significant assets, or other enforcement actiomsyell as reputational harm. For a discussion gPR#s dealings with OFAC, please see “Itemr
3: Legal Proceedings — Regulatory Proceedings.”

U.S. regulators have increased their scrutiny affggance with these obligations, which may req#es/Pal to further revise or expand
compliance program, including the procedures isuseverify the identity of its customers and tontor international and domestic
transactions. Several countries in which PayPadgsilated have also implemented new anti-moneydiating and counter-terrorist financing
laws and regulations, and PayPal has had to malegels to its compliance program in response. Regsleegularly re-examine the
transaction volume thresholds at which PayPal mbtin and keep applicable records or verify idergtiof customers and any change in suct
thresholds could result in greater costs for coamgle. Costs associated with fines or enforcemeiatnss changes in compliance requirements
or limitations on our ability to grow our businessuld have an adverse effect on our financial tesrid any new requirements or changes to
existing requirements could impose significant sast PayPal, result in delays to planned produptarements, make it more difficult for ni
customers to join PayPal’'s network and reduce tinactiveness of its products.

Regulation in the areas of consumer privacy andeurtion of user data could adversely affect ouritess.

We are subject to laws relating to the collectioge, retention, security, and transfer of persgndéntifiable information about our users
around the world. Much of the personal informatioat we collect, especially financial informatias yegulated by multiple laws. User data
protection laws may be interpreted and appliednsigiently from country to country. In many caghese laws apply not only to third-party
transactions, but also to transfers of informabetween or among ourselves, our subsidiaries, et parties with which we have commer
relations. These laws continue to develop in wagsannot predict and that may adversely impacbasiness.

Regulatory scrutiny of privacy, user data protettiase of data and data collection is increasing global basis. We are subject to a
number of privacy and similar laws and regulationthe countries in which we operate and these kvasregulations will likely continue to
evolve over time, both through regulatory and liegiige action and judicial decisions. Complyingihese varying national requirements
could cause us to incur substantial costs or requsrto change our business practices in a madrerse to our business and violations of
privacy-related laws can result in significant géaa. A determination that there have been viotaiof laws relating to our practices under
communications-based laws could expose us to ggnifdamage awards, fines and other penaltiesthadl, individually or in the aggregate,
materially harm our business. In particular, beeaafghe enormous number of texts, emails and athrmunications we send to our users,
communications laws that provide a specified mayedamage award or fine for each violation (sucthase described below) could result in
particularly large awards or fines.
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For example, the Federal Communications Commisaiended certain of its regulations under the TeleptConsumer Protection Act,
or TCPA, in 2012 and 2013 in a manner that couttiease our exposure to liability for certain typéselephonic communication with
customers, including but not limited to text me&sagp mobile phones. Under the TCPA, plaintiffs rmagk actual monetary loss or statutory
damages of $500 per violation, whichever is greated courts may treble the damage award for witlfiknowing violations. We are regula
subject to class-action lawsuits, as well as imtliai lawsuits, containing allegations that our besses violated the TCPA. For example, we
recently settled Murray v. Bill Me Later (filed the U.S. District Court for the Northern Distridtlfinois in June 2012), which alleged that
Bill Me Later made calls featuring artificial orgrecorded voices without prior consent. These l&g/sand other private lawsuits not currently
alleged as class actions, seek damages (incluthigary damages) and injunctive relief, among oteeedies. Given the enormous numbt
communications we send to our users, a determméiiat there have been violations of the TCPA beptommunicationsased statutes col
expose us to significant damage awards that conddyjidually or in the aggregate, materially haror dusiness.

We post on our websites our privacy policies arattites concerning the collection, use and discéostiuser data. Any failure, or
perceived failure, by us to comply with our pospeivacy policies or with any regulatory requirermreeat orders or other federal, state or
international privacy or consumer protection-reddiavs and regulations could result in proceedorgsctions against us by governmental
entities or others (e.g., class action privacgdition), subject us to significant penalties angatiee publicity, require us to change our busit
practices, increase our costs and adversely ajtedbusiness. Data collection, privacy and sectwdye become the subject of increasing pi
concern. If Internet and mobile users were to redbeir use of our websites, mobile platforms, pats, and services as a result of these
concerns, our business could be harmed. As notgkalwve are also subject to the possibility of siggcbreaches, which themselves may re
in a violation of these laws.

New and existing laws and regulations could harmhusiness.

It is not always clear how laws and regulationsegaing matters relevant to our business, such@septy ownership, copyrights,
trademarks, and other intellectual property isspasllel imports and distribution controls, congurprotection, taxation, libel and defamation,
obscenity, and personal privacy, apply to our esses. Many of these laws were adopted prior tadlient of the Internet, mobile, and rele
technologies and, as a result, do not contemplageldress the unique issues of the Internet aatecktechnologies. Many of these laws,
including some of those that do reference the freieare subject to interpretation by the courtaimngoing basis and, as a result, their
applicability and scope remain uncertain. As ouivdies, the products and services we offer, andgeographical scope continue to expand,
regulatory agencies or courts may claim or hold weor our users are subject to additional requénets (including licensure) or prohibited
from conducting our business in their jurisdictieither generally or with respect to certain agidfinancial and political events have
increased the level of regulatory scrutiny on lazgmpanies, and regulatory agencies may view nsadteinterpret laws and regulations
differently than they have in the past and in a nesradverse to our businesses. Our success amaded visibility have driven some existing
businesses that perceive us to be a threat tolihsinesses to raise concerns about our businadsisito policymakers and regulators. These
businesses and their trade association groups gmiginificant resources in their efforts to shape legal and regulatory regimes in countries
where we have significant operations. They may esntilese resources in an effort to change the Eghlregulatory regimes in ways intent
to reduce the effectiveness of our businessestandbility of users to use our products and sesvice

For example, these established businesses haed @iacerns relating to pricing, parallel impopigfessional seller obligations,
selective distribution networks, stolen goods, caghits, trademarks and other intellectual propeghits and the liability of the provider of an
Internet marketplace for the conduct of its useftated to those and other issues. Any change®tiedfal or regulatory regimes in a manner
would increase our liability for third-party listis could negatively impact our business.

Numerous U.S. states and foreign jurisdictionduisiog the State of California, have regulationgargling “auctions’and the handling ¢
property by “secondhand dealers” or “pawnbrokeg&everal states and some foreign jurisdictions ladtesnpted to impose such regulations
upon us or our users, and others may attempt godio the future. Attempted enforcement of theseslagainst some of our users appears to |
increasing and we could be required to change thewe or our users do business in ways that inereasts or reduce revenues, such as
forcing us to prohibit listings of certain itemsrestrict certain listing formats in some locatiovée could also be subject to fines or other
penalties, and any of these outcomes could harrbuginess.

A number of the lawsuits against us relating tderaark issues seek to have our websites subjeciférorable local laws. For example,
“trademark exhaustion” principles provide trademawkners with certain rights to control the saleof
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branded authentic product until it has been placethe market by the trademark holder or with thklér's consent. The application of
“trademark exhaustion” principles is largely unksettin the context of the Internet, and if tradeknawners are able to force us to prohibit
listings of certain items in one or more locatiomst, business could be harmed.

As we expand and localize our international adg#sitwe are increasingly becoming obligated to dgmyith the laws of the countries or
markets in which we operate. In addition, becauseservices are accessible worldwide and we fatdlisales of goods and provide services t«
users worldwide, one or more jurisdictions mayroldéat we or our users are required to comply wi#ir laws based on the location of our
servers or one or more of our users, or the locaifdhe product or service being sold or providedn ecommerce transaction. For example,
we were found liable in France, under French lawnfrfansactions on some of our websites worldwide did not involve French buyers or
sellers. Laws regulating Internet and ecommercepemies outside of the United States are genersly favorable to us than those in the
United States. Compliance may be more costly or ragyire us to change our business practices tiratesur service offerings, and the
imposition of any regulations on us or our usery hmam our business. In addition, we may be sultgentultiple overlapping legal or
regulatory regimes that impose conflicting requiesns on us (e.g., in crob®rder trade). Our alleged failure to comply wibheign laws coul
subject us to penalties ranging from criminal poogien to significant fines to bans on our servjéesddition to the significant costs we may
incur in defending against such actions.

Following the global financial crisis of 2008, UfSderal lawmakers enacted the Dodd-Frank Act audihg the federal government’s
oversight of consumer financial products and sygteisk in the U.S. financial system. The geneftda of the financial reform law has been,
and we expect will continue to be, to require Pay®aake additional disclosures to its users anichpose new restrictions and requirements
on certain of its activities, resulting in new cdiapce requirements and obligations that coulddase our costs, may result in increased
litigation and the need to make expensive prodhahges, and may otherwise adversely impact ounessi

In addition, we also expect that the continued an@ntation of the Dodd-Frank Act will adversely Bopsome significant traditional
revenue streams for banks. For example, in Jung,20& Federal Reserve Board issued a final rylping debit card interchange fees. As a
result of this and other regulations implementimg financial reform law, banks may increase theiserfees required for PayPal to process
transactions (e.g., service fees for automatedintg@ouse transactions), which would increasecosts and could adversely affect our
business.

We are regularly subject to general litigation, tegtory disputes, and government inquiries.

We are regularly subject to claims, lawsuits (idahg class actions and individual lawsuits), gomeent investigations, and other
proceedings involving competition and antitrustellectual property, privacy, consumer protectiacgessibility claims, securities, tax, labor
and employment, commercial disputes, content géebizy our users, services and other matters.riicpkar, our businesses face ongoing
intellectual property litigation, as further disses below. The number and significance of thegeutiés and inquiries have increased as our
company has grown larger, our businesses have dggddn scope and geographic reach, and our prodadtservices have increased in
complexity. In addition, some of the laws and regjohs affecting Internet and mobile commerce anmtsamer credit are subject to ongoing
interpretation by the courts and governmental aitis, and the resulting uncertainty in the scapé application of these laws and regulation
increases the risk that we will be subject to geawaaims and governmental actions alleging viotadiof those laws and regulations.

The outcome and impact of such claims, lawsuitgegument investigations, and proceedings cannprédicted with certainty.
Regardless of the outcome, such investigationgpamckedings can have an adverse impact on us leeoblegal costs, diversion of
management resources, and other factors. Detergniegerves for our pending litigation is a compfext-intensive process that is subject to
judgment calls. It is possible that a resolutiomé or more such proceedings could require usakeersubstantial payments to sati
judgments, fines or penalties or to settle claimgroceedings, any of which could materially adegraffect our business, financial positic
results of operations, or cash flows. These prdogsdould also result in reputational harm, criahiganctions, consent decrees, or orders
preventing us from offering certain products, awvames, or requiring a change in our business fragtin costly ways, or requiring
development of non-infringing or otherwise alteprdducts or technologies. Any of these consequermalsl materially adversely affect our
business and results of operations.

We are subject to regulatory activity and antitrlisjation under competition laws.
We are subject to scrutiny by various governmephaigs under U.S. and foreign laws and regulatioefjding competition laws. Some
jurisdictions also provide private rights of actimn competitors or consumers to assert claimsit-competitive conduct. Other companies

government agencies have in the past and may ifuthee allege that our actions
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violate the antitrust or competition laws of theitgd States, individual states, the European Cosionsor other countries, or otherwise
constitute unfair competition. An increasing numbegovernments are regulating competition law\aiigis, including increased scrutiny in
large markets such as China. Our business partpergshagreements or arrangements with customesther companies could give rise to
regulatory action or antitrust litigation. Some uwkgors, particularly those outside of the Unitedt&s, may perceive our business to have so
much market power that otherwise uncontroversialrimss practices could be deemed anticompetitiggal®d competition authorities have
conducted market studies of our industries. Suaimd and investigations, even if without foundatioray be very expensive to defend, inw
negative publicity and substantial diversion of eg@ment time and effort and could result in sigaifit judgments against us or require us to
change our business practices.

We are subject to patent litigation.

We have repeatedly been sued for allegedly infriggither parties’ patents. We are a defendannumaber of patent suits and have beer
notified of several other potential patent disput¥e expect that we will increasingly be subjecpétent infringement claims because, among
other reasons:

» our products and services continue to expand ipesead complexit

e we continue to expand into new businesses, incfutfirough acquisitions; a

« the universe of patent owners who may claim Wwtany of the companies that we have acquireduocustomers infringe their
patents, and the aggregate number of patents dedthy such patent owners, continues to increase.

Such claims may be brought directly against us@rajainst our customers whom we may indemnifyeeilecause we are contractually
obligated to do so or we choose to do so as a éssimatter. We believe that an increasing numb#irese claims against us and other
technology companies have been, and continue timikiated by third parties whose sole or primaunginess is to assert such claims. In
addition, we have seen significant patent dispb&t@een operating companies in some technologystnds. Patent claims, whether
meritorious or not, are time-consuming and costlgdéfend and resolve, and could require us to reagensive changes in our methods of
doing business, enter into costly royalty or lidagsagreements, make substantial payments tosatilsferse judgments or settle claims or
proceedings, or cease conducting certain operatiamsh would harm our business.

Our tickets business is subject to regulatory, cetitipe and other risks that could harm this busie
Our tickets business, which includes our StubHuirimss, is subject to numerous risks, including:

e Some jurisdictions, in particular jurisdictioostside the United States, prohibit the resalevehetickets (anti-scalping laws) at prices
above the face value of the tickets or at all,ighly regulate the resale of tickets, and new lawd regulations or changes to existing
laws and regulations imposing these or other @&tnis could limit or inhibit our ability to opemtor our users’ ability to continue to
use, our tickets business.

» Regulatory agencies or courts may claim or tioéd we are responsible for ensuring that our usergply with these laws and
regulations.

* In many jurisdictions, our tickets business d&seon commercial partnerships with event orgasieeticensed ticket vendors, which
we must develop and maintain on acceptable termsufotickets business to be successful.

» Our tickets business is subject to seasonal flticlosiand the general economic and business consdithat impact the sporting eve
and live entertainment industries.

« A portion of the tickets inventory sold by seden the StubHub website is processed by Stubhldigital form. Systems failures,
security breaches, theft or other disruptions thsatilt in the loss of such selletgkets inventory, could result in significant cesind ¢
loss of consumer confidence in our tickets business

« Lawsuits alleging a variety of causes of actibage in the past, and may in the future, be flgdinst StubHub and eBay by venue
owners, competitors, ticket buyers, and unsucckssket buyers. Such lawsuits could result in #igant costs and require us to
change our business practices in ways that nefatiffect our tickets business.

» Our tickets business also faces significant aetitipn from a number of sources, including tickgtservice companies, event
organizers, ticket brokers, and online and offticket resellers. Some ticketing service compargesnt organizers, and professional
sports teams have begun to issue event ticketaghrearious forms of electronic ticketing systeimet tare designed to restrict or
prohibit the transferability (and by extension, theale) of such event tickets either to favorrtbein resale affiliates or to discourage
resale or restrict resale of season tickets tefepmed, designated website. Ticketing service @nigs have also begun to use market
based pricing strategies or dynamic pricing to geanuch higher prices, and impose additional @giris on transferability, for
premium tickets.
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The listing or sale by our users of items that@diély infringe the intellectual property rightsrights owners, including pirated or
counterfeit items, may harm its business.

The listing or sale by our users of unlawful, caufgit or stolen goods or unlawful services, oesaflgoods or services in an unlawful
manner, has resulted and may continue to resaltégations of civil or criminal liability for uniaful activities against us (including the
employees and directors of our various entitiegdlving activities carried out by users through services. In a number of circumstances,
third parties, including government regulators &wd enforcement officials, have alleged that ouvises aid and abet violations of certain
laws, including laws regarding the sale of courmi¢ifems, laws restricting or prohibiting the tséerability (and by extension, the resale) of
digital goods (e.g., event tickets, books, musit saoftware), the fencing of stolen goods, seleafig&ribution channel laws, customs laws,
distance selling laws, anti-scalping laws with extgo the resale of tickets, and the sale of iteaiside of the United States that are regulatec
by U.S. export controls. For example:

» In Turkey, local prosecutors and courts are stigating our liability for allegedly illegal actis by users of our Turkish Marketplaces
business (GittiGidiyor). In accordance with loakland custom, they have indicted one or more mesydfehe board of directors of
our local Turkish subsidiary. We intend to defeiigbvously against any such actions and a growinglrar of these cases have been
dismissed by the relevant courts.

» In August 2012, we were informed that U.S. tigh of footwear with religious imagery were visible our local Indian site and we
immediately removed these listings. In Septembé&22@ criminal case was registered against usdia lim regard to these listings,
and we are challenging the prosecution of this.case

In addition, allegations of infringement of intedteal property rights, including but not limiteddounterfeit items, have resulted in
threatened and actual litigation from time to tibyerights owners, including the following luxuryasrd owners: Tiffany & Co. in the United
States; Rolex S.A. and Coty Prestige Lancaster is@&mbH in Germany; Louis Vuitton Malletier and Giian Dior Couture in France; and
L'Oréal SA, Lancome Parfums et Beauté & Cie, anddratoire Garnier & Cie in several European coestrPlaintiffs in these and similar
suits seek, among other remedies, injunctive ralief damages. Statutory damages for copyrighadeinark violations could range up to
$150,000 per copyright violation and $2,000,000tpegtemark violation in the United States, and meyeven higher in other jurisdictions. In
the past, we have paid substantial amounts in abiemewith resolving certain trademark and copytighits. These and similar suits may also
force us to modify our business practices in a reatimat increases costs, lowers revenue, makesehsites and mobile platforms less
convenient to customers, and requires us to sp#rstantial resources to take additional proteatieasures or discontinue certain service
offerings in order to combat these practices. lditewh, we have received significant media attemtielating to the listing or sale of illegal or
counterfeit goods, which could damage our reputatiiminish the value of our brand names, and nusslees reluctant to use our products and
services.

Use of our payments services for illegal purposeddharm our business.

PayPal's payment system is susceptible to poténtikdgal or improper uses, including illegal oméi gambling, fraudulent sales of goods
or services, illicit sales of prescription medioas or controlled substances, piracy of softwamyies, music, and other copyrighted or
trademarked goods, money laundering, terroristfiivag, bank fraud, child pornography traffickingobibited sales of alcoholic beverages or
tobacco products, online securities fraud, and eragpng, promoting, facilitating or instructing etis to engage in illegal activities. There has
been an increased focus by intellectual propegiytsiowners and government officials on the roég¢ fayments systems play in the sale of,
payment for, pirated digital goods on the Interpeitnarily through file sharing services. Changetaiw have increased the penalties for
intermediaries providing payment services for geriiegal activities and additional payments-rethproposals are under active consideration
by government authorities. Intellectual properghts owners may seek to bring legal action agg@iagment companies such as PayPal and
other entities that are peripherally involved ie #ale of infringing items. Rights owners have &®oeasingly gone into U.S. courts and
obtained injunctions requiring PayPal to cease liagdransactions for named websites and thirdigsiin most cases located outside the
United States) and to hold the funds of such pagending judicial resolution of the rights ownegtslims, which disrupts the relationship
between PayPal and such parties.

Any resulting claims could damage our reputatiod any resulting liabilities, loss of transactiorwoe or increased costs could harm
business and our financial results.

We are subject to risks associated with informat@seminated through our services.

Online services companies may be subject to claétasing to information disseminated through ttseirvices, including claims alleging
defamation, libel, breach of contract, invasiompotacy, negligence, copyright or trademark infengent,
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among other things. The laws relating to the ligbdf online services companies for informatiosgiminated through their services are su
to frequent challenges both in the United Statekfareign jurisdictions. Any liabilities incurred @ result of these matters could require us to
incur additional costs and harm our reputation @ndbusiness.

Our potential liability to third parties for theargrovided content on our sites, particularly in$dittions outside the United States wt
laws governing Internet transactions are unsettte; increase. If we become liable for informatwovided by our users and carried on our
service in any jurisdiction in which we operate, ezeild be directly harmed and we may be forcednipléement new measures to reduce our
exposure to this liability, including expending stdmtial resources or discontinuing certain sereiterings, which would negatively affect our
financial results.

Changes to our programs to protect buyers and igetieuld increase our costs and loss rate.

Our eBay and PayPal buyer protection programs septehe means by which we compensate users wisvédhat they have been
defrauded, have not received the item that theghmsed or have received an item different from wiest described. In addition, users who
pay through PayPal may have reimbursement rigbta their payment card company or bank, which in tuill seek recovery from PayPal.
We expect to continue to receive communicationsifusers requesting reimbursement or threateniegrmmencing legal action against us if
no reimbursement is made. Our liability for thesa sf claims is slowly beginning to be clarifiedl$ome jurisdictions and may be higher in
some non-U.S. jurisdictions than it is in the Uitgyation involving liability for any such thirgharty actions could be costly and time consur
for us, divert management attention, result inéased costs of doing business, lead to adversenprig or otherwise harm our business. In
addition, affected users will likely complain tayrdatory agencies that could take action againsnekiding imposing fines or seeking
injunctions.

Over the last several years we have enhanced frex bad seller protections offered by PayPal otagenf our Marketplaces and in
certain countries, and may further enhance thostgtions in the future. Changes to PayPal’'s baperseller protection programs could resul
in changes and fluctuations in our Payments trdizsaloss rate. For the year ended December 314,201r Payments transaction losses
(including both direct losses and buyer protecpiesiouts) totaled $465 million , representing 0.28R6ur net total payment volume.

Our dispute resolution process in the United StaktesUnited Kingdom, Canada, Australia and Germaoyides that we will generally
reimburse the buyer for the full amount of an iteqpurchase price (including original shipping cp#tthe item was not received or if the item
received was significantly different from that deised in the listing and the seller does not prevédequate resolution to the buyer. We have
recently simplified the process for filing a dispuesolution claim, which has resulted in a sigatfit increase in the number of cases being
opened, which has increased our costs associatedheiresolutions process. These changes cowdalsegatively received by, and lead to
dissatisfaction on the part of, some of our sellangl may also result in an increase in buyer femdlassociated transaction losses.

Increased costs, loss rates or liabilities resyitiom our buyer and seller protection programddbave an adverse effect on our busi
and financial results.

We may be unable to adequately protect or enfouceéntellectual property rights, or third partiesay allege that we are infringing their
intellectual property rights.

We believe the protection of our intellectual pndpgeincluding our trademarks, patents, copyrightenain names, trade dress, and trade
secrets, is critical to our success. We seek tteprour intellectual property rights by relying applicable laws and regulations in the United
States and internationally, as well as a varietgdrhinistrative procedures. We also rely on comtic@aestrictions to protect our proprietary
rights when offering or procuring products and &y, including confidentiality and invention assigent agreements entered into with our
employees and contractors and confidentiality agesds with parties with whom we conduct business.

However, effective intellectual property protectimay not be available in every country in which promducts and services are made
available, and contractual arrangements and otaps sve have taken to protect our intellectual prigpmay not prevent third parties from
infringing or misappropriating our intellectual ety or deter independent development of equitalesuperior intellectual property rights
by others. Trademark, copyright, patent, domainaanade dress and trade secret protection isexgrgnsive to maintain and may require
litigation. We must protect our intellectual progyefrights and other proprietary rights in an in@ieg number of jurisdictions, a process that is
expensive and time consuming and may not be sudat@svery jurisdiction. Also, we may not be alidediscover or determine the extent of
any unauthorized use of our proprietary rights. Nalee licensed in the past, and expect to licenslaeifiuture, certain of our proprietary rights,
such as
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trademarks or copyrighted material, to others. €Hiegensees may take actions that diminish theevafiour proprietary rights or harm our
reputation. Any failure to adequately protect oioece our intellectual property rights, or signiid costs incurred in doing so, could materially
harm our business.

As the number of products in the software industcyeases and the functionality of these produathér overlap, and as we acquire
technology through acquisitions or licenses, we tmegome increasingly subject to infringement claimsluding patent, copyright, and
trademark infringement claims. Litigation may beegsary to determine the validity and scope op#itent and other intellectual property
rights of others. The ultimate outcome of any altém is uncertain and, regardless of outcome saich claim, with or without merit, may be
time-consuming, result in costly litigation, divenanagement’s time and attention from our busirmesgiire us to stop selling, delay shipping,
or redesign our products, or require us to paytsmtisl amounts to satisfy judgments or settlenctadr lawsuits or to pay substantial royalty ol
licensing fees, or to satisfy indemnification obliigns that we have with some of our customers.f@ilure to obtain necessary license or othe
rights, or litigation or claims arising out of itiextual property matters, may harm our business.

Changes to payment card networks or bank feess rokepractices could harm PayPal.

PayPal does not directly access the payment cawbries, such as Visa and MasterCard, that enalP&#'s acceptance of credit cards
and debit cards (including some types of prepaids)aAs a result, PayPal must rely on banks ogrgtayment processors to process
transactions, and must pay fees for the serviaesn fime to time, payment card networks have irswdaand may increase in the future, the
interchange fees and assessments that they cluargach transaction which accesses their netwBidgPals payment card processors have
right to pass any increases in interchange feesissgissments on to PayPal as well as increasewreiiees for processing. Any changes in
interchange fees and assessments could increaBalRayperating costs and reduce its profit margins

In addition, in some jurisdictions, governmentsénasquired Visa and MasterCard to reduce interobh&ees, or have opened
investigations as to whether Visa or MasterCanafsrchange fees and practices violate antitrust llawhe United States, the Federal Reserve
Board issued a final rule capping debit card itange fees at significantly lower rates than VisMasterCard previously charged. In the
European Union, the Multilateral Interchange FedH)MRegulation limits credit and debit interchariges for payments to 0.3% and 0.2%,
respectively. The MIF Regulation, which is expedietbecome effective in the second half of 2015y significantly impact PayPal’s pricing
policy in the European Union. Any such materialugttbn in credit or debit card interchange ratethnUnited States or other markets could
jeopardize PayP's competitive position against traditional creaiitd debit card processors, although it would aiseet PayPal’'s costs. Future
changes to those regulations or to PayHailisiness could potentially cause PayPal to léetleas a payment card network, which could su
PayPal to additional regulation and require Pay®ahange its business practices, which could reéayPal's revenue and adversely affect
PayPal’s business.

PayPal is required by its processors to comply wéthment card network operating rules, includingcigl operating rules for payment
service providers to merchants, and PayPal hagdgoereimburse its processors for any fines tleyaasessed by payment card networks as
result of any rule violations by PayPal or PayPealistomers. The payment card networks set anciatiethe card operating rules. Payment
card networks have from time to time alleged tratous aspects of PayPal’s business model vidiatget operating rules. If such allegations
are not resolved, they could result in materia¢dimnd penalties or require changes in PayPalladsssthat may be costly. The payment card
networks could adopt new operating rules or intgrpr re-interpret existing rules that PayPal ®pitocessors might find difficult or even
impossible to follow, or costly to implement. Asesult, PayPal could lose its ability to give cuséss the option of using payment cards to
fund their payments or the choice of currency inchlthey would like their card to be charged. IfyPal were unable to accept payment cards
or meaningfully limited in its ability to do sosibusiness would be seriously damaged.

PayPal and its payment card processors have impteghspecific business processes for merchantrogssoin order to comply with
operating rules for providing services to merchalts any failure to comply could result in fin€ayPal also could be, and in the past has
been, subject to fines from payment card netwdrkdails to detect that merchants are engagingdtivities that are illegal or that are
considered “high risk,” primarily the sale of céntéypes of digital content. For “high risk” merafta, PayPal must either prevent such
merchants from using PayPal or register such matsheith the payment card networks and conducttahdil monitoring with respect to such
merchants. Although the amount of these fines lbad@&en material to date, any additional finedfuture could become material and could
result in a termination of PayPal’s ability to agtpayment cards or require changes in PayPalmegsofor registering new customers. This
would significantly damage PayPal’'s business. PiyRatail point-of-sale solution and PayPal Heredact are also subject to payment card
network operating rules, which may increase théscofthose products or otherwise negatively impiaeir deployment.
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Changes in how customers fund their PayPal transastcan have a material effect on our resultspsrations.

PayPal pays significant transaction fees when ousts fund payment transactions using credit cdodser fees when customers fund
payments with debit cards, nominal fees when custsrfund payment transactions by electronic trarefféunds from bank accounts, and no
fees when customers fund payment transactions émexisting PayPal account balance or through #iy®& Credit products. Because
customers fund a significant portion of PayPal'grpant volume using credit and debit cards, PayPiaiéscial success is highly sensitive to
changes in the rate at which its customers funanesys using credit and debit cards. Some of PayRaktomers may prefer to use credit and
debit cards if these cards offer functionality deehefits not associated with the use of their kordounts. Some of PayPal’s offerings,
including the ability of buyers to make a limitedmber of “guest” payments without opening a Payabunt, have a higher rate of payment
card funding than PayPal’s basic product offerifag.increase in the portion of PayPal's payment m@wsing credit and debit cards would
materially and adversely affect PayPal’s finanprmiformance. Some of PayPal’s plans to lower isliiog costs, including both the PayPal
Credit products and the ability for buyers to dgfayment for a short period of time on some tratizas, may increase the risk to PayPal of
nonpayment by buyers. If we experience an increaiezes associated with our funding mix or in I@sassociated with nonpayment by buyers
our business and financial results could suffer.

Our credit products and services expose us to audit risks.

Our PayPal Credit products are offered to a widgeaof consumers, and the financial success obtlEgiess depends on the ability of
PayPal and the issuing banks of the PayPal Credlifujgts to manage credit risk related to thoseyetsd The lenders extend credit at the poin
of sale using our proprietary segmentation anditsedring algorithms and other analytical techeisjdesigned to analyze the credit risk of
specific customers based on their past purchasidgpayment history as well as their credit scofégse algorithms and techniques may not
accurately predict the creditworthiness of a corsudue to inaccurate assumptions about a particalsumer or the economic environment,
among other factors. The accuracy of the predistand the ability of the lenders and PayPal to macaedit risk related to the PayPal Credit
products may also be affected by legal or regwatbanges (e.g., bankruptcy laws and minimum paymegulations), competitors’ actions,
changes in consumer behavior, and other factolender may incorrectly interpret the data produogthese algorithms in setting its credit
policies, which may impact the financial performarmd the PayPal Credit products. In addition, eocoiccand financial conditions in the Unil
States may affect consumer confidence levels atuteeconsumers’ ability or willingness to use drdadcluding the credit extended by a
lender to consumers who use the PayPal Credit ptsdehich could impair the growth and profitalyildf our PayPal business.

Over the past several years, the volume of crediineled by the financial institutions issuing tfa/Pal Credit products has increased. In
the United States, PayPal purchases the receivaiégimg to these consumer loans extended bystherig banks, and therefore bears the risk
of loss in the event of loan defaults. Like othesibesses with significant exposure to losses ftonsumer credit, we face the risk that accour
holders will default on their payment obligationghwrespect to the consumer loans, making the vabégs uncollectible and creating the risk
of potential charge-offs. The rate at which recklga were charged off as uncollectible, or thecherge-off rate, was approximately 5.66% fol
the year ended December 31, 2014. The non-paymatnamong users of PayPal Credit products mayaserdue to, among other things,
changes to underwriting standards by PayPal anfirthecial institutions issuing the PayPal Crediqucts, worsening economic conditions,
such as a recession or greater austerity in theetd §itates, and high unemployment rates. Consuntersniss payments on their obligations
often fail to repay them, and consumers who filepimtection under the bankruptcy laws generallyndbrepay their loans.

PayPal has entered into an agreement with Synci{fonyerly GE Capital Retail Bank) pursuant to whieayPal, one of its affiliates o
third party partner of PayPal will, subject to eémtconditions, purchase a dual branded retailitcadd portfolio from Synchrony with PayPal
ultimately owning the related receivables. Thisisaction is currently expected to close in thetfoguarter of 2016, although there can be no
assurance that this transaction will close on terangeently contemplated, or at all. If this trartsaT is consummated, it will increase the risks
relating to our ownership of consumer loan recdemhn 2013, PayPal began a pilot program, workwtg WebBank, for WebBank to offer
working capital financing to selected sellers ia thnited States, and for PayPal to purchase taéeceteceivables. Similar programs are also
available in the United Kingdom and Australia. Leda merchants would present risks similar to thiiseussed above associated with the
PayPal Credit products.

We purchase receivables related to PayPal Creatfityots and other credit accounts through borrowamgscash resources. If we are
unable to fund our purchase of these receivableguadely or in a cost-effective manner, or if we anable to efficiently manage the cash
resources utilized to purchase the receivablesremuits of operations would be significantly adgexrsely affected.
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PayPal is not a bank or licensed lender and relipen third parties to make the loans and providedther services critical to its
business.

As PayPal is neither a chartered financial insttunor licensed to make loans in any state, wet malyg on a bank or licensed lender to
offer the PayPal Credit products in the United &aCurrently, when a consumer makes a purchasg ad?ayPal Credit product, a chartered
financial institution extends credit to the consunfiends the extension of credit at the point dé sand advances funds to the merchant. We
subsequently purchase and retain most of the cagrstgoeivables related to the consumer loans madleetchartered financial institution ar
as a result of the purchase, bear most of theofitdss in the event of loan defaults. Although thartered financial institution continues to
own each of the customer accounts, we own mosteofdlated consumer receivables, and we are apomsible for servicing functions rela
to the customer account.

Comenity Capital Bank and WebBank, which are bottustrial banks chartered by the State of Utalreatiy issue PayPal Credit
products, with Comenity Capital Bank originating tmajority of new loans. As part of this arrangetn@ebBank has agreed to take
ownership of (and originate loans with respectaibyustomer accounts in the event of a terminatioimterruption in Comenity Capital Bank’s
ability to lend. Nevertheless, any terminationraerruption of WebBank’s or Comenity Capital Banéksility to lend could result in the
inability to originate any new transactions undey PayPal Credit products, which would requireitieeto reach a similar arrangement with
another chartered financial institution, whichpdssible at all, may not be available on favorabtes, or to obtain our own bank charter,
which would be a time-consuming and costly proeagswould subject us to a number of additional lang regulations, compliance with
which would be burdensome.

The PayPal Credit products also rely on third-pargrchant processors and payment gateways to groe@sactions. For the year endec
December 31, 2014, approximately 16% of all tratisaczolume by dollar amount through the PayPaldneroducts was settled through the
facilities of a single vendor. Any disruption teetfe third-party payment processing and gatewaycssrwould adversely affect the PayPal
Credit products.

PayPal’s failure to manage customer funds propedyld harm its business.

PayPal’s ability to manage and account accuratelgdistomer funds requires a high level of intenmadtrols. In some of the markets that
PayPal serves and currencies that PayPal offey®dPhas a limited operating history and limitegpenence in managing these internal
controls. As PayPal’'s business continues to gromyuist continue to strengthen its internal conteasordingly. PayPal’'s success requires
significant public confidence in its ability to hdle large and growing transaction volumes and ansoaincustomer funds. Any failure to
maintain necessary controls or to manage customneisfaccurately could severely diminish customeraig?ayPal’s products and/or result in
penalties and fines, which could have an adverfeetafn our business and financial results.

Failure to deal effectively with fraudulent actie# on our websites would increase our loss ratk lzerm our business, and could
severely diminish consumer confidence in and useio$ervices.

We face risks with respect to fraudulent activitiesits websites and periodically receive comptafrdm buyers and sellers who may not
have received the goods that they had contractpdrithase or payment for the goods that a buyecbattacted to purchase. In some
European and Asian jurisdictions, buyers may a#seelthe right to withdraw from a sale made by dgmsional seller within a specified time
period. While we can, in some cases, suspend ttwuats of users who fail to fulfill their paymentdelivery obligations to other users, we do
not have the ability to require users to make payroedeliver goods, or otherwise make users whtier than through its buyer protection
program, which in the United States we refer ast®ay Money Back Guarantee. Although we have impleied measures to detect and re
the occurrence of fraudulent activities, combat bager experiences and increase buyer satisfadtioluding evaluating sellers on the basis o
their transaction history and restricting or susjieg their activity, there can be no assurancettiege measures will be effective in combating
fraudulent transactions or improving overall satision among sellers, buyers, and other particgakdditional measures to address fraud
could negatively affect the attractiveness of arviges to buyers or sellers, resulting in a reidaan the ability to attract new users or retain
current users, damage to our reputation, or a ditiain in the value of its brand names.

Failure to deal effectively with fraud, fictitiotiansactions, bad transactions, and negative custagmperiences would increase our loss
rate and harm our business, and could severelyrdghiconsumer confidence in and use of our services

PayPal incurs substantial losses due to claims bBoyers that merchants have not performed or ket joods or
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services do not match the mercharmescription. PayPal seeks to recover such Idss®sthe merchant, but may not be able to recavéull if
the merchant is unwilling or unable to pay. Paydst incurs losses from claims that the custonendt authorize the purchase, from buyer
fraud, from erroneous transmissions and from custerwho have closed bank accounts or have inserftidunds in them to satisfy payments.
In addition, if losses incurred by PayPal relaegayment card transactions become excessivecthdg potentially resultin ~ PayPal losing
the right to accept payment cards for paymenthénetvent that PayPal was unable to accept payraetd,che number of transactions
processed through PayPal would decrease subshaatial our business would suffer. PayPal is siryilaubject to the risk of fraudulent
activity associated with merchants, users of PagiPadlit products and third parties handling itsrustormation. PayPal has taken measures t
detect and reduce the risk of fraud, but these ureasieed to be continually improved and may naffestive against new and continually
evolving forms of fraud or in connection with nevoduct offerings. If these measures do not sucaaadhusiness will suffer.

PayPal’s retail point of sale solutions exposeasdditional risks.

PayPal has announced several retail point of sdldiens, which enable merchants to accept paymesitgy a payments card reader
attached to, or otherwise communicating with, a ieatevice or to scan payment cards and codes tisenmobile device’s embedded camera
and which will enable customers to use their motbdeices to pay hands-free. To the extent that 8agdhtinues to expand its product and
service offerings at the retail point of sale, wi#l face additional risks, including:

* increased expectations from offline retaileigareling the reliability and availability of its 9gsns and services and correspondingly
lower amounts of downtime, which PayPal may noable to meet;

» significant competition at the retail point @i, particularly from established payment cardsigers such as Visa, MasterCard and
American Express, many of which have substant@dater resources than we do;

» increased targeting by fraudsters, and givehdhafraud models are less developed in this aveanay experience increases in fraud
and associated transaction losses as we adjustuduient activity at the point of sale;

e exposure to product liability claims to the extthat hardware devices that we produce for usieeatetail point of sale malfunction or
not in compliance with laws , which could resulsubstantial liability and require product recalisother actions;

e exposure to new or additional laws and regulat

* increased reliance on third parties involvechwgitocessing in-store payments, including indepensieftware providers, electronic
point of sale providers, hardware providers (suhbash register and pin-pad providers), paymertgssors and banks that enable in-
store transactions; and

» lower profit margins than PayPsilbther payment solutiol

Unless we are able to successfully manage thdse nluding driving adoption of, and significartlume through, our retail point of
sale solutions over time, our business may suffer.

Our Enterprise business exposes us to additiosabri

Our Enterprise business faces its own risks antlectgges. Competition for Enterprise’s existing gudential clients is intense, and our
Enterprise business may not be able to add newtsl@ keep existing clients on favorable termstall. For example, a change in the
management of an Enterprise client could adveisi#ct our relationship with that client. In additi many of Enterprise’s client contracts
contain service level commitments. If our Enterpiligsisiness is unable to meet these commitmentsg|atsonships with its clients could be
damaged, and client rights to terminate their @t with our Enterprise business and/or finarmsalty provisions payable by our Enterprise
business may be triggered. These contracts comtauisions under which our Enterprise businessalggsed to indemnify Enterprise clients
against certain claims by third parties regardingproducts and services. If any existing Entegpcigents (in particular, the large merchants
and brands that our Enterprise business serves)to@xit the business we provide services tocheieed, declare bankruptcy, suffer other
financial difficulties, make indemnification clainagainst us, fail to pay amounts owed to our Emiggbusiness and/or terminate or modify
their relationships with our Enterprise businesanrunfavorable manner, our Enterprise business dmiadversely affected.

A portion of Enterprise’s net transaction reveraidérived from the value of ecommerce transactioatsflow through its suite of
commerce technologies. Accordingly, growth in Epitise’s net transaction revenue depends upon thnoed growth of the online
businesses of its clients. Our Enterprise busimessbe substantially impacted by any adverse cangdiin the offline businesses of an
Enterprise client that negatively impact that dii®online businesses. Any impairment of the offlinusiness of Enterprise clients, whether du
to financial difficulties, impairment of client bmds, reduction in marketing efforts, reductionhie humber of client retail stores or otherwise,
could negatively affect consumer traffic and safesugh
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Enterprise clients’ websites, which would resullawer revenues generated by our Enterprise busig Enterprise business also relies on
its clients’ ability to accurately forecast proddeimand and select and buy the inventory for tmiresponding online businesses. Under suct
arrangements, the client establishes product pacdgays our Enterprise business fees based eithefixed or variable percentage of
revenues, or on the activity performed. As a redulinterprise clients fail to accurately forecpsbduct demand or optimize or maintain act

to inventory, the client's ecommerce business (antyrn, our Enterprise fees) could be adversébcted.

Our Enterprise business holds some inventory oalbehits clients. If our Enterprise business imble to effectively manage and handle
this inventory, this may result in unexpected cdisét could adversely affect our Enterprise busin@sy theft of such inventory, or damage or
interruption to such inventory, including as a fesfiearthquakes, hurricanes, floods, fire, poless, labor disputes, terrorist attacks and
similar events and disruptions, could result irséssrelated to such inventory and disruptionseditisinesses of Enterprise clients, which ¢
in turn adversely affect our Enterprise busineskil&ve have insurance coverage to protect agautdt losses, it may be inadequate to covel
all losses, and we may not be able to fully colldct all, under these insurance policies.

Our Enterprise business processes personal inflmman behalf of its clients. The personal inforimaton customers of certain websites
operated by Enterprise clients may be regulate@uapplicable privacy laws and regulations. In s@aes, Enterprise’s use or disclosure of
that information may be restricted by contractealrts, laws and regulations, and any misuse or urified disclosure of that information co
negatively impact our Enterprise business andigats.

Our Enterprise business is in the process of erihguits marketing solutions platform and plans tignate existing clients to its new
marketing solutions platform. Our Enterprise busineould be negatively impacted if this projeaatayed, the functionality of the new
marketing solutions platform is not accepted bys#xg or new clients, or the new marketing solwiptatform does not operate as expected.

Our Enterprise business utilizes email marketindrtee consumer traffic to the websites operateddaye of its clients. Email could
become a less effective means of communicating avithmarketing to consumers for a variety of reasimtluding: problems with technolo
that make Enterprise’s email communications moffecdit to deliver and for consumers to read (etlae inability of some mobile devices to
adequately display email); consumers may disregendketing emails due to the large volume of suchilsnthey receive; the inability of filte
to effectively screen for unwanted emails, resglimincreased levels of junk mail, or “SPAM,” whimay overwhelm consumers’ email
accounts; increased use of social networking sitb&gh may result in decreased use of email asnagpy means of communication; continued
security concerns regarding Internet usage in @géfireim viruses, worms or similar problems; andé@ased governmental regulation or
restrictive policies adopted by Internet serviceviters that make it more difficult or costly talize email for marketing communications. If
any of our Enterprise entities were to end up oAl8Hists or lists of entities that have been invedvin sending unwanted, unsolicited emails,
their ability to contact customers through emaillddbe significantly restricted. If any of the fgeang were to occur, the demand for Enterg
email marketing solutions could decrease and oterfarise business could be harmed. Our Enterptisibss also utilizes mobile messaging
as a means of communicating with consumers, whaches risks similar to those described above foaiemarketing.

Our Enterprise business has relationships withcheamgines, comparison shopping sites, affiliateketars, online advertising networks,
and other websites to provide content, advertibangners, and other links to its clierdg€ommerce businesses. Our Enterprise business og
these relationships as significant sources ofitradfits clients’ ecommerce businesses. If weusr@ble to maintain these relationships or entel
into new relationships on acceptable terms, odityld attract new customers could be harmed.

eBay and our Enterprise businesses are party taice@cquisition agreements relating to entitiescpased by GSI Commerce prior to
acquisition of GSI Commerce. These agreements cubifect us to liabilities, which could harm ourt&iprise business.

We have substantial indebtedness, and we may suhstantial additional indebtedness in the futameg we may not generate sufficient
cash flow from our business to service our indetdsd. Failure to comply with the terms of our indebess could result in the acceleration of
our indebtedness, which could have an adverseteaffeour cash flow and liquidity.

We have a substantial amount of outstanding indeletes and we may incur substantial additional iretkiess in the future, including
under our commercial paper program and revolvirglitfacility or through public or private offeriagf debt securities. Our outstanding
indebtedness and any additional indebtedness we may have significant consequences,
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including, without limitation, any of the following

e requiring the dedication of a significant portiof our cash flow from operations to service mdeabtedness, thereby reducing the
amount of cash flow available for other purposesluiding capital expenditures and acquisitions;

e our indebtedness and leverage may increaseubnenability to downturns in our business, to cotitpe pressures, and to adverse
changes in general economic and industry conditions

» adverse changes in the ratings assigned to oursdehtities by credit rating agencies will likehcrease our borrowing cos

e our ability to obtain additional financing fororking capital, capital expenditures, acquisiticstsare repurchases or other general
corporate and other purposes may be limited; and

« our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, ahges in our business and our industry may bedi

Our ability to make payments of principal of antkiest on our indebtedness depends upon our fp&rfermance, which will be subject
to general economic conditions, industry cycles famahcial, business and other factors affectingamnsolidated results of operations and
financial condition, many of which are beyond oantrol. If we are unable to generate sufficienthcBew from operations in the future to
service our debt, we may be required to, amongr dkivegs:

e repatriate funds to the United States at substaatiacost
» seek additional financing in the debt or equity kets

» refinance or restructure all or a portion of owtébtednes
» sell selected assets;

» reduce or delay planned capital or operating exiperes

Such measures might not be sufficient to enabte service our debt. In addition, any such finagciefinancing or sale of assets might
not be available on economically favorable termataall.

Our revolving credit facility and the indenture puant to which certain of our outstanding debt sées were issued contain, and any
debt instruments we enter into in the future maytain, financial and other covenants that restriatould restrict, among other things, our
business and operations. If we fail to pay amoduatsunder, or breach any of the covenants in, aidstoument, then the lenders would
typically have the right to demand immediate repagtof all borrowings thereunder (subject in certzases to grace or cure period).
Moreover, any such acceleration and required repayf or default in respect of any of our indelbesk could, in turn, constitute an event of
default under other debt instruments, thereby tieguin the acceleration and required repaymetiaf other indebtedness. Any of these ev
could materially adversely affect our liquidity afidancial condition.

A downgrade in our credit ratings could materiadighversely affect our business.

The credit ratings assigned to our debt securitiesd change based upon, among other things, sultseof operations and financial
condition. These ratings are subject to ongoinduatimn by credit rating agencies, and there candassurance that any rating will not be
changed or withdrawn by a rating agency in thertutiMoreover, these credit ratings are not recontdatons to buy, sell or hold any of our
debt securities. Actual or anticipated changesowrdyrades in our credit ratings, including any ammeement that our ratings are under review
for a downgrade or have been assigned a negatil@kpwould likely increase our borrowing costdjieh could in turn have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition, resaftsperations, cash flows, and could also have i@ adverse effect on the market value of
the our common stock and outstanding debt secstritie

As of January 1, 2014, our long-term debt and steom funding were rated investment grade by Stahdad Poor's Financial
Services, LLC (long-term rated A, short-term rated, with a stable outlook), Moody's Investor Seev{long-term rated A2, short-term rated
P-1, with a stable outlook), and Fitch Ratings, (long-term rated A, short-term rated F-1, witht@b¢e outlook). Following the September
2014 announcement of our planned separation oPayPal business, Standard and Poor's Financiaic8syLLC and Moody's Investor
Service placed our long-term debt and shent funding ratings under review with negative licgtions, while Fitch Ratings, Inc. downgrac
our long-term debt from A to A- and short-term fimgifrom F1 to F2, retaining our investment gratédus, and has also placed those ratings
under review with negative implications. We did r&perience any material operational, fundingjapritlity impacts from this rating
downgrade. We expect that these credit rating dgemll continue to monitor developments in ouspled separation of PayPal, including
capital structure for each company after separatitnich could result in additional downgrades. Vi&elbse these ratings to enhance the
understanding of our sources of liquidity and tffeats of our ratings on our costs of funds. Ourbwing
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costs depend, in part, on our credit ratings apdathions already taken by these credit rating @geras described above will likely increase,
and any further downgrades would likely increasg,lmrrowing costs.

Our business and users may be subject to saleantdother taxes.

The application of indirect taxes (such as salesume tax, value-added tax (VAT), goods and sesvi@e, business tax and gross receipt
tax) to ecommerce businesses and to our useroimplex and evolving issue. Many of the fundamesiatiutes and regulations that impose
these taxes were established before the adoptbgramwth of the Internet and ecommerce. In manggasis not clear how existing statutes
apply to the Internet or ecommerce. In additionjegoments are increasingly looking for ways to @&se revenues, which has resulted in
discussions about tax reform and other legislaitéon to increase tax revenues, including thrandivect taxes. There are many transactions
that occur during the ordinary course of businessvhich the ultimate tax determination is uncertai

We do not collect taxes on the goods or servickbklgousers of our services. However, some jurisalis have implemented, or may
implement, laws that require out-of-state selldrgngible personal property to collect and remiets. In particular, the Streamlined Sales Ta
Project (an ongoing, multi-year effort by U.S. etahd local governments to pursue federal legisigtiat would require collection and
remittance of remote sales tax by out-of-stateesslicould allow states that meet certain simg@ltfan and other standards to require out-of-
state sellers to collect and remit sales taxesomalg purchased by in-state residents. The adopfisuch legislation could result in a use tax
collection responsibility for certain of our sefieiThis collection responsibility and the additiboasts associated with complex use tax
collection, remittance and audit requirements wonéike selling on our websites and mobile platfoless attractive for small business reta
and would harm our business, and the proliferatiostate legislation to expand sales and use thetion on Internet sales could adversely
affect some of our sellers and indirectly harm lousiness.

Several proposals have been made at the U.S astdti@cal levels that would impose additional taseshe sale of goods and services
over the Internet. These proposals, if adopteddcsubstantially impair the growth of ecommerce andbrands, and could diminish our
opportunity to derive financial benefit from outtiaties. While the U.S. federal governmenthoratorium on state and local taxation of Intt
access or multiple or discriminatory taxes on ecemu® has been extended through October 2015, tivistanium does not prohibit federal,
state or local authorities from collecting taxesoom income or from collecting certain taxes thatevin effect prior to the enactment of the
moratorium and/or one of its extensions.

From time to time, some taxing authorities in theted States have notified us that they believeowe them certain taxes imposed on
our or our affiliates’ services. These notificaidmve not resulted in any significant tax liatghtto date, but there is a risk that some
jurisdiction may be successful in the future, whiebuld harm our busines

Similar issues exist outside of the United Statdwere the application of VAT or other indirect taxan ecommerce providers is uncertair
and evolving. While we attempt to comply in thogggdictions where it is clear that a tax is duertain of our subsidiaries have, from time to
time, received claims relating to the applicabibifyindirect taxes to our fees. We have been paya@ on fees charged to certain of our users
in the European Union based on the service prosidiecation. On January 1, 2015, changes to thesrdétermining the place of supply (and
thus the country of taxation) for all European Unimased providers of electronically supplied seviwere implemented that require that we
pay VAT based on the residence or normal placeusiness of our customers. These changes may nesult paying a higher rate of VAT on
such fees. Additionally, we pay input VAT on applite taxable purchases within the various couninieghich we operate. In most cases, we
are entitled to reclaim this input VAT from the icars countries. However, because of our uniquenessi model, the application of the laws
and rules that allow such reclamation is sometiome®rtain. A successful assertion by one or mouatries that we are not entitled to reclaim
VAT could harm our business.

In certain jurisdictions, we collect and remit irait taxes. However, tax authorities may raise tipres about our obligation to collect a
remit such taxes, as well as the proper calculaif@uch taxes. Should any new taxes become apj#ita our fees or if the taxes we pay are
found to be deficient, our business could be harmed

A taxing authority may seek to impose a tax coitettreporting or record-keeping obligation on ca@mies that engage in or facilitate
ecommerce. Any failure by us to meet these requaremcould result in substantial monetary penadtiesother sanctions and could harm our
business. Taxing authorities may also seek to impas collection or reporting obligations basedhmnlocation of the product or service being
sold or provided in an ecommerce transaction, tigss of where the respective users are locatade $arisdictions could assert that we or an
affiliate is responsible for tax on the underlyimgpds or services sold on our sites. Impositioa discriminatory record keeping or tax
collecting requirement could decrease seller dgtim our sites and would harm our business. Faraighorities may also require us to help
ensure compliance by our
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users with local laws regulating professional ss|lncluding tax requirements. In addition, we é@eriodically received requests from tax
authorities in many jurisdictions for informatioagarding the transactions of large classes ofrsaile our sites, and in some cases we have
been legally obligated to provide this data. Thpasition of any requirements on us to disclosestation records for all or a class of sellers
tax or other regulatory authorities or to file faxms on behalf of any sellers, especially requiata that are imposed on us but not on
alternative means of ecommerce, and any use of tlea®rds to investigate, collect taxes from ospooite sellers, could decrease seller ac
on our sites and harm our business.

We may have exposure to greater than anticipatedidailities.

The determination of our worldwide provision focome taxes and other tax liabilities requires esfiom and significant judgment, and
there are many transactions and calculations wtheraltimate tax determination is uncertain. Likeny other multinational corporations, we
are subject to tax in multiple U.S. and foreign jiarisdictions and have structured our operation®tiuce our effective tax rate. Governments
are focused on ways to increase revenues, whichdmsgbuted to an increase in audit activity atahses taken by tax authorities. Our
determination of our tax liability is always sulijée audit and review by applicable domestic arrdifm tax authorities, and we are currently
undergoing a number of investigations, audits @wikws by taxing authorities throughout the woitatjuding with respect to our tax structc
Any adverse outcome of any such audit or reviewdcbave a negative effect on our business, operatisults and financial condition, and the
ultimate tax outcome may differ from the amountrded in our financial statements and may matgrgfect our financial results in the
period or periods for which such determination &de While we have established reserves basedsamations and estimates that we believe
are reasonable to cover such eventualities, tlessgwes may prove to be insufficient.

In addition, our future income taxes could be ageraffected by earnings being lower than antieigpgor by the incurrence of losses
jurisdictions that have lower statutory tax rated aigher than anticipated in jurisdictions thatdigher statutory tax rates, by changes ir
valuation of our deferred tax assets and liabdljtees a result of gains on our foreign exchandemignagement program, or changes in tax |
regulations, or accounting principles, as well @ain discrete items.

In light of continuing fiscal challenges in the thd States and many countries in Europe, varioteddeof government are also
increasingly focused on tax reform and other lagjigd action to increase tax revenue, includingomate income taxes. For example, the
economic downturn reduced tax revenues for UnitateS federal and state governments, and a nurmpeoosals to increase taxes from
corporate entities have been implemented or argbminsidered at various levels of government. &liesude a number of proposals to
modify the U.S. federal income tax laws applicableompanies, like ours, operating in multiple La8d foreign jurisdictions which, if
enacted, could materially increase our effectixeréde. A number of U.S. states have attempteddeease corporate tax revenues by taking a
expansive view of corporate presence to attemjphpmse corporate income taxes and other direchbasitaxes on companies that have no
physical presence in their state, and taxing aittesiin foreign jurisdictions may take similar icts. Many U.S. states are also altering their
apportionment formulas to increase the amountxaftike income/loss attributable to their state fimertain out-of-state businesses. Companie
that operate over the Internet, such as eBay, targat of some of these efforts. If more taxinthatities are successful in applying direct te
to Internet companies that do not have a physiesgnce in the jurisdiction, this could increaseedtective tax rate.

We continue to work with the relevant tax authestand legislators to clarify our obligations undew and emerging laws and
regulations. Passage of new legislation and the@sitipn of additional tax or tax-related reportiggjuirements could harm our users and our
business. There has been an increased interesttayncgoverning and regulatory bodies as welhadriternational press, especially in Europe
in the tax affairs of multinational and ecommeroenpanies. While this increased scrutiny has natlted in any changes in the way taxes are
imposed, it could lead to changes in laws or @itinvestigations of our operations and structarthe future. This could lead to additional tax
costs and harm our business.

Our users and we may be subject to sales repodntrecord-keeping obligations.

One or more states or the federal government eigorcountries may seek to impose reporting orrnde&eeping obligations on
companies that engage in or facilitate ecommengeh &n obligation could be imposed by legislatimended to improve tax compliance (and
legislation to such effect has been contemplatesvgral states and a number of foreign jurisdisfi@r if one of our companies was ever
deemed to be the legal agent of the users of avices by a jurisdiction in which it operates. yJ2008, the Housing and Economic
Recovery Act of 2008 (H.R. 3221) was signed int8 Uederal law. This law contains provisions thegiuire companies that provide payments
over electronic means to users to report to therial Revenue Service (IRS) information on paymesteived by certain customers. The
legislation, effective for payments received afd@cember 31, 2010, requires PayPal and other eféctpayments processors to report to the
IRS on customers
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subject to U.S. income tax who receive more thah @I in payments and more than 200 payments ateadar year. As a result, we are
required to request tax ID numbers from certaingeay track payments by tax ID number and, undéaioeronditions, withhold a portion of
payments and forward such withholding to the IR®. Wdve modified our software to meet these requrgsnand expect increased operatione
costs and changes to our user experience in caanegith complying with these reporting obligatiofi$ie IRS regulations also require us to
collect a certification of non-U.S. taxpayer stdfasn certain international merchants. The Fordignount Tax Compliance Act, which took
effect at the start of 2013, is likely to requireiacrease in the number of ndhS. customers from whom we must obtain a simiatification,
and to increase the compliance burdens on us. Tega@ements may decrease seller activity on ibes and harm our business. Any failure
by us to meet these new requirements could resslildstantial monetary penalties and other sarsctiod could harm our business.

Our business is subject to online security risksluding security breaches.

Our businesses involve the storage and transmisg§iosers’ proprietary information. In additionsignificant number of our users
authorize us to bill their payment card accountsdiy for all transaction and other fees charggdd An increasing number of websites,
including those owned by several other large Ireeamd offline companies, have disclosed breachéen security, some of which have
involved sophisticated and highly targeted attamkportions of their websites or infrastructurec8ese the techniques used to obtain
unauthorized access, disable, or degrade servisabotage systems, change frequently, may beuliffio detect for a long time, and often are
not recognized until launched against a targetmag be unable to anticipate these techniques iongtement adequate preventative measure:
Unauthorized parties may also attempt to gain actesur systems or facilities through various nseamcluding hacking into our systems or
facilities, fraud, trickery or other means of deeg our employees, contractors and temporary.staffarty that is able to circumvent our
security measures could misappropriate our or eargi proprietary information, cause interruptiorour operations, damage our computers c
those of our users, or otherwise damage our répatdh addition, our users have been and likely @antinue to be targeted by parties using
fraudulent “spoof” and “phishing” emails to misappriate user names, passwords, payment card nunaoerther personal information or to
introduce viruses or other malware through “trdj@nse” programs to our users’ computers. As a resut information technology and
infrastructure may be vulnerable to cyberattacksemurity incidents and third parties may be abladcess our users’ proprietary information
and payment card data that are stored on or abée#siough our systems, any of which could haweaterial adverse impact on our business,
results of operations and reputation. Any secumigach at a company providing services to us ousars could have similar effects.

In May 2014, we publicly announced that criminakrgvable to penetrate and steal certain data,dmgwser names, encrypted user
passwords and other non-financial user data, frarkktplaces business unit. Upon making this anremeat, Marketplaces required all
buyers and sellers on the Marketplaces platforneset their passwords in order to log into theaoamit. The breach and subsequent passwor
reset have negatively impacted the business. jn20i4, a putative class action lawsuit was filgdiast us for alleged violations and harm
resulting from the breach. We have filed a motimdismiss in this matter. In addition, we have nes@ requests for information and are
subject to investigations regarding this incidenothf numerous regulatory and other government agsragross the world.

In addition, under payment card rules and our embsrwith our card processors, if there is a bredigayment card information that we
store, or that is stored by PayPal's direct paynsard processing customers, we could be liablegégayment card issuing banks for their cos
of issuing new cards and related expenses. If we weable to accept payment cards, our businessalsl e seriously damaged. Additiona
financial services regulators in various jurisdios, including the United States and the Europeaaior) have implemented or are considering
proposals to impose new authentication requiremamtsanks and payment processors intended to redhlice fraud, which could impose
significant costs on PayPal, require PayPal to ghats business practices, make it more difficoiftrfew customers to join its network, and
reduce the ease of use of its products, which doaitch PayPal's business.

We may also need to expend significant additioesburces to protect against security breachesamdess problems caused by
breaches. These issues are likely to become mfficutliand costly as we expand the number of @agbere we operate. Additionally, our
insurance policies carry low coverage limits, whicly not be adequate to reimburse us for lossesedawy security breaches and we may no
be able to fully collect, if at all, under thessumance policies.

Systems failures and resulting interruptions indailability of our websites, applications, prodsior services could harm our business.

Our systems may experience service interruptiortegradation because of hardware and software tdefemalfunctions, computer
denial-of-service and often cyberattacks, humaorgearthquakes, hurricanes, floods, fires, natural

36




disasters, power losses, disruptions in telecomaations services, fraud, military or political cbeif, terrorist attacks, computer viruses, or
other events. Our systems are also subject to insakabotage and intentional acts of vandalissmeéof our systems are not fully redundant
and our disaster recovery planning may not beaefft for all eventualities. As a result, we haxpezienced and will likely continue to
experience system failures, denial of service k#tand other events or conditions from time to ttheg interrupt the availability or reduce the
speed or functionality of our websites and mobjplizations. These events have resulted and likélyesult in loss of revenue and a
prolonged interruption in the availability or redion in the speed or other functionality of our witds and mobile applications and could have
a material adverse effect on our result of openatind financial condition. Frequent or persistet@rruptions in our services could cause
current or potential users to believe that oureaystare unreliable, leading them to switch to ametitors or to avoid our sites, and could
permanently harm our reputation and brands. Intiddiagreements between our Enterprise business@ne of its clients contain
commitments regarding availability. If our Enteggribusiness is unable to meet these commitmentg|ldtionship with its clients could be
damaged and may trigger a client’s right to terrt@rtheir contract with our Enterprise business anfithancial penalty provisions payable by
our Enterprise business. Moreover, to the extaattahy system failure or similar event resultsamdges to our customers or their businesse:
these customers could seek significant compensatom us for their losses and those claims, evemsiuccessful, would likely be time-
consuming and costly for us to address. We algoareffacilities, components and services suppliethivd parties and our business may be
materially adversely affected to the extent thesamonents or services do not meet our expectatiptiese third parties cease to provide the
services or facilities. In particular, a decisighamy of our third party hosting providers to cl@stacility that we use could cause system
interruptions and delays, result in loss of crititata and cause lengthy interruptions in our ses/iWe do not carry business interruption
insurance sufficient to compensate us for lossatsrtiay result from interruptions in our serviceaagsult of systems failures and similar
events.

Our PayPal website has suffered intermittent utaliity for periods as long as 12 days, includifay,example, transaction failures
which affected some customers in the UK for oveh@drs in August 2014 and mobile login failures ethaffected some customers for sev
hours in April 2014. Reliability is particularlyitical for PayPal because the full-time availapilif PayPal is critical to its goal of gaining
widespread acceptance among users and merchamtet@s point of sale solutions. Because PayPalregulated financial institution, freque
or persistent site interruptions could lead to fatguy scrutiny, significant fines and penaltiesptandatory and costly changes to PayPal’s
business practices, and ultimately could cause &#dgRose existing licenses it needs to operafevent it from obtaining additional licenses
that it needs to expand.

Acquisitions, joint ventures, and strategic investits could result in operating difficulties, dilomi, and other harmful consequences.

We have acquired a significant number of businesbearying size and scope, technologies, servimed,products. We also expect to
continue to evaluate and consider a wide arrayotdrgial strategic transactions as part of our aVéusiness strategy, including business
combinations, acquisitions, and dispositions ofitesses, technologies, services, products, and asisets, as well as strategic investments
joint ventures. In that regard, in January 2015aweounced that we are exploring strategic alteresfor our Enterprise business, includin
possible sale or initial public offering, althoutifere can be no assurance that any such transagtidie consummated.

These transactions, and in particular the Janudt$ 2nnouncement regarding our Enterprise businesgjnvolve significant challeng
and risks, including:

» the potential loss of key customers, merchamsdors and other key business partners of the animpwe acquire, or dispose of,
following and continuing after announcement of tansaction plans;

» declining employee morale and retention isstilexiing employees of companies that we acquirgigpose of, which may result from
changes in compensation, or changes in managerapntfing relationships, future prospects or threation of the acquired or
disposed business;

» difficulty making new and strategic hires of new@ayees

» diversion of management time and a shift of fofrom operating the businesses to the transaaimhjn the case of an acquisition,
integration and administration;

» the need to integrate the operations, systemaufimdj accounting, management, information, humaouee and other administrati
systems), technologies, products and personneldf acquired company, which is an inherently rigkgl potentially lengthy and
costly process;

» the inefficiencies and lack of control that magult if such integration is delayed or not impéted, and unforeseen difficulties and
expenditures that may arise as a result;

« the need to implement or improve controls, pdoces and policies appropriate for a larger putdimpany at companies that prior to
acquisition may have lacked such controls, procesiand policies or whose controls,
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procedures and policies did not meet applicablallagd other standards;

» risks associated with our expansion into new irggomal market:

» derivative lawsuits resulting from the acquisit

» liability for activities of the acquired compabgfore the acquisition, including intellectual pesty and other litigation claims or
disputes, violations of laws, rules and regulatjmmnmercial disputes, tax liabilities and otheowm and unknown liabilities;

» the potential loss of key employees following trensactior

» the acquisition of new customer and employesgral information, which in and of itself may reguiegulatory approval and or
additional controls, policies and procedures arajesui us to additional exposure; and

» our dependence on the acquired businessbunting, financial reporting, operating metaosl similar systems, controls and proce
and the risk that errors or irregularities in thegstems, controls and processes will lead to ®irour consolidated financial
statements or make it more difficult to manageabguired business.

At any given time we may be engaged in discussiomegotiations with respect to one or more ofehgpes of transactions and any of
these transactions could be material to our firerezindition and results of operations. In additibmay take us longer than expected to fully
realize the anticipated benefits of these transastiand those benefits may ultimately be sméiken enticipated or may not be realized at all,
which could adversely affect our business and djpgraesults. Any acquisitions or dispositions nadgo require us to issue additional equity
securities, spend our cash, or incur debt (ancasad interest expense), liabilities, and amoiiraxpenses related to intangible assets or
write-offs of goodwill, which could adversely afteaur results of operations and dilute the econanit voting rights of our stockholders.

We have made certain investments, including thrqaut ventures, in which we have a minority equitterest and/or lack management
and operational control. The controlling joint verg partner in a joint venture may have businesésts, strategies, or goals that are
inconsistent with ours, and business decisiongt@ractions or omissions of the controlling joienture partner or the joint venture company
may result in harm to our reputation or adverséigch the value of our investment in the joint wenet Our strategic investments may also
expose us to additional risks. Any circumstancdscivmay be out of our control, that adversely @ftbe value of our investments, or cost
resulting from regulatory action or lawsuits in oestion with our investments, could harm our busingr negatively impact our financial
results.

Our success largely depends on key personnel. Beaaampetition for our key employees is intensenasenot be able to attract, retain,
and develop the highly skilled employees we nesdgport our business. The loss of senior manageanather key personnel could
negatively affect our business.

Our future performance depends substantially orcdéimtinued services of our senior management amet &ey personnel, including key
engineering and product development personnelpandbility to attract, retain, and motivate keygmnel. Competition for key personnel is
intense, especially in the Silicon Valley where oarporate headquarters are located, and we mapdide to successfully attract, integrate, ol
retain sufficiently qualified key personnel. In niradk employment decisions, particularly in the Inttrand high-technology industries, job
candidates often consider the value of the equvigrds they would receive in connection with thempdoyment and fluctuations in our stock
price may make it more difficult to attract, reta@md motivate employees. In addition, we do neeHang-term employment agreements with
any of our key personnel and do not maintain argy ‘ferson” life insurance policies. The loss ofgkevices of any of our senior managemen
or other key personnel, or our inability to attrhigthly qualified senior management and other kengpnnel, could harm our business.

Problems with or price increases by third partigsonprovide services to us or to our users couldhihaur business.

A number of third parties provide services to usooour users. Such services include seller td@sdutomate and manage listings,
merchant tools that manage listings and interfaitie Wwwentory management software, storefronts liedp our users list items and shipping
providers that deliver goods sold on our platfoamong others. PayPal is dependent on caching serthat make its sites load faster, the
processing companies and banks that link PayRhetpayment card, and bank clearing networks togg®transactions, among others. PayP
is subject to, among other things, increases gréhtange fees and assessments that payment caatksesuch as Visa and MasterCard charg
for each transaction using one of their cards (twiflayPal’'s payment card processors have the oghads on to PayPal), as well as changes |
payment card network operating rules, includingcgdeperating rules for Internet payment servigesh as PayPal). Similarly, PayPal relies
on unaffiliated lenders to make the consumer ahdrdbans originated through the PayPal Credit petsdand also relies heavily on third
parties to operate its services, including mercpantessors and payment gateways to process ttemmsad-inancial or regulatory issues, labor
issues (e.g., strikes, lockouts, or work stoppagesjther problems that prevent these companigs firoviding services to us or our users
could harm our business.
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Price increases by, or service terminations, digsaop or interruptions at, companies that provielvises to us and our users and clients
could also reduce the number of listings on oursiteb or make it more difficult for our sellersdomplete transactions or for us to timely
fulfill and ship products sold on the websites @ped by Enterprise clients, thereby harming oumass. Some third parties who provide
services to us may have or gain market power arableeto increase their prices to us without coitipetconstraint. In addition, the U.S.
Postal Service, which is facing ongoing fiscal tdrades, has instituted postal rate increases amaaced that it is considering closing
thousands of local post offices and ending Satundal delivery. While we continue to work with glalcarriers to offer our sellers a variety
shipping options and to enhance their shipping e&pee, postal rate increases may reduce the cdivpeéss of certain sellers’ offerings, and
postal service changes could require certain seiteutilize alternatives which could be more exgpem or inconvenient, which could in turn
decrease the number of transactions on our siteelty harming our business.

We have outsourced certain functions to thgedty providers, including some customer suppodt @moduct development functions, wh
are critical to our operations. If our service pdars do not perform satisfactorily, our operationsld be disrupted, which could result in user
dissatisfaction and adversely affect the numberasfsactions we support and our business, repntatial operating results.

There can be no assurance that third parties wihada services directly to us or our users will thame to do so on acceptable terms, or
at all. If any third parties were to stop providisgrvices to us or our users on acceptable tendsiding as a result of bankruptcy, we may be
unable to procure alternatives from other thirdiparin a timely and efficient manner and on acaklgtterms, or at all.

Our developer platforms, which are open to merchamid third-party developers, subject us to adddiaisks.

We provide third-party developers with access taliaption programming interfaces, software develepikits and other tools designed
to allow them to produce applications for use, veitharticular focus on mobile applications. Theae be no assurance that merchants or thirc
party developers will develop and maintain appiarag and services on our open platforms on a tirhabis or at all, and a number of factors
could cause such third-party developers to custadtop development for our platforms. In additioar business is subject to many regulatory
restrictions. It is possible that merchants anditharty developers who utilize our development platf® or tools could violate these regulal
restrictions and we may be held responsible foh stimlations, which could adversely affect our mess.

Risk Factors Related to the Planned Separation

Our plan to separate PayPal into an independentiplybtraded company is subject to various risksl amcertainties and may not be
completed in accordance with the expected plaremticipated timeline or at all.

In September 2014, we announced a plan to sef@agteal into an independent public company. We expemmplete the separation in
the second half of 2015, subject to Board approf/éhe final terms of the separation and markejulgory, and certain other conditions. We
also announced that following separation, Devin Weturrently president of Marketplaces, will bea@EO of eBay, and that Dan
Schulman, currently president of PayPal, will beed@EO of the stand-alone PayPal company.

Unanticipated developments, including changeseéncttimpetitive conditions of eBay’s and PayRadispective markets, possible dela
obtaining various tax opinions or rulings, regutgtapprovals or clearances, uncertainty of therfioi@ markets, and challenges in establishinc
infrastructure or processes and executing the agparcould delay or prevent the completion of ph@posed separation, or cause the propose
separation to occur on terms or conditions thatléiferent or less favorable than expected. We eget the process of completing the
proposed separation will be time-consuming andlireseignificant costs and expenses, which may gaifstantly higher than what we
currently anticipate and may not yield a discemibénefit if the separation is not completed. EXaguhe proposed separation will require
significant time and attention from our senior mgeraent and key employees, which could distract tlem operating our business, disrupt
operations, and result in the loss of business mppities, which could adversely affect our busmdmancial condition, and results of
operations. We may also experience increased diffés in attracting, retaining and motivating kayployees during the pendency of the
separation and following its completion, which @bblarm our businesses.

The proposed separation may not achieve some of #lle anticipated benefits and may adverselycaffar business.
Even if the proposed separation is completed, wemoarealize some or all of the anticipated baadfom the
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separation and the separation may in fact adveedtdgt our business. As independent, publiclygchdompanies, eBay and PayPal will be
smaller, less diversified companies with a narrolesiness focus and may be more vulnerable to amgumgarket conditions, which could
materially and adversely affect their respectivsibesses, financial condition and results of ojp@nat Separating the businesses may also
eliminate or reduce synergies that existed prighéoseparation, which could have an adverse effethe results of operations, financial
condition and liquidity of each business.

There can be no assurance that the combined vithe oommon stock of the two publicly-traded comipa following the completion of
the proposed separation will be equal to or grahger what the value of our common stock would Haaen had the proposed separation not
occurred.

The proposed separation may result in disruptianshd negatively impact our relationships withr oustomers and other business
partners and may make it more difficult to attraod retain qualified employee

Uncertainty related to the proposed separation ey customers and other parties with which weeriily do business or may do
business in the future to terminate or attempteigatiate changes in existing business relationsbipsonsider entering into business
relationships with parties other than us. Thesaugitons could have a material and adverse effectus businesses, financial condition, result:
of operations, and prospects. The proposed separatid related uncertainties may also make it rdiffieult for us to attract new employees
or to retain current employees and may make oeksiptions and other equity awards less attra¢tiveurrent and prospective employees.
effect of such disruptions could be exacerbatedryydelays in the completion of the separatioraddition, as independent stand-alone
entities, eBay and PayPal may be unable to obtzidg services, financing and technology at prices terms as favorable as those obtaine
by eBay Inc. prior to the separation.

The potential negative impact of the events desdrdbove could not only adversely affect the irdlial eBay and PayPal businesses
following their separation into independent comparbut could also adversely affect our companyagtly constituted.
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ITEM 1B: UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable.

ITEM 2: PROPERTIES

We own and lease various properties in the U.S.32nather countries around the world. We use topegrties for executive and
administrative offices, data centers, product dgwelent offices, fulfillment centers and customewise offices. As of December 31, 2014 ,
our owned and leased properties provided us wighesate square footage as follows:

United States Other Countries Total
(In millions)
Owned facilities 3.3 — 33
Leased facilities 5.1 3.2 8.4
Total facilities 8.4 3.2 11.7

Our corporate headquarters are located in San Gadiggrnia and occupy approximately 0.2 milliorusge feet. As of December 31,
2014 , the total square footage generally usedabii ef our reportable segments was as follows:

Marketplaces Payments Enterprise Total

(In millions)
2.€ 5.

(¢%]
(¢%]

Total facilities 3. 11.t

From time to time we consider various alternatiredated to long-term facilities needs. While weidea that our existing facilities are
adequate to meet our immediate needs, it may beoewessary to develop and improve land that wea@wsase or acquire additional or
alternative space to accommodate any future growth.

ITEM 3: LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Litigation and Regulatory Proceedinc
Overview

We are involved in legal and regulatory proceedimgsn ongoing basis. Many of these proceedingmararly stages and may seek an
indeterminate amount of damages. If we believedHass arising from such matters is probable @mibe reasonably estimated, we accrue th
estimated liability in our financial statementsoifly a range of estimated losses can be determimedccrue an amount within the range that,
in our judgment, reflects the most likely outcorfigione of the estimates within that range is advetstimate than any other amount, we ac
the low end of the range. For those proceedingghich an unfavorable outcome is reasonably possibiienot probable, we have disclosed an
estimate of the reasonably possible loss or rahgesses or we have concluded that an estimatieeofdasonably possible loss or range of
losses arising directly from the proceeding (n@onetary damages or amounts paid in judgment tesetnt) are not material. If we cannot
estimate the probable or reasonably possible lossnge of losses arising from a legal proceedirgghave disclosed that fact. In assessing th
materiality of a legal proceeding, we evaluate, agnother factors, the amount of monetary damagesiel, as well as the potential impact of
non-monetary remedies sought by plaintiffs (ergurictive relief) that may require us to changelousiness practices in a manner that could
have a material adverse impact on our busines$ &pect to the matters disclosed in this Iteme3are unable to estimate the possible loss
or range of losses that could potentially resudtrfithe application of such non-monetary remedies.

Amounts accrued for legal and regulatory proceeslfnogwhich we believe a loss is probable werematerial for the year ended
December 31, 2014. Except as otherwise noted éoptbceedings described in this Item 3, we haveladed, based on currently available
information, that reasonably possible losses agidirectly from the proceedings (i.e., monetary dges or amounts paid in judgment or
settlement) in excess of our recorded accrualglacenot material. However, legal and regulatogcpedings are inherently unpredictable anc
subject to significant uncertainties. If one or maratters were resolved against us in a reporénigg for amounts in excess of management’
expectations, the impact on our operating resulfgyancial condition for that reporting period ddibe material.
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Litigation

eBay's Korean subsidiary, IAC (which has merged Bimarket and is now named eBay Korea), has natifseapproximately 20 millic
users of a January 2008 data breach involving paflsoidentifiable information including name, adds, resident registration number and
some transaction and refund data (but not includiegit card information or real time banking infation). Approximately 149,000 users
sued IAC over this breach in several lawsuits imgém courts and more may do so in the future (dintpafter final determination of liability).
Trial for a group of representative suits begaAuigust 2009 in the Seoul Central District Court [¥%), and trial for additional suits began
later in the SCDC. There is some precedent in Kfirea court to grant “consolation money” for dataaches without a specific finding of
harm from the breach. Such precedents have inv@agthents of up to approximately $200 per usedaimuary 2010, the SCDC ruled that
IAC had met its obligations with respect to defergdihe website from intrusion and, accordingly, hadiability for the breach. This January
2010 ruling was appealed by approximately 34,0@ihgffs to the Seoul High Court. In September 2ah2 Seoul High Court announced its
decision upholding the SCDC's January 2010 decfsiothree cases involving 55 plaintiffs. During1&) the Seoul High Court upheld the
SCDC's January 2010 ruling in another 18 casedvimgp33,795 plaintiffs. The Seoul High Court's gan in 10 of these 18 cases has been
appealed by 33,215 plaintiffs to the Korea Supréuert, and the Korea Supreme Court is currentljereing a total of 11 cases with 33,218
plaintiffs. In January 2013, the Seoul Western fisCourt ruled in favor of IAC with respect to tvcases filed by 2,291 plaintiffs by
following the SCDC's January 2010 ruling, and 2,pBdntiffs proceeded to appeal this decision ef 8eoul Western District Court to the
Seoul High Court. We expect decisions in thesexcas2015.

eBay Inc., eBay Domestic Holdings, Inc., Pierre @yar and Joshua Silverman have been sued by dsaidist. in California Superior
Court in San Francisco (Case No.: CGC - 08 - 48h2X*aigslist filed suit on May 13, 2008 allegithgit we engaged in conduct designed to
harm craigslist's business while we negotiatedetmine and while we were a minority shareholderaigslist. craigslist's allegations include
that we (i) misrepresented, concealed, suppressgéhded to disclose facts in order to induce gshst to take detrimental action; (ii) interfe
with craigslist's business operations; (i) impedy disseminated and misused confidential andntgyy information from craigslist that we
received as a minority investor; (iv) infringed atitited craigslist's trademark and trade name;(ahtreached duties owed to craigslist. The
complaint seeks significant compensatory and pesidiamages, rescission and other relief. In additioSeptember 2014, craigslist filed an
amended complaint alleging trade secret misapmtipn and seeking new and additional compensatuypanitive damages. The parties are
currently engaged in discovery and a trial daterteds/et been set.

Regulatory Proceedings

PayPal routinely reports to the U.S. DepartmerihefTreasurys Office of Foreign Assets Control (OFAC) on paymsdhhas rejected
blocked pursuant to OFAC sanctions regulationsandny possible violations of those regulationgFRhhas cooperated with OFAC in rec
years regarding PayF's review process over transaction monitoring aasl $elf-reported a large number of small dollar @mbéransactions
that could possibly be in violation of OFAC sanoB8aegulations. Beginning in September 2014, we lengaged in settlement discussions
with OFAC regarding the possible violations arisirgm PayPal’'s practices between 2009 and 2013resudt of which we have accrued
reserves we believe are adequate to cover anynfiadif violation. In addition, PayPal continuestmperate with OFAC regarding more rec
self-reported transactions that could also posdiblyn violation of OFAC sanctions regulations. $8elf-reporting transactions could result in
claims or actions against us including litigatiojunctions, damage awards or require us to changdusiness practices and could result in a
material loss, require significant management tirasult in the diversion of significant operationaources or otherwise harm our business.

On August 7, 2013 and January 13, 2014, eBay, Payidats subsidiary, Bill Me Later, received Ciliivestigative Demands (CIDs)
from the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (OFfeBuesting that we provide testimony, produceudwnts and provide information
relating primarily to the acquisition, managementg operation of the PayPal Credit products, inomdnline credit products, advertising,
loan origination, customer acquisition, servicidgbt collection, and complaints handling practiddse CIDs could lead to an enforcement
action and/or one or more significant consent ardehich may result in substantial costs, includegal fees, fines, penalties and remediatior
expenses. We are cooperating with the CFPB in aimmewith the CIDs and exploring whether we mayabée to resolve these inquiries.
Resolution of these inquiries could require us akenmonetary payments to certain customers, pag fimd/or change the manner in which wi
operate the PayPal Credit products, which coulaemhly affect our financial results and resultspérations.

In May 2014, we publicly announced that criminakrgvable to penetrate our network and steal cedttin, including user names,
encrypted user passwords and other non-financéldegta, from eBay’s Marketplaces business unibriipaking this announcement, eBay
Marketplaces required all buyers and sellers orMbagketplaces platform to reset their passwordsdter to login to their account. In addition
to making this public announcement, we proactiwgiproached a number of
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regulatory and governmental bodies, including thegk the most direct supervisory authority over data privacy and data security progre
to specifically inform them of the incident and @ations to protect our customers in response aldeof those regulatory agencies have
requested us to provide further, more detailedrinégion regarding the incident, and we believe ihave fully cooperated in all of those
requests. To date, we have not been informed byegulatory authority of an intention to bring aemforcement action arising from this
incident; however, in the future we may be subjedines or other regulatory action. In additiom July 2014, a putative class action lawsuit
was filed against us for alleged violations andhhagsulting from the incident. We are vigorouslyetling the lawsuit.

General Matters

Other third parties have from time to time claimadd others may claim in the future, that we haeniged their intellectual property
rights. We are subject to patent disputes, andaxpat we will increasingly be subject to addibpatent infringement claims involving
various aspects of our Marketplaces, Payments atetfifise businesses as our products and senacgisige to expand in scope and
complexity. Such claims may be brought directlynalirectly against our companies and/or againstcostomers (who may be entitled to
contractual indemnification under their contractthws), and we are subject to increased exposusadh claims as a result of our recent
acquisitions, particularly in cases where we aterarg into new lines of business in connectiorhveitich acquisitions. We have in the past
been forced to litigate such claims. We may alsmbee more vulnerable to thiggarty claims as laws such as the Digital MillenniGapyright
Act, the Lanham Act and the Communications DeceXatyare interpreted by the courts, and as we exfiamdcope of our businesses (both in
terms of the range of products and services thaiffee and our geographical operations) and becsubgect to laws in jurisdictions where the
underlying laws with respect to the potential lidpiof online intermediaries like ourselves arther unclear or less favorable. We believe that
additional lawsuits alleging that we have violapadent, copyright or trademark laws will be filegbinst us. Intellectual property claims,
whether meritorious or not, are time consuming eostly to defend and resolve, could require expenshanges in our methods of doing
business or could require us to enter into cosijyalty or licensing agreements on unfavorable terms

From time to time, we are involved in other dispube regulatory inquiries that arise in the ordyneourse of business, including suits
our users (individually or as class actions) aliggiamong other things, improper disclosure ofpiges, rules or policies, that our practices,
prices, rules, policies or customer/user agreemaalate applicable law or that we have acted uhfaind/or not acted in conformity with such
prices, rules, policies or agreements. In additiothese types of disputes and regulatory inqyidas operations are also subject to regulatory
and/or legal review and/or challenges that tenefiect the increasing global regulatory focus tdak the payments industry is subject and,
when taken as a whole with other regulatory andlative action, such actions could result in tim@osition of costly new compliance burdens
on our Payments business and its customers ande@ayo increased costs and decreased transactiom® and revenue. Further, the numbe
and significance of these disputes and inquiriedrasreasing as our company has grown larger, asinbsses have expanded in scope (both i
terms of the range of products and services thaiffee and our geographical operations) and oudpets and services have increased in
complexity. Any claims or regulatory actions agains, whether meritorious or not, could be timestoning, result in costly litigation, dama
awards (including statutory damages for certairseawf action in certain jurisdictions), injunctiedief or increased costs of doing business
through adverse judgment or settlement, requit® ebange our business practices in expensive wegsire significant amounts of
management time, result in the diversion of sigaifit operational resources or otherwise harm osinbas.

ITEM 4: MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable
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PART Il

ITEM 5: MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STORHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES
OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Price Range of Common Stock

Our common stock has been traded on The Nasdag@etect Market under the symbol “EBAY” since Sapber 24, 1998. The
following table sets forth the high and low clossaje prices per share of our common stock, astexpby The Nasdaq Global Select Market,
for the following periods.

High Low
Year Ended December 31, 2014
First Quarter $ 50.3C $ 51.7¢
Second Quarter 56.0< 48.2¢
Third Quarter 56.6: 50.1¢
Fourth Quarter 57.52 47.8¢
High Low
Year Ended December 31, 2013
First Quarter $ 57.21 % 50.11
Second Quarter 57.7¢ 50.7¢
Third Quarter 57.3¢ 49.9¢
Fourth Quarter 55.91 48.7¢

As of February 2, 2015, there were approximatedi 2 holders of record of our common stock, althowg believe that there are a
significantly larger number of beneficial ownersoofr common stock.

Dividend Policy
We have never paid cash dividends on our stocldambt anticipate paying cash dividends in thedeeable future.

Performance Measurement Comparison

The graph below shows the cumulative total stodkdofeturn of an investment of $100 (and the restment of any dividends
thereafter) on December 31, 2009 (the last tradagfor the year ended December 31, 2009) in (i)common stock, (ii) the Nasdaq
Composite Index, (iii) the S&P 500 Index and (iwg tS&P North American Technology Internet Indexe (Successor to the GSTI Internet
Index). The S&P North American Technology Intertlmetex is a modified-capitalization weighted indepresenting the Internet industry,
including Internet software and services and Irgeratail companies. Our stock price performanaashin the graph below is not indicative
future stock price performance.
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The following graph and related information shait he deemed “soliciting material” or be deemetiedfiled” with the SEC, nor shall
such information be incorporated by reference @rtg past or future filing with the SEC, excepthe txtent that such filing specifically states

that such graph and related information are incateal by reference into such filing.
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Stock repurchase activity during the three montited December 31, 2014 was as follows:

Maximum Dollar

Total Number of Value of Shares that
Shares Purchased as May Yet be Purchased

Total Number of Average Price Part of Publicly Under the Programs

Period Ended Shares Purchasec Paid per Share Announced Programs Q)
October 31, 2014 14,197,98 $50.7¢ 14,197,98 $1,444,769,1C
November 30, 2014 7,958,89! $53.7¢ 7,958,89! $1,016,907,1¢
December 31, 2014 594,05t $54.4¢ 594,05¢ $984,542,82

22,750,93 22,750,93

(1) InJune 2012, our Board of Directors authatiaestock repurchase program that provided fora@parchase of up to $2 billion of our
common stock, with no expiration from the date wtharization. In January 2014, our Board of Direstauthorized an additional $5
billion stock repurchase program, with no expimaticom the date of authorization. These stock refpase programs are intended to offset
the impact of dilution from our equity compensatmograms and, subject to market conditions andrdtctors, are also used to make
opportunistic repurchases of our common stockdoce outstanding share count. Any share repurchasks our stock repurchase
programs may be made through open market trangsactitock trades, privately negotiated transact{orduding accelerated share
repurchase transactions) or other means at timtegasuch amounts as management deems approprteilhbe funded from our

working capital or other financing alternatives.
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Our stock repurchase programs may be limited onitexted at any time without prior notice. The tignand actual number of shares
repurchased will depend on a variety of factorsluiding corporate and regulatory requirements epaicd other market conditions and
management's determination as to the appropriatefusur cash.

As of December 31, 2014 , we had repurchased tharfiount of common stock authorized under our ROE2 stock repurchase program
and a total of approximately $985 million remairsailable for further repurchases of our commoulstonder our January 2014 stock
repurchase program. In addition, in January 20@bpoard of directors authorized an additionalb$®on stock repurchase program, w
no expiration from the date of authorization. Tinésv stock repurchase program, together with thecjpately $985 million remaining
under our January 2014 stock repurchase prograngshthe total repurchase authorization as of J32@15 to approximately $3.0

billion . For further details on these stock refnase programs, please see "ltem 7: Managementad3isn and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations - Liquidity dbapital Resources - Stock Repurchases."”
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ITEM 6: SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated financial dgttauld be read in conjunction with the consoliddieadncial statements and notes
thereto and “Management's Discussion and Analydi$rmancial Condition and Results of Operationspagxing elsewhere in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K. The consolidated statemeiriadime data and the consolidated balance sheefaldte years ended, and as of,
December 31, 2014 , 2013, 2012, 2011 and 2018eareed from our audited consolidated financiatetents.

Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012 2011@ 2010

(In millions, except per share amounts)

Consolidated Statement of Income Data®

Net revenues $ 17,90: $ 16,047 $ 14,07: $ 11,65: $ 9,15¢
Gross profit 12,17( 11,01: 9,85¢ 8,191 6,59:
Income from operations 3,51¢ 3,371 2,88¢ 2,37: 2,05¢
Income before income taxes 3,531 3,46¢ 3,08¢ 3,91( 2,09¢
Net income 46 2,85¢ 2,60¢ 3,22¢ 1,801
Net income per share:

Basic $ 004 $ 22C % 20z % 25C % 1.3¢

Diluted $ 004 $ 2.1t % 1.9¢ $ 24 % 1.3€
Weighted average shares:

Basic 1,251 1,29t 1,292 1,29: 1,30¢

Diluted 1,26z 1,31z 1,31z 1,31z 1,327

As of December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(In millions)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data®

Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,32¢ 3 4,49. % 6,817 $ 4,691 % 5,57
Short-term investments 3,77( 4,531 2,591 1,23¢ 1,04t
Long-term investments 5,77 4,971 3,044 2,45% 2,49:
Working capital® 9,00( 10,64« 10,47 5,927 6,54¢
Total assets 45,13: 41,48¢ 37,07« 27,32( 22,00¢
Short-term debt 85C 6 413 56E& 30C
Long-term debt 6,771 4,117 4,10¢ 1,52¢ 1,49¢
Total stockholders' equity 19,90¢ 23,64% 20,86¢ 17,93( 15,30:

(1) Includes the impact of acquisitions and digjimss. For a summary of recent significant acdigas and dispositions, please see “Note 3 -
Business Combinations and Divestitures” to the obdated financial statements included in this répo

(2) The consolidated statement of income dataéhryear ended December 31, 2011 includes a lodssested business of $256.5 milliand
a gain on the sale of our remaining 30% equityregein Skype of approximately $1.7 billion.

(3) Working capital is calculated as the differencenssn total current assets and total current ligdmsl
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ITEM 7: MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL GONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwarddmg statements within the meaning of Section&thAe Securities Act of 1933
and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Ac®®4,lincluding statements that involve expectatiptens or intentions (such as those
relating to future business, future results of @iems or financial condition, new or planned feasior services, or management strategies,
including the proposed separation of PayPal fronaygBescribed below). You can identify these forWaakking statements by words such as
“may,” “will,” “would,” “should,” “could,” “expect, anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “intend,” “p lan” and other similar expressions.
These forward-looking statements involve risks @megertainties that could cause our actual resudtsliffer materially from those expressed or
implied in our forward-looking statements. Suckksisnd uncertainties include, among others, thaseudsed in “Item 1A: Risk Factors” of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K, as well as in oansolidated financial statements, related notesl, the other information appearing
elsewhere in this report and our other filings witie SEC. We do not intend, and undertake no didigato update any of our forwaldeking
statements after the date of this report to reflttial results or future events or circumstanc&isen these risks and uncertainties, readers
cautioned not to place undue reliance on such fodwaoking statements. You should read the follgpfanagement's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems in conjunction with the consolidated finadatatements and the related no
included in this report.

You should read the following "Management's Disiusand Analysis of Financial Condition and Resoft®©perations” in conjunction
with the audited consolidated financial statememtd the related notes that appear elsewhere inrdpsrt.

Overview

We are a global technology company that enablesrenee through three reportable segments: Marketp)deayments and Enterprise.
Our Marketplaces segment includes our eBay.configphatand its localized counterparts and our othdine platforms, such as our online
classifieds sites and StubHub. Our Payments segseatnprised of our PayPal business. Our Entermégment includes our Magento
business and provides commerce technologies, oamieth operations and marketing solutions for mertshaf all sizes that operate in genera
merchandise categories. On January 21, 2015, weuaoed that we will be exploring strategic optiansjuding a possible sale or IPO, of
eBay Enterprise.

On September 30, 2014, we announced that our Bdddectors, following a strategic review of ouogth strategies and structure,
had approved a plan to separate PayPal (consjatimgrily of our Payments segment) into an indegengublicly traded company. We exp
to complete the transaction as a tax-free spinAdtie second half of 2015, subject to market, ls#guy, and certain other conditions. We also
announced that Dan Schulman has been appointegsisiéht of PayPal and CEO-designee of the stanedayPal company following
separation, and that Devin Wenig, currently Prexidé eBay Marketplaces, will become CEO of eBdjofeing separation. The separation is
subject to risks, uncertainties and conditions thede can be no assurance that the separatiobeviibmpleted on the terms or on the timing
currently contemplated, or at all. Please seertfgrnation in “Item 1A: Risk Factors” under the daa “Risk Factors Related to the Planned
Separation,” which describes some of the risksuarwtrtainties associated with the proposed separati

We expect to incur significant costs in connectioth our planned separation of our PayPal businBssse costs relate primarily to
third-party advisory and consulting services, rétanpayments to certain employees, incrementaksbased compensation and other costs
directly related to the separation. Costs relateghtployees for retention or stock-based compensatie classified on a basis consistent with
their regular compensation charges and includekinvitost of net revenues, sales and marketing ustatevelopment or general and
administrative in our consolidated statement obime as applicable. Costs other than those paichpdoyees are included within general and
administrative in our consolidated statement obme. During 2014 , we incurred approximately $38iomi related to separation costs. We
expect to continue to incur additional separatiost€ in 2015 until we complete the separation ofRayPal business. We currently estimate
that such additional separation costs will excezgsDdmillion, although that estimate is subject twuanber of assumptions and uncertainties.

In 2014 , net revenues increased 12% to $17.@bittompared to $16.0 billion in 2013 , driven priityaby increases in net revenues
from each of our business segments. We achievegerating margin of 20% in 2014 compared to 21%0h3 . Our diluted earnings per
share decreased to $0.04 in 2014 , a $2.14 degoeashare compared to 2018&riven primarily by the accrual of deferred taxes$9.0 billior
of undistributed foreign earnings for 2013 and pyiears, partially offset by growth in net revenaes a lower share count. We generated ca:s
flow from operations of approximately $5.7 billian2014 compared to $5.0 billion in 2013 .
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Our Marketplaces segment total net revenues inede®s33 million , or 6% , in 2014 compared to 20TBe increase in total net
revenues was driven primarily by an increase irsgraerchandise volume (GMV) (as defined below)%f,9vhich was due to continued
growth internationally and in the U.S. and a fabdeampact from foreign currency movements relativéhe U.S. dollar. We believe that
during 2014, GMV was negatively impacted by dediimrevolume caused by lower organic traffic and segond quarter cyberattack describe
below. Our Marketplaces segment operating marginedsed 2.7 percentage points in 2014 compare@lt® @ue primarily to continued
investments in our marketing programs, site openatand business initiatives.

As previously disclosed, during the second quart@014, our Marketplaces segment experienced arajack that compromised an
authentication database containing user namesymadrpasswords and other non-financial data otagtomers. The attack resulted from a
small number of employee log-in credentials thatexempromised. The database included eBay Madagplcustomers’ name, encrypted
password, e-mail address, physical address, phamber and date of birth. The database did not coatay financial information or other
confidential personal information. As a resultluibtattack we generally required Marketplaces usersset their passwords in order to access
their accounts on our core Marketplaces platforohitslocalized counterparts. This attack was tealdo our eBay platform and we have seer
no evidence of unauthorized access or compromisgsrsonal or financial information of our PayPsérs, as that data is stored separately
secure network.

During 2014, we recorded cyberattack-related ex@easd customer credits of approximately $46 mmjlmf which approximately $41
million have been reported within our Marketplasegment. Expenses include costs to investigateeanddiate the attack, provide additional
customer support and temporarily enhance custonoéegiion as well as additional marketing prograrsts. Customer credits were volunta
offered as refunds to sellers during the passwesdtrperiod and were recorded as a reduction ehuey Many of these measures were
undertaken to preserve our customers’ trust inManketplaces businesses.

The disruption arising from this cyberattack adegraffected our 2014 Marketplaces segment redubisever, it is not possible to
precisely measure the amount of lost revenue tiratitibutable to the cyberattack. We are unadlpredict the full impact of the cyberattack
on Marketplaces users' behavior in the future pidiclg whether a change in our customers' trustdcoebatively impact our Marketplaces
segment’s results of operations on an ongoing leaigisquire us to increase promotional effortsetgain such trust. Accordingly, we are not
able to precisely forecast any possible future ichpaour revenues or expenses attributable tayberattack.

Our Payments segment total net revenues incredsadilion , or 19% , in 2014 compared to 201heTncrease in total net revenues
was driven primarily by an increase in net totalrpant volume (TPV) (as defined below) of 27% . ®ayments segment operating margin
decreased 0.7 percentage points in 2014 compat@ll®, due primarily to increased investment inrarketing programs and product
development partially offset by a favorable tratigecexpense rate.

Our Enterprise segment total net revenues incre&2anillion , or 6% , in 2014 compared to 201eTncrease in total net revenues
was driven primarily by an increase in Gross Menthse Sales (as defined below) of 13% in 2014 coetht 2013 . Our Enterprise segment
operating margin was relatively consistent for 28a#pared to 2013, increasing 0.5 percentage oint

In 2013, net revenues increased 14% to $16.0 bilmmpared to $14.1 billion in 2012, driven prinhaly increases in net revenues
from each of our business segments. We achievegarating margin of 21% in each of 2013 and 201#2. diluted earnings per
share increased to $2.18 in 2013, a $0.19 incieasshare compared to 2012, driven primarily byaghon 2013 net revenues partially offset
by a higher effective tax rate. We generated clashfrom operations of approximately $5.0 billian2013 compared to $3.8 billion in 2012.

We define GMV as the total value of all succesgfalbsed transactions between users on Marketpfaadsrms (excluding eBay's
classifieds websites, brands4friends and Shoppng.curing the applicable period regardless of Weethe buyer and seller actually
consummated the transaction; excludes vehiclesemiastate gross merchandise volume. We belietexNV provides a useful measure of
the overall volume of closed transactions that ftivough our Marketplaces trading platforms ineegiperiod, notwithstanding the inclusion
in GMV of closed transactions that are not ultilhatmnsummated. We define Net TPV as the totaladalblume of payments, net of payment
reversals, successfully completed through our paysneetworks, including PayPal Credit, Venmo anghpents processed through Braintree’s
full stack payments platform during the periodgtludes payments sent or received through Paydral'8raintree's payment gateway
businesses. We define Merchant Services Net TRkeatotal dollar volume of payments, net of paymentrsals, successfully completed
through our payments networks, including PayPatitr¥enmo and payments processed through
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Braintree's full stack payments platform during pleeiod; it excludes PayPal's and Braintree's paymateway businesses and payments for
transactions on our Marketplaces platforms. Wengefn eBay Net TPV as the total dollar volume gfrpants, net of payment reversals,
successfully completed through our payments netsyankluding PayPal Credit, during the period fansactions on our Marketplaces
platforms. We define Gross Merchandise Sales aseth# value of all sales transactions, inclusitéreight charges and net of allowance for
returns and discounts, which flow through our Emtise commerce technologies, whether we recorfuthamount of such transaction as a
product sale or a percentage of such transactiansasvice fee; excludes volume transacted threugiMagento platform. We define ECV as
the total Marketplaces GMV, Payments Merchant $es/Net TPV and eBay Enterprise Gross Merchandikes 8ot earned on eBay or paid
for via PayPal or PayPal Credit during the peribdxcludes volume transacted through the Magelattbgom.

Results of Operations
Summary of Net Revenues

We generate two types of net revenues: net transaetvenues and marketing services and other tege©Our net transaction revenues
are derived principally from listing fees and finallue fees (which are fees payable on transactimsed on our Marketplaces platforms), fees
paid by merchants for payment processing servicdseaommerce service fees. Our marketing servasemnues are derived principally from
the sale of advertisements, revenue sharing amaeigs, classifieds fees, marketing service feedeattireferral fees. Other revenues are
derived principally from interest and fees earnedhe PayPal Credit portfolio of receivables frarans, interest earned on certain PayPal
customer account balances and fees from contrazttegements with third parties that provide sswito our users.

The following table sets forth the breakdown of metenues by type and geography for the periodsepted®

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In millions, except percentage changes)

Net Revenues by Type:
Net transaction revenues

Marketplaces $ 6,998 $ 6,56¢ $ 5,834
Payments 7,21¢ 6,09¢ 5,14¢
Enterprise 98t 89¢ 85C
Total net transaction revenues 15,19¢ 13,56:¢ 11,83(
Marketing services and other revenues
Marketplaces 1,822 1,71¢ 1,56¢
Payments 68¢ 532 42¢
Enterprise 258 26¢€ 271
Total marketing services and other revenues 2,761 2,51¢ 2,26°
Elimination of inter-segment net reveritie (57) (31) (21
Total net revenues $ 17,90: $ 16,047 $ 14,07:
Net Revenues by Geography:
u.s. $ 8,49 $ 7,712 $ 6,77¢
International 9,407 8,33t 7,294
Total net revenues $ 17,90: $ 16,047 $ 14,07:

(1) During the first quarter of 2014, we changed ®portable segments based upon changes in gamiaational structure which reflect the
integration of our Magento platform into our Entésp segment. Prior to this change, Magento wasrteg in corporate and other. Also
during the first quarter of 2014, we revised oteinal management reporting of certain Marketpla@@ssactions to align more closely
with our related operating metrics. Related to dhiange, we reclassified our Marketplaces vehitebreal estate revenues from net
transaction revenues to marketing services and otvenues. Prior period amounts have been rewisednform to the current period
segment reporting structure.

(2) Represents net revenue generated between ouraklgosegment

Revenues are attributed to U.S. and internatioeafjtaphies based primarily upon the country in tvitie seller, payment recipient,
customer, website that displays advertising, oeosiervice provider, as the case may be, is located
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Because we generated a majority of our net reveintesationally in recent periods, including theays ended December 31, 2014 ,
2013 and 2012, we are subject to the risks ofgibirsiness in foreign countries as discussed uitgen 1A: Risk Factors” under the heading
"We are exposed to fluctuations in foreign curreagghange rates." In that regard, fluctuation®neifyn currency exchange rates impact our
results of operations. We have a foreign exchaisffenmanagement program that is designed to reduicexgposure to fluctuations in foreign
currencies; however, the effectiveness of this agin mitigating the impact of foreign currencydtuations on our results of operations
varies from period to period, and in any given @ériour operating results are usually affected,etomes significantly, by changes in currency
exchange rates. Fluctuations in exchange rateslalscily affect our cross-border revenue. We dateuthe year-over-year impact of foreign
currency movements on our business using prioogddreign currency rates applied to current yesrdactional currency amounts.

For the year ended December 31, 2014 , foreigrenayr movements relative to the U.S. dollar podigivapacted net revenues by
approximately $30 million (inclusive of a $36 milli negativempact from hedging activities relating to PayPaés revenue). Foreign currel
movements relative to the U.S. dollar for the yeradled December 31, 2014 positively impacted Malaegs net revenues by approximately
$56 million and negatively impacted Payments angbfpnise net revenues by approximately $25 mildod $1 million, respectively (inclusive
of the impact of hedging activities, noted abowethie case of Payments net revenues).

For the year ended December 31, 2013, foreign mayrenovements relative to the U.S. dollar positnieipacted net revenues by
approximately $24 million (inclusive of a $4 millimegative impact from hedging activities relatind®ayPal's net revenue). Foreign currency
movements relative to the U.S. dollar for the yeradled December 31, 2013 positively impacted Malaegs net revenues by approximately
$36 million and negatively impacted Payments angbfpnise net revenues by approximately $11 milhod less than $1 million, respectively
(inclusive of the impact of hedging activities, edtabove, in the case of Payments net revenues).
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The following table sets forth, for the periodsgmeted, certain key operating metrics that we belare significant factors affecting our

net revenues.

Percent Change Percent Change
Year Ended December 31, from from
2014 2013 2012 2013 to 2014 2012 to 2013

(In millions, except percentage changes)

Supplemental Operating Data:
Marketplaces Segment?

GMV @ $ 82,95 $ 76,43: 9 67,68¢ 9% 13%
Marketplaces Transaction Take Ré&te 8.4% 8.5¢% 8.62% (0.16)% (0.09%
Payments Segment:
Merchant Services Net TP $ 16836 $ 12528 $ 97,27: 34% 29%
On eBay Net TPW) $ 59,56! $ 54,38: $ 47,66( 10% 14 %
Net TPV © $ 22792. $ 179,66 $ 144,93 27% 24%
Payments Take Rat@ 3.41% 3.69% 3.85% (0.22)% (0.16%

Enterprise Segment:

Gross Merchandise Sal®s $ 4,701 % 4,18C $ 3,68: 13% 14%
Enterprise Transaction Take Réte 20.94% 21.48% 23.0% (0.59% (1.61)%

(1) eBay's classifieds websites, brands4friends ang@hg.com are not included in these met

(2) Total value of all successfully closed trarsars between users on Marketplaces platforms dulia applicable period regardless of
whether the buyer and seller actually consummadtedransaction; excludes vehicles and real estagsgnerchandise volume.

(3) Total net transaction revenues earned through arképlaces segment, divided by Gross Merchandiderive

(4) Total dollar volume of payments, net of payt@versals, successfully completed through oum@ts networks, including PayPal
Credit, Venmo and payments processed through Be&iistfull stack payments platform during the perexcludes PayPal's and
Braintree's payment gateway businesses and paymoeerttansactions on our Marketplaces platforms.

(5) Total dollar volume of payments, net of payt@versals, successfully completed through ounm@ts networks, including PayPal
Credit, during the period for transactions on owarkétplaces platforms.

(6) Total dollar volume of payments, net of payt@versals, successfully completed through oum@ts networks, including PayPal
Credit, Venmo and payments processed through Beaiistfull stack payments platform during the périexcludes payments sent or
received through PayPal's and Braintree’s paymatetwpy businesses.

(7) Total net revenues earned through our paynresitgorks, including PayPal Credit, Braintree, VenfayPal's payment gateway
business, subscription fees and other net revedided by Net TPV.

(8) Represents the retail value of all sales fatigns, inclusive of freight charges and net tfveédince for returns and discounts, which flow
through our Enterprise commerce technologies, vérette record the full amount of such transactioa psoduct sale or a percentage of
such transaction as a service fee; excludes vottamsacted through the Magento platform.

(9) Total net transaction revenues earned through otergrise segment, divided by Gross Merchandises
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Seasonality

The following table sets forth, for the periodsgmeted, our total net revenues and the sequentiaiarly movements of these net
revenues:

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
(In millions, except percentage changes)

2012
Net revenues $ 3,271 $ 3,39¢ $ 3,40 $ 3,99:
Percent change from prior quarter 3)% 4% 0% 17%
2013
Net revenues $ 3,74¢ $ 3871 % 3,89: $ 4,53(
Percent change from prior quarter (6)% 3% 0% 1€%
2014
Net revenues $ 4,262 $ 4,366 % 4,35: $ 4,921
Percent change from prior quarter (6)% 2% 0% 13%

We expect transaction activity patterns on our wtebgo mirror general consumer buying patterng. Enterprise segment is highly
seasonal. The fourth calendar quarter typicallyants for a disproportionate amount of Enterpriteta annual revenues because consumers
increase their purchases and businesses increasadhiertising to consumers during the fourth tpranoliday season. We expect these trend
to continue.

Marketplaces Net Transaction Revenues

Marketplaces net transaction revenues increase@l $dizon , or 6% , in 2014 compared to 2013 , wHBMYV increased 9% in 2014
compared to 2013 . The increase in net transactieenues was due primarily to continued growthalume, as well as a benefit from foreign
currency movements against the U.S. dollar. Outraesaction revenue growth was negatively impabtedeclines in volume caused by a
reduction in traffic from lower organic traffic, slu as Google's search engine algorithm changeswargkecond quarter cyberattack described
above. The growth in net transaction revenues aaer than the growth in GMV due primarily a loweaMetplaces transaction take rate as
we invested in our buyer loyalty programs and séfleentives, which are accounted for as a rednaifaevenue, and to a lesser extent, due ft
pricing changes at our StubHub business.

Marketplaces net transaction revenues increasesl 9iBon, or 13%, in 2013 compared to 2012, cotesiswith the increase in GMV
of 13% in 2013 compared to 2012. The increase titrapsaction revenues and GMV was due to contiguedith in active users, growth in
mobile volume and the continued improvements inciomer experience. In addition, seller discoantsbuyer loyalty programs had a
negative impact on revenue growth.

Marketplaces net transaction revenues earned attermally totaled $4.0 billion , $3.7 billion an@$8 billion in 2014 , 2013 and 2012 ,
respectively, representing 57% , 56% and 56% af fdarketplaces net transaction revenues in theerive periods.

Payments Net Transaction Revenues

Payments net transaction revenues increased $tloh bior 18% , during 2014 compared to 2013 , drimarily to an increase in Net
TPV of 27% . The growth in Payments net transaate@nues was lower than the growth in Net TPVtduee lower take rate. The increase in
Net TPV was due primarily to growth in consumer amefchant use of PayPal both on and off eBay aodtyrin volume through ot
Braintree products. The lower take rate was dumamily to a higher portion of Merchant Servicesurnk. Merchant Services volume includes
a higher concentration of Net TPV from larger martis who generate higher volume at lower ratesitiaelly, Merchant Services volume
includes Net TPV generated through our unbrandedymts such as Braintree where we generally earerltake rates. We expect the
concentration of Merchant Services volume to carito increase. Our Merchant Services Net TPV aszd 34% during 2014 compared to
2013 and represented 74% of PayPal's Net TPV iA 20@mpared with 70% in 2013 . On eBay Net TP\feased 10% during 20®mparec
to 2013, and represented 26% of PayPal's Net TR2014 .
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Payments net transaction revenues increased $3@nmdr 18%, during 2013 compared to 2012, dumarily to an increase in Net
TPV of 24%. The growth in Payments net transaatavenues was lower than the growth in Net TPV dug Ibwer take rate. The increase in
Net TPV was due primarily to growth in consumer amefchant adoption and use of PayPal both on dreBafy. The lower take rate was ¢
primarily to a shift to larger merchants who payéo rates. Our Merchant Services Net TPV incre288d during 2013 compared to 2012 and
represented 70% of PayPal's Net TPV in 2013, coetpaith 67% in 2012. On eBay Net TPV increased tM#ing 2013 compared to 2012,
and represented 30% of PayPal's Net TPV in 2013.

Payments net transaction revenues earned intemadijidotaled $4.1 billion , $3.4 billion and $2@lion in 2014 , 2013 and 2012 ,
representing 56% , 56% and 55% of total Paymeritga@saction revenues, respectively.

Enterprise Net Transaction Revenues
Enterprise net transaction revenues increased $8@m or 10% , in 2014 compared to 2013, duenarrily to an increase in Gross
Merchandise Sales of 13% . The growth in Enterpretdransaction revenues was lower than the growBross Merchandise Sales due to a
lower transaction take rate. The lower transadide rate was due to increases in Gross MerchaBdiss for certain merchants that triggerec

lower contractual take rates.

Enterprise net transaction revenues increased $8mor 6%, in 2013 compared to 2012, due priityeto an increase in Gross
Merchandise Sales of 14%, partially offset by adotvansaction take rate.

Marketing Services and Other Revenues
Marketing services and other revenues increasefl @4ion , or 10% , in 2014 compared to 2013 , agpresented 15% in 2014 and
16% in 2013 of total net revenues. The increasadrketing services and other revenues was due piyrt@growth in our PayPal Credit
portfolio of receivables from loans, as well ag@ased revenue from advertising.
Marketing services and other revenues increased B@fion, or 11%, in 2013 compared to 2012, aruresented 16% of total net
revenues for both periods. The increase in marestmvices and other revenues was due primariydwth in our PayPal Credit portfolio of
loan receivables, as well as increased revenue dichrartising.

Summary of Cost of Net Revenues

The following table summarizes changes in costebfravenues for the periods preserited

Change from Change from
Year Ended December 31, 2013 to 2014 2012 to 2013
2014 2013 2012 in Dollars in % in Dollars in %

(In millions, except percentages)
Cost of net revenues:

Marketplaces $ 1,698 $ 152 % 1270 % 17t 12% $ 247 19%
As a percentage of total Marketplaces net revenues 19.2% 18.2% 17.2%
Payments 3,112 2,67¢ 2,20¢ 437 16 % 46€ 21%
As a percentage of total Payments net revenues 39.2% 40.£% 39.6%
Enterprise 92: 834 70€ 89 11% 12¢ 18 %
As a percentage of total Enterprise net revenues 74.% 71.5% 63.2%
Corporate and other 2 7 26 (5) (71)% (29 (73)%
Total cost of net revenues $ 5,732 $ 5,03¢ $ 4,21¢ $ 69¢€ 14% $ 82( 19%
As a percentage of net revenues 32.(% 31.4% 30.(%

(1) During the first quarter of 2014, we changed @portable segments based upon changes in ganiaational structure which reflect the
integration of our Magento platform into our Entésp segment. Prior to this change, Magento wasrteg in corporate and other. Prior
period amounts have been revised to conform teuhent period segment reporting structure.
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Cost of net revenues consists primarily of costeeiated with payment processing, customer supgitetpperations, fulfillment and
interest expense on borrowings incurred to findPagPal Credit's portfolio of loan receivables. Eigant components of these costs include
bank transaction fees, credit card interchangeaasdssment fees, interest expense on indebtedoas®d to finance the purchase of
consumer loan receivables related to PayPal Caedidunts, employee compensation, contractor dasitities costs, depreciation of
equipment and amortization expense.

Marketplaces

Marketplaces cost of net revenues increased $1l6mjor 12% , in 2014 compared to 2013 . Thedase was due primarily to an
increase in volume and continued investment ins@t@roperations, data centers and customer supgarketplaces cost of net revenues as a
percentage of Marketplaces net revenues increas@dtpercentage points during 2014 compared t@ 200 primarily to these same factors.

Marketplaces cost of net revenues increased $24@m or 19%, in 2013 compared to 2012 eThcrease was due primarily to the
growth in GMV. Marketplaces cost of net revenuea aercentage of Marketplaces net revenues inatdnsé.1 percentage points durid@l3
compared to 2012 due primarily to our investmersiia operations infrastructure and customer sugpograms.

Payments

Payments cost of net revenues increased $437 mjlio 16% , in 2014 compared to 2013 due primaalthe impact of growth in Net
TPV offset in part by favorable transaction expersdes. Payments cost of net revenues as a pegeesit®ayments net revenues decreased &
1.0 percentage points during 2014 compared to 20&3o favorable transaction expense rates.

Payments cost of net revenues increased $46@®&mjlor 21% , in 2013 compared to 2012 dumanily to the impact of growth in
Net TPV and growth in costs related to our custosogport initiatives. Payments cost of net reveragea percentage of Payments net reve
increased by 0.8 percentage points during 2013 aoedpto 2012 due primarily to these same factors.

Enterprise

Enterprise cost of net revenues increased $8%millor 11% , during 2014 compared to 2013 due gmilynto the impact of growth in
Gross Merchandise Sales. Enterprise cost of nenums as a percentage of Enterprise net revertreaged by 3.1 percentage points during
2014 compared to 2013 due primarily to a lower taite.

Enterprise cost of net revenues increased $12&milbr 18%, during 2013 compared to 2012 due milgntd the impact of growth in
Gross Merchandise Sales as well as amortizatioaresgdriven by the initial roll out of the new suilf commerce technologies. Enterprise
of net revenues as a percentage of Enterpriseemehues increased by 8.3 percentage points dudibh® @mpared to 2012 due primarily to
these same factors.

Summary of Operating Expenses, Non-Operating Iteamsl Provision for Income Taxes

The following table summarizes changes in operatgenses, hon-operating items and provision forite taxes for the periods
presented:

Change from Change from
Year Ended December 31, 2013 to 2014 2012 to 2013
2014 2013 2012 in Dollars in % in Dollars in %
(In millions, except percentage changes)

Sales and marketing $ 3581 $ 3,060 $ 291: $ 527 17% $ 147 5%
Product development 2,00 1,76¢ 1,57: 232 13% 19t 12%
General and administrative 1,84: 1,70¢ 1,567 14C 8% 13¢ 9%
Provision for transaction and loan losses 95¢ 791 58C 167 21% 211 36%
Amortization of acquired intangible assets 26¢ 31¢ 33t (50) (16)% a7 (5)%
Interest and other, net 17 9t 19¢ (79 (82)% (1073) (52)%
Provision for income taxes (3,485 (610 (47%) (2,875 471% (135) 28 %
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The following table summarizes operating expenses;operating items and provision for income teax®sa percentage of net revenues
for the periods presented:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Sales and marketing 2C% 19% 21%
Product development 11% 11% 11%
General and administrative 1C% 11% 11%
Provision for transaction and loan losses 5% 5% 4%
Amortization of acquired intangible assets 1% 2% 2%
Interest and other, net —% 1% 1%
Provision for income taxes 19% 4% 3%

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing expenses consist primarilgeérising costs and marketing programs (both erdind offline), employee
compensation, contractor costs, facilities costbdepreciation on equipment. Online marketing espsnepresent traffic acquisition costs in
various channels such as paid search, affiliateketing and display advertising. Offline advertgimcludes brand campaigns, buyer/seller
communications and general public relations expense

Sales and marketing expense increased by $52bmijlbir 17% , in 2014 compared to 20I%he increase in sales and marketing exp
was due primarily to an increase in marketing paiogcosts (both online and offline programs), eBagd PayPal's brand campaigns and
higher employee-related expenses (including coasutiosts). Sales and marketing expense as a pageeanf net revenues were 20% and 19¥
in 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Sales and marketing expense increased by $14bmibr 5%, in 2013 compared to 2012. The increasalies and marketing expense
was due primarily to higher employee-related expsr{gcluding consultant costs, facility costs agdipmentrelated costs), partially offset
a decrease in professional services fees and magkmibgram efficiencies. The decrease in markgirmggram costs was due primarily to a
shift in focus from customer acquisition to custometention (for which certain associated expemsegecorded as a reduction in revenue
instead of sales and marketing expense). Salemarkkting expense as a percentage of net revereresi®% and 21% in 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

Product Development

Product development expenses consist primarilyngfleyee compensation, contractor costs, facilitests and depreciation on
equipment. Product development expenses are metofred capitalization of major site and otherduat development efforts, including the
development of our next generation platform arciites, migration of certain platforms, seller toatel Payments services projects. Our top
technology priorities include mobile, user expecersearch, platform and products.

Capitalized internal use and website developmestisomere $395 million and $375 million in 2014 &1.3 , respectively, and are
primarily reflected as a cost of net revenues wdmeortized in future periods.

Product development expenses increased by $23Bmilor 13% , in 2014 compared to 2013 . The iaseewas due primarily to higher
employee-related costs (including consultant casisgen by increased investment in platform and ilolProduct development expenses as a
net percentage of revenues were 11% in both 20d26h3 .

Product development expenses increased by $198mitir 12%, in 2013 compared to 2012. The increesedue primarily to higher
employee-related costs (including consultant cdatslity costs and equipment-related costs) drikgrincreased investment in platform,
search, mobile and offline, as well as an incréageofessional service fees. Product developmemerses as a net percentage of revenues
were 11% in both 2013 and 2012.
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General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses consist piliynafremployee compensation, contractor costs|ifes costs, depreciation of
equipment, employer payroll taxes on employee shaded compensation, legal expenses, restructumsigrance premiums and professional
fees. Our legal expenses, including those relatestious ongoing legal proceedings, may fluctsatestantially from period to period.

General and administrative expenses increased iilion , or 8% , in 2014 compared to 201Bhe increase was due primarily to hig
employee-related costs and costs related to onnpthseparation of our PayPal business. Generaldmahistrative expenses as a percentage
of net revenues were 10% in 2014 and 11% in 2013 .

General and administrative expenses increased i®ilBén, or 9%, in 2013 compared to 2012. The irs®was due primarily to higher
employee-related costs (including consultant cdatslity costs and equipment-related costs) antherease in professional service fees
partially offset by a decrease in restructuring€oSeneral and administrative expenses as a gagseof net revenues were 11% in
both 2013 and 2012.

Provision for Transaction and Loan Losses

Provision for transaction and loan losses congistsarily of transaction loss expense associated air customer protection programs,
fraud, and chargebacks; credit losses associatbdowi consumer and merchant loan receivablesbaddiebt expense associated with our
accounts receivable balance. We expect our provisiotransaction and loan loss expense to fluetdapending on many factors, including
macroeconomic conditions, our customer protectimgm@ms and the impact of regulatory changes.

Provision for transaction and loan losses increagebtl67 million , or 21% , in 2014 compared to 20T his increase was attributable to
both our Marketplaces and Payments segments. RV transaction and loan loss expense as a&pt&xge of net revenues was 5% in both
2014 and 2013 .

Marketplaces provision for transaction losses iasegl by $24 million , or 10% , in 2014 compared@t3 . This increase was driven
primarily by an increase in transaction volume tiply offset by improvements in our fraud deteatimodels.

Payments provision for transaction and loan lossereased by $138 million , or 25% , in 2014 coneplaio 2013 . This increase was due
primarily to higher transaction volume, the introtlan of new products and initiatives to enhancet@mers' experience. The increase was als
due to growth in our PayPal Credit portfolio of@éa@bles from consumer loans.

Provision for transaction and loan losses increageb211 million, or 36%, in 2013 compared to 20I8&is increase was attributable to
both our Marketplaces and Payments segments. Rmovi@ transaction and loan loss expense as @&ptage of net revenues
was 5% and 4% in 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Marketplaces provision for transaction losses iasegl by $62 million, or 36%, in 2013 compared tb20 his increase was due
primarily to higher transaction volume. The voluinerease in the transaction losses was due priyrtaréin increase in the number of cases
being opened under our eBay Money Back Guarantaaesult of our simplified process for users te élaims which resulted in higher
transaction losses.

Payments provision for transaction and loan logsaeased by $149 million, or 38%, in 2013 compace@012. This increase was due
primarily to higher PayPal transaction losses drilig higher transaction volume, due to the intraiducof new products, initiatives to enhance
customers' experience, and growth in active regidtaccounts. The increase was also due to growdhriPayPal Credit portfolio of loan
receivables from consumer loans. Modificationsuo PayPal Credit acceptable risk parameters dithae¢ a material impact on our provision
for loan losses for the periods presented.

Amortization of Acquired Intangible Assets

From time to time we have purchased, and we expeaintinue to purchase, assets and businessese Phechase transactions gener
result in the creation of acquired intangible asg@th finite lives and lead to a corresponding@ase in our amortization expense in periods
subsequent to acquisition. We amortize intangibtets over the period of estimated benefit, udiagstraightine method and estimated use
lives ranging from one to eight years. Amortizatadracquired intangible assets is also impactedurysales of assets and businesses and
timing of acquired intangible assets becoming faltyortized. See “Note 4 - Goodwill and Intangiblesats” to the consolidated financial
statements included in this report.
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Amortization of acquired intangible assets decrédse$50 million , or 16% , in 2014 compared to 20The decrease was due to cer
intangible assets becoming fully amortized durimg year.

Amortization of acquired intangible assets decrédse$17 million, or 5%, in 2013 compared to 2012.
Interest and Other, Net

Interest and other, net, primarily consists ofies¢ earned on cash, cash equivalents and invetstnasnwell as foreign exchange
transaction gains and losses, our portion of opgyaesults from investments accounted for underettuity method of accounting, investment
gain/loss on acquisitions, and interest expenggsisting of interest charges on any amounts bordoavel commitment fees on unborrowed
amounts under our credit agreement and interegnmepon our outstanding debt securities and conmh@aper, if any. Interest and other, net
excludes interest expense on borrowings incurrdishémce PayPal Credit's portfolio of loan recebeabwhich is included in cost of net
revenues.

Interest and other, net, decreased $78 milliorDitd2compared to 2013The decrease in interest and other, net was dnauply to a gail
on the sale of our investments in RueLala and ShapBr in September 2013.

Interest and other, net, decreased $101 millid®20it3 compared to 2012. The decrease in interesbtéued, net was due primarily to a
gain on a divested business of $118 million in 28&@ an increase in interest expense as a resulirasuance of $3 billion of senior notes in
July 2012. The decrease was partially offset bgia gn the sale of our investments in RueLal a am@pRunner in September 2013.

Provision for Income Taxes

Our effective tax rate was 99% in 2014 comparet8f in 2013 . The increase in our effective tag during 2014 compared to 2013
was due primarily to the recognition during theryeadeferred tax liabilities of approximately $30lion of U.S. income and applicable
foreign withholding taxes on $9.0 billion of undibuted foreign earnings of certain of our foregubsidiaries for 2013 and prior years,
partially offset by the release of the valuatiolewhnce on our capital loss carryover.

Our effective tax rate was 18% in 2013 comparetb® in 2012. The increase in our effective tax dateng 2013 compared to 2012
was due primarily to increases in foreign earnisigigiect to U.S. tax and the tax impact of repayméthie Kynetic note receivable and the ¢
of our investments in RueLala and ShopRunner ir8201

As of December 31, 2013, we had approximately $bdlion of indefinitely reinvested foreign earnim@pr which we had not provided
U.S. income or applicable foreign withholding taxBsiring the first quarter of 2014, we altered oapital allocation strategy, which included
changing our intent with regard to the indefinggwestment of foreign earnings from certain of fmueign subsidiaries for 2013 and prior
years. Accordingly, during the first quarter of 20We determined that a portion of these foreignmiags were no longer consider
indefinitely reinvested in our international opéas. In connection with this change in our capatiédcation strategy during the first quarter of
2014, we provided for U.S. income and applicableifm withholding taxes on $9.0 billion of undistited foreign earnings of certain of our
foreign subsidiaries for 2013 and prior years, arubrded a deferred tax liability of approximat$8:.0 billion. Based on December 31, 2014
foreign exchange rates, these amounts have bealueehat $8.2 billion of undistributed foreign dags and $2.8 billion of deferred tax
liability. The remaining approximately $5.0 billimf undistributed foreign earnings for 2013 andpyiears remains indefinitely reinvested in
our international operations.

This change during the first quarter of 2014 ra@idomur objectives of increasing our available W&&h, preserving our credit rating and
providing greater liquidity to meet our cash neidthe U.S., including, among other things and sabfo market conditions and other
uncertainties, merger and acquisition activity potentially funding opportunistic share repurchamean accelerated basis, potentially in the
near term.

In addition to the accrual of deferred taxes relateundistributed foreign earnings of certain of non-U.S. subsidiaries for 2013 and
prior years discussed above, during 2014, we recb$207 million of U.S. income and applicable fgrewithholding taxes on $613 million of
undistributed foreign earnings of our non-U.S. aliesies. The amount of U.S. income and applicédneign taxes recorded for 2014 was
based on our 2014 earnings of our non-U.S. subi@dithat are not considered indefinitely reinvesteour foreign operations. The amount
represents U.S. income and applicable foreign withihg taxes on 2014 foreign earnings not consil@rdefinitely reinvested, reflecting a
larger percentage of foreign earnings subject &, thx compared to 2013.
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Our relative pretax earnings and revenues attriitbeitid the U.S. as compared to the rest of thedvody differ over time. For the year
ended December 31, 2014, our U.S. share of pratarie and net revenues was 4.9% and 47.5% , resgecFor the year ended December
31, 2013, our U.S. share of pretax income andenetrues was 17.1% and 48.1%, respectively. Therdiite in relative pretax income and
revenues attributable to the U.S., as compareetodst of the world for both 2014 and 2013, wamarily related to our Enterprise segment,
which has lower U.S. based operating margins agldeniamortization of U.S. based intangible as$mtger stockbased compensation expel
recorded in the U.S. for U.S. based employees heael related to our corporate operations whiclpanearily U.S. based and higher average
margins earned by non-U.S. businesses.

Our provision for income taxes differs from the yision computed by applying the U.S. federal statutate of 35% due primarily to
lower tax rates associated with certain earning® four operations in certain lower-tax jurisdicsavutside the U.S. The impact on our
provision for income taxes of foreign income beiaged at different rates than the U.S. federalitiey rate was a benefit of approximately
$709 million in 2014, $607 million in 2013 and $6lion in 2012. We benefit from tax rulings condkd in several different jurisdictions,
most significantly Switzerland, Singapore and Lukeunrg. These rulings provide for significantly lawates of taxation on certain classes of
income and require various thresholds of investraadtemployment in those jurisdictions. We evaluatapliance with our tax ruling
agreements annually. The cash benefit of theseeetates totaled approximately $555 million in 208540 million in 2013 and $439 millic
in 2012. The foreign jurisdictions with lower taates that had the most significant impact on oavigion for income taxes in the periods
presented include Switzerland, Singapore and Luxemtp See "Note 16 - Income Taxes" to the constiiéinancial statements included in
this report for more information on our tax rateaeciliation.

Our provision for income taxes is volatile andganeral, is adversely impacted by earnings beiwgiddhan anticipated in countries that
have lower tax rates and higher than anticipatemimtries that have higher tax rates. Our prori$iw income taxes does not include
provisions for U.S. income taxes and foreign witlling taxes associated with $7.9 billion of undisited earnings of certain foreign
subsidiaries because we intend to reinvest thasengg indefinitely in our foreign subsidiariestiifese earnings were distributed into the U.S.
in the form of dividends to eBay companies domiilethe U.S. or otherwise, or if the shares ofrédevant foreign subsidiaries were sold or
otherwise transferred, we would be subject to &t U.S. income taxes (subject to an adjustmentoreign tax credits) and foreign
withholding taxes. Further, as a result of certdipur ongoing employment and capital investmetibas and commitments, our income in
certain countries including Switzerland, Singapame Luxembourg, is subject to reduced tax rates f@lure to meet these commitments
could adversely impact our provision for incomegsxAdditionally, please see the information irfitt 1A: Risk Factors" under the caption
"We may have exposure to greater than anticipaedlabilities.”

From time to time, we engage in certain interconydaansactions and legal entity restructurings. ddiesider many factors when
evaluating these transactions, including the aligninof our corporate structure with our organizagicobjectives and the operational and tax
efficiency of our corporate structure, as wellfas long-term cash flows and cash needs of ourrdiftdousinesses. These transactions may
impact our overall tax rate and/or result in additil cash tax payments. The impact in any periog lmessignificant. These transactions may
complex and the impact of such transactions orréuperiods may be difficult to estimate.

We are regularly under examination by tax authesitboth domestically and internationally. We bediéivat adequate amounts have beel
reserved for any adjustments that may ultimatedyltefrom these examinations, although we canmaitrasyou that this will be the case given
the inherent uncertainties in these examination® I the ongoing tax examinations, we believg itripractical to determine the amount and
timing of these adjustments.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In millions)
Net cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities 5,671 4,99t 3,83¢
Investing activities (2,679 (6,012 (3,769
Financing activities (2,029 (1,359 1,951
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equigalen (24¢) 48 10C
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equis. 1,83¢ (2,329 2,12¢
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Operating Activities

We generated cash from operating activities of $8libn , $5.0 billion and $3.8 billion in 20142013 and 2012 , respectively. The net
cash provided by operating activities of $5.7itillin 2014 was due primarily to net income of $diflion with adjustments of $2.8 billioin
deferred income taxes, $1.5 billion in depreoiatind amortization, $958 million in provisiom feansaction and loan losses and $675
million in stock-based compensation expense areteedse of $185 million in changes in assetdiahiities, net of acquisition effects.

The net cash provided by operating activities 6f0%illion in 2013 was due primarily to net imse of $2.9 billion with adjustments
of $1.4 billion in depreciation and amortizatiof791 million in provision for transaction andiolosses, $609 million in stock-based
compensation expense and a decrease of $354millichanges in assets and liabilities, net ofisitipn effects and a $75 million gain on
the sale of equity investments and $31 milliordéferred income taxes.

The net cash provided by operating activities 8f8%illion in 2012 was due primarily to net imge of $2.6 billion with adjustments
of $1.2 billion in depreciation and amortizatio®580 million in provision for transaction andiolosses, $488 million in stock-based
compensation expense and a decrease of $756millichanges in assets and liabilities and $3komi in deferred income taxes.

Cash paid for income taxes in 2014 , 2013 and 2042$343 million , $466 million and $789 millionespectively.
Investing Activities

The net cash used in investing activities of $2llibh in 2014 was due primarily to net cash paid purchases of investments of $8.8
billion , purchases of property and equipment aB%illion and the purchase of consumer loan ret#es (net of collections and charge-offs)
originated through our PayPal Credit products oc0%illion , partially offset by proceeds of $8.#Hibn for sales of investments.

The net cash used in investing activities of $6llibh in 2013 was due primarily to net cash paid purchases of investments of $7.5
billion, purchases of property and equipment oB%illion and the purchase of consumer loan red#@s(net of collections and charge-offs)
originated through our PayPal Credit products &4million, partially offset by proceeds of $3.9libn for sales of investments.

The net cash used in investing activities of $3ll&h in 2012 was due primarily to net cash paad purchases of investments of $3.1
billion, purchases of property and equipment oB%illion and the purchase of consumer loan red#@s(net of collections) originated
through our PayPal Credit products of $727 millipartially offset by proceeds of $1.4 billion falss of investments.

Financing Activities

The net cash used in financing activities of $ilih in 2014 was due primarily to cash outflowis$4.7 billion to repurchase common
stock and $252 million paid for tax withholding$ated to net share settlements of restricted stods. These cash outflows were partially
offset by inflows of $3.5 billion from the issuaneesenior notes, $300 million from the issuance@hmon stock in connection with the
exercise of stock options and our employee stockhase plan, and $115 million in excess tax ben&fim stock-based compensation.

The net cash used in financing activities of $ilkbh in 2013 was due primarily to cash outflows®1.3 billion to repurchase our
common stock, $400 million for the net repaymendelit and $267 million paid for tax withholding$ated to net share settlements of
restricted stock units. These cash outflows wergghig offset by inflows of $437 million from thessuance of common stock in connection
with the exercise of stock options and our emplasteek purchase plan, and $201 million in excesdemefits from stock-based
compensation.

The net cash provided by financing activities ofd®illion in 2012 was due primarily to cash inflswf approximately $3.0 billion from
the issuance of senior notes, $483 million fromigiseance of common stock in connection with ther@ge of stock options and our employee
stock purchase plan, and $130 million in exces$emefits from stock based compensation. Theseinistvs were partially offset by
outflows of $898 million in cash paid to repurchase common stock, $550 million for the net repaptnaf commercial paper, and $186
million in cash paid for tax withholdings relatamrtet share settlements of restricted stock unitsused a portion of the net proceeds from th
issuance of our senior notes to repay outstandingercial paper.

60




The negative effect of currency exchange ratesash and cash equivalents during 2014 was due tstrvegthening of the U.S. dollar
against certain foreign currencies, primarily thedcand Korean Won. The positive effect of curreegghange rates on cash and cash
equivalents during 2013 was due to the weakeninbef).S. dollar against certain foreign currengesnarily the Euro. The positive effect of
currency exchange rates on cash and cash equivaerihg 2012 was due to the weakening of the tofar against certain foreign currenc
primarily the British pound and the Euro.

Stock Repurchases

In June 2012, our Board of Directors authorizetbalsrepurchase program that provided for the retpase of up to $2 billion of our
common stock, with no expiration from the date wtharization. In January 2014, our Board of Direstauthorized an additional $5 billion
stock repurchase program, with no expiration fromdate of authorization. These stock repurchasgrams are intended to offset the impact
of dilution from our equity compensation programsl asubject to market conditions and other factams,also used to make opportunistic
repurchases of our common stock to reduce outstgrafiare count. Any share repurchases under ak stpurchase programs may be made
through open market transactions, block tradesafely negotiated transactions (including accesetahare repurchase transactions) or other
means at times and in such amounts as managenensa@ppropriate and will be funded from our workiagital or other financing
alternatives.

During 2014, we repurchased approximately $4.liohil of our common stock under our stock repureh@®grams. As of December
31, 2014, we had repurchased the full amount ofrcomstock authorized under our June 2012 stockrcbpse program and a total of
approximately $985 million remained available fiorther repurchases of our common stock undedanuary 2014 stock repurchase
program.

In addition, in January 2015, our board of direst@uthorized an additional $2 billion stock regase program, with no expiration
from the date of authorization. This new stock repase program, together with approximately $98%ani remaining under our January
2014 stock repurchase program, brings the totalrolyase authorization as of January 2015 to apmately $3.0 billion .

We expect, subject to market conditions and otheertainties, to continue making opportunistic repases of our stock. However, our
stock repurchase programs may be limited or tertathat any time without prior notice. The timingdaactual number of shares repurchased
will depend on a variety of factors including corate and regulatory requirements, price and otleket conditions and management’s
determination as to the appropriate use of our.cash

Shelf Registration Statement

At December 31, 2014 , we had an effective shefisteation statement on file with the Securitied &xchange Commission that allows
us to issue various types of debt securities, dsawseommon stock, preferred stock, warrants, dié@y shares representing fractional interes
in shares of preferred stock, purchase contractaiaits from time to time in one or more offeringsch issuance under the shelf registration
statement will require the filing of a prospectugglement identifying the amount and terms of #heusities to be issued. The registration
statement does not limit the amount of securitias tnay be issued thereunder. Our ability to isaeerrities is subject to market conditions an
other factors including, in the case of our delsusigies, our credit ratings and compliance wite dovenants in our credit agreement.

In July 2014, we issued $3.5 billion of senior unsed notes, or senior notes, in an underwrittédipoffering. These senior notes
remain outstanding and consist of $450 million aggte principal amount of floating rate notes dd&72 $400 million aggregate principal
amount of floating rate notes due 2019, $1.15drillkggregate principal amount of 2.2% notes du® 28150 million aggregate principal
amount of 2.875% notes due 2021 and $750 milligregate principal amount of 3.45% notes due 20R4s& funds were used for general
corporate purposes, including, among other thitigsrepayment of outstanding commercial paper ongs during 2014.

To help achieve our interest rate risk managemigjetctives, in connection with the July 2014 isswaaotsenior unsecured notes, we
entered into interest rate swap agreements thettefély converted $2.4 billion of those fixed ratates to floating rate debt based on the
London InterBank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus a spteButkse swaps were designated as fair value hedgésst changes in the fair value of
certain fixed rate senior notes resulting from demin interest rates.

We previously issued senior notes in underwritteblip offerings, of which $250 million aggregatermipal amount of 0.70% notes d
2015, $1 billion aggregate principal amount of ¥B3botes due 2017, $1 billion aggregate principabamh
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of 2.60% notes due 2022, $750 million aggregatecgal amount of 4.00% notes due 2042, $600 milliggregate principal amount of
1.625% notes due 2015 and $500 million aggregateipal amount of 3.250% notes due 2020 remaindstanding as of December 31, 2014.

The indenture pursuant to which the senior noteg Wgsued includes customary covenants that, arotiray things and subject to
exceptions, limit our ability to incur, assume olgantee debt secured by liens on specified assetster into sale and lease-back transaction
with respect to specified properties, and alsalides customary events of default.

Commercial Paper

We have a $2 billion commercial paper program pamsto which we may issue commercial paper notés maturities of up to 397
days from the date of issue in an aggregate paheimount of up to $2 billion at any time outstangdiAs of December 31, 2014 , there were
no commercial paper notes outstanding. We haveeipast used proceeds from the issuance of comahpeper notes for general corporate
purposes, including funding share repurchases. \&eatect, subject to market conditions, to issuditemhal commercial paper notes from ti
to time in the future.

Credit Agreement

In 2011, we entered into a credit agreement thatiges for an unsecured $3 billion five-year rewdvcredit facility that includes a
$300 million letter of credit sub-facility and a@Lmillion swingline sub-facility, with availableobrowings under the revolving credit facility
reduced by the amount of any letters of creditamithgline borrowings outstanding from time to tifdée may also, subject to the agreeme!
the applicable lenders, increase the commitmerdsmniie revolving credit facility by up to $1 bih. Funds borrowed under the credit
agreement may be used for general corporate pwpose

As of December 31, 2014 , no borrowings or lettérsredit were outstanding under our $3 billionditagreement. As described above,
we have an up to $2 billion commercial paper progeand we maintain $2 billioaf available borrowing capacity under our crediteggnent ir
order to repay commercial paper borrowings in trenewe are unable to repay those borrowings frimresources when they become due
a result, at December 31, 2014 , $1 billion of baing capacity was available for other purposesnitéed by the credit agreement.

Loans under the credit agreement bear interesthetr €i) the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR)s a margin (based on our
public debt credit ratings) ranging from 0.625 patcto 1.125 percent or (ii) a formula based oratpent bank's prime rate, the federal funds
effective rate or LIBOR plus a margin (based onmublic debt credit ratings) ranging from zero gertcto 0.125 percent. The credit agreemer
will terminate and all amounts owing thereundet b due and payable on November 22, 2016, unédsbé commitments are terminated
earlier, either at our request or, if an eventeffdlt occurs, by the lenders (or automaticallthie case of certain bankruptcy-related events of
default), or (b) the maturity date is extended uponrequest, subject to the agreement of the tsndée credit agreement contains customary
representations, warranties, affirmative and nggatovenants, including a financial covenant, eveftdefault and indemnification provisions
in favor of the banks. The negative covenants ohelestrictions regarding the incurrence of liexudhject to certain exceptions. The financial
covenant requires us to meet a quarterly finarte&tlwith respect to a minimum consolidated inteceserage ratio.

We were in compliance with all covenants in ourstartding debt instruments for the period ended Déee 31, 2014 .
Other Indebtedness

In addition to the debt described above, as of Béez 31, 2014 , we had $19 million of borrowingsstanding under our overdraft
facilities.

Credit Ratings

As of January 1, 2014, our long-term debt and steonh funding were rated investment grade by Stahdad Poor's Financial Services,
LLC (long-term rated A, short-term rated A-1, wilstable outlook), Moody's Investor Service (loag+ rated A2, short-term rated1Pwith a
stable outlook), and Fitch Ratings, Inc. (long-teated A, short-term rated F1, with a stable olfjoBollowing the September 2014
announcement of our planned separation of our RdyRiness, Standard and Poor's Financial Seni¢€s.and Moody's Investor Service
placed our long-term debt and short-term fundinimgs under review with negative implications, vehilitch Ratings, Inc. downgraded our
long-term debt from A to A- and shad¥m funding from F1 to F2, retaining our investingrade status, and has also placed those ratimigs
review with negative implications. We did not expece any material operational, funding, or ligtydmpacts from this rating downgrade. '
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expect that these credit rating agencies will cu@ito monitor developments in our planned separatf PayPal, including the capital struct
for each company after separation, which couldltés@additional downgrades.

Our borrowing costs depend, in part, on our credihgs and because downgrades would likely inereas borrowing costs we disclose
these ratings to enhance the understanding offfibet® of our ratings on our costs of funds. Initidd, to assist PayPal in our planned
separation we are currently working with creditngtagencies to obtain separate credit ratingP&yPal and we believe that immediately
following separation both eBay and PayPal will &d investment grade.

Commitments and Contingencies

As of December 31, 2014 , approximately $20.2dmllof unused credit was available to PayPal Ceatibuntholders. While this
amount represents the total unused credit avajlal@éave not experienced, and do not anticiphaés il of our PayPal Credit accountholders
will access their entire available credit at anyegi point in time. In addition, the individual limef credit that make up this unused credit are
subject to periodic review and termination by thartered financial institutions that are the issafdPayPal Credit products based on, among
other things, account usage and customer creditinegs. When a consumer makes a purchase usingPalRaredit products, the chartered
financial institution extends credit to the consunfiends the extension of credit at the point dé sad advances funds to the merchant. We
subsequently purchase the consumer receivablésdeatathe consumer loans and as result of thahpise, bear the risk of loss in the event of
loan defaults. However, we subsequently sell agpation interest in the entire pool of consunaaris to the chartered financial institution
extended the consumer loans. Although the charféradcial institution continues to own the custeraecounts, we own and bear the risk of
loss on the related consumer receivables, lessatieipation interest held by the chartered finahiostitution, and PayPal is responsible fo
servicing functions related to the customer acctafdnces. As of December 31, 2014 , the totatauténg principal balance of this pool of
consumer loans was $3.7 billion , of which the tdr&d financial institution owns a participationerest of $163 million , or 4.4% of the total
outstanding balance of consumer receivables atititat

We have certain fixed contractual obligations aoghmitments that include future estimated paymemtgé&€neral operating purposes.
Changes in our business needs, contractual caticelfovisions, fluctuating interest rates, andestfactors may result in actual payments
differing from the estimates. We cannot providdaiety regarding the timing and amounts of thesangnts. The following table summarizes
our fixed contractual obligations and commitments:

Purchase
Payments Due During the Year Ending December 31, Debt Leases Obligations Total
(In millions)

2015 1,02¢ 11z 27¢ 1,414
2016 164 96 58 31¢
2017 1,61: 83 55 1,751
2018 14¢€ 63 43 254
2019 1,697 42 7 1,74¢
Thereafter 4,70¢ 52 3 4,76
9,35¢ 44¢ 441 10,24¢

The significant assumptions used in our determinadf amounts presented in the above table arellas/é:

- Debt amounts include the principal and inteagsbunts of the respective debt instruments. Foitiaddl details related to our debt,
please see “Note 10 — Debt” to the consolidateaiimal statements included in this report. Thiset@mes not reflect any amounts
payable under our $3 billion revolving credit fégilor $2 billion commercial paper program, for whino borrowings were
outstanding as of December 31, 2014 .

e Lease amounts include minimum rental paymentéieunur non-cancelable operating leases for officdities, fulfillment centers,
as well as computer and office equipment that wzetunder lease arrangements. The amounts pezbang consistent with
contractual terms and are not expected to diffgricantly from actual results under our existiegses, unless a substantial chang
in our headcount needs requires us to expand @uipad space or exit an office facility early.
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e Purchase obligation amounts include minimum pase commitments for advertising, capital expeneécomputer equipment,
software applications, engineering developmentisesy construction contracts) and other goods andces entered into in the
ordinary course of business.

As we are unable to reasonably predict the timingettlement of liabilities related to unrecognize® benefits, net, the table does not
include $410 million of such non-current liabilgiencluded in deferred and other tax liabilitiesmeled on our consolidated balance sheet as
December 31, 2014 .

Liquidity and Capital Resource Requirements

At December 31, 2014 , we had assets classifiedsts and cash equivalents, as well as short agetésm nonequity investments, in ¢
aggregate amount of $14.6 billion , compared to&bilion at December 31, 2013 . At December 3112, this amount included assets held
in certain of our foreign operations totaling appnoately $10.1 billion . If these assets were distied to the U.S., we may be subject to
additional U.S. taxes in certain circumstancesdéscribed under “--Provision for Income Taxes” alyaluring 2014, we accrued deferred
taxes of approximately $3.0 billion on $9.0 billiohundistributed foreign earnings of certain of &areign subsidiaries for 2013 and prior
years that we no longer intend to indefinitely weist in our international operations, which is éstet with our capital allocation strate(
Based on the December 31, 2014 foreign exchangethetise amounts have been revalued at $8.2 hilfiandistributed foreign earnings and
$2.8 hillion of accrued deferred taxes. As of Dmber 31, 2014 , we had not repatriated any of thesgstributed foreign earnings to the U.S.
and, as a result, we have not yet paid U.S. taangrportion of those earnings. However, to therexteat we repatriate these earnings to the
U.S., we will be required to pay U.S. income angl@gble foreign withholding taxes on those amouhitsng the period when such
repatriation occurs. To the extent we repatriaie $8.2 billion of undistributed foreign earningge estimate, based on current tax rates, that i
would increase our U.S. cash by approximately $8libn, net of related tax.

We actively monitor all counterparties that hold oash and cash equivalents and equity investments, focusing primarily on the sg
of principal and secondarily on improving yield ihese assets. We diversify our cash and cash denigand investments among various
counterparties in order to reduce our exposureldramy one of these counterparties fail or encautiféculties. To date, we have not
experienced any material loss or lack of accessitanvested cash, cash equivalents or short-tewesiments; however, we can provide no
assurances that access to our invested cash, qaishlents or short-term investments will not bg@aoted by adverse conditions in the
financial markets. At any point in time we havedsrin our operating accounts and customer accthatsre deposited and invested with tl
party financial institutions.

We currently fund the expansion of the PayPal Gnedlitfolio of loan receivables with domestic anternational cash resources and
borrowings. To the extent that our PayPal Creditber credit products become more widely availdileugh improved and more
comprehensive product integrations with eBay, PbgRd other channels, and as we further promot®&&gredit or other credit products,
customer adoption and usage of such products nm@gnex Any resulting growth in the portfolio of P@Rredit or other loan receivables
would increase our liquidity needs and any failiareneet those liquidity needs could adversely affiee PayPal Credit products.

In June 2014, we agreed, subject to certain camditithat PayPal, one of its affiliates or a tipiedty partner will purchase a portfolio of
consumer loan receivables relating to the cust@oeounts arising out of our current credit progeggreement with Synchrony (formerly GE
Capital Retail Bank) for a price based on the bealke of the consumer loan receivables portfolithattime of the purchase (expected to be
October 2016), subject to certain adjustments antlisions. As of December 31, 2014 , Synchrony#dadt receivables portfolio under the
credit program agreement of approximately $1.5dwill

We believe that our existing cash, cash equivalemtisshort-term and long-term investments, togetlitgr cash expected to be generated
from operations, borrowings available under ouditragreement and commercial paper program, andaeess to capital markets, will be
sufficient to fund our operating activities, anpiated capital expenditures, PayPal Credit portfolitnan receivables and stock repurchases fo
the foreseeable future.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
As of December 31, 2014 , we had no off-balancetstigangements that have, or are reasonably likdiave, a current or future

material effect on our consolidated financial cdiodi, results of operations, liquidity, capital exulitures or capital resources.
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We have various cash pooling arrangements witméirg institutions for cash management purposess@&arrangements allow for cash
withdrawals from these financial institutions basgdn our aggregate operating cash balances h#ithwhe same financial institution
(“Aggregate Cash Deposits”). These arrangementsadlisw us to withdraw amounts exceeding the Agagregash Deposits up to an agreed-
upon limit. The net balance of the withdrawals #me Aggregate Cash Deposits are used by thesecfalamstitutions as a basis for calculating
our net interest expense or income under thesegamaents. As of December 31, 2014 , we had adbtd.2 billion in cash withdrawals
offsetting our $7.2 billion in Aggregate Cash Defohkeld within these financial institutions undleese cash pooling arrangements.

Indemnification Provisions

In the ordinary course of business, we have in@uuheited indemnification provisions in certain @fir agreements with parties with
which we have commercial relations, including aanglard marketing, promotions and application-progning-interface license agreements.
Under these contracts, we generally indemnify, ialdnless and agree to reimburse the indemnifiety far losses suffered or incurred by
indemnified party in connection with claims by &dhparty with respect to our domain names, trad&mdogos and other branding element
the extent that such marks are applicable to odopeance under the subject agreement. In mants ehajor ecommerce agreements, our
Enterprise business has agreed to indemnify Erngerplients against certain claims by third panteggarding our products and services; these
agreements may include indemnities related to uarintellectual property rights, and we have predidimilar indemnities in a limited numt
of agreements for our other businesses. In cectsas we have agreed to provide indemnificatioimtetlectual property infringement. In our
PayPal business, we have provided an indemnityt@ayment processors in the event of certain 4béndy claims or card association fines
against the processor arising out of conduct byPBhgr PayPal customers. PayPal has also provitiedtad indemnity to merchants using its
retail point of sale payment services and to mastufars of its point of sale devices (e.g., theHRdyHere devices and the Beacon device). In
addition, Bill Me Later has provided indemnificatiprovisions in its agreements with the chartenearfcial institutions that issue its credit
products. It is not possible to determine the maximpotential loss under these indemnification mimvis due to our limited history of prior
indemnification claims and the unique facts andwinstances involved in each particular provisiomdate, losses recorded in our consolid
statement of income in connection with our indeigation provisions have not been significant, eitineividually or collectively.

PayPal Separation

As disclosed above, in September 2014 we announgeplan to separate PayPal into an independeticputstaded company. We
expect to complete the separation in the secorfdbhaD15. In connection with this action we arelartaking capital structure planning for
each company. We are working to ensure that egedrae business is well capitalized with finanfi@tibility to pursue their strategic
priorities. We have not accrued U.S. income andiegdge foreign withholding taxes on the unremitfeckign earnings that we currently plan
to indefinitely reinvest. These plans may changa eesult of our capital structure planning. Chang@de to our capital structure in prepare
for the separation may impact the amount indefipiteinvested or the tax consequences of repatgdtreign earnings. Such a change in
either would impact the amount of tax accrued orennitted foreign earnings, which could change theant of cash available for each
separate entity.

Critical Accounting Policies, Judgments and Estinest
General

The preparation of our consolidated financial steets and related notes requires us to make judgirestimates and assumptions tha
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilitiegenue and expenses, and related disclosurentihgent assets and liabilities. We have base
our estimates on historical experience and on uaraiher assumptions that are believed to be rahtonnder the circumstances, the results «
which form the basis for making judgments aboutdheying values of assets and liabilities thatreoereadily apparent from other sources.
Our senior management has discussed the developsetadtion and disclosure of these estimatestivitAudit Committee of our Board of
Directors. Actual results may differ from theserestes under different assumptions or conditions.

An accounting policy is considered to be critidat requires an accounting estimate to be madedas assumptions about matters that
are highly uncertain at the time the estimate idenand if different estimates that reasonablyatalve been used, or changes in the
accounting estimates that are reasonably likebctaur periodically, could materially impact the solidated financial statements. We believe
the following critical accounting policies refleitte more significant estimates and assumptions insésg preparation of our consolidated
financial statements. The following descriptionsofical
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accounting policies, judgments and estimates shoeilbad in conjunction with our consolidated ficiahstatements and related notes and
other disclosures included in this report.

Provision for Transaction and Loan Losses

Provision for transaction and loan losses congistsarily of transaction loss expense associated air customer protection programs,
fraud, chargebacks and merchant credit lossesgdlaidexpense associated with our accounts receibathnces and loan losses associated
with our loan receivables balances. We expect owrigion for transaction and loan loss expensduittidate depending on many factors,
including macroeconomic conditions, our custometgxtion programs and the impact of regulatory gean

The following table illustrates the provision foamsaction and loan losses as a percentage aévegiues for 2014 , 2013 and 2012 :

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In millions, except percentages)
Net revenues $ 17,90 $ 16,047 $ 14,07:
Provision for transaction and loan losses $ 95¢ % 791 % 58C
Provision for transaction and loan losses as a #iebfevenues 5.4% 4.S% 4.1%

Determining appropriate allowances for these logsas inherently uncertain process and is sulbgestimerous estimates and
judgments, and ultimate losses may vary from thecot estimates. We regularly update our allowarstenates as new facts become kni
and events occur that may impact the settlemerdgamvery of losses. The allowances are maintaihedevel we deem appropriate to
adequately provide for losses incurred at the lwalameet date. An aggregate 50 basis point dewifiien our provision for transaction and
loan losses as a percentage of net revenues wauédrisulted in an increase or decrease in opgriattome of approximately $90 million in
2014 , resulting in an approximate $0.05 chang#liied earnings per share.

Legal Contingencies

In connection with certain pending litigation arttieér claims, we have estimated the range of predakk, net of expected recoveries,
and provided for such losses through charges teansolidated statement of income. These estinates been based on our assessment
facts and circumstances at each balance sheesamdi@re subject to change based upon new informatid future events.

From time to time, we are involved in disputes eegllatory inquiries that arise in the ordinary is@uof business. We are currently
involved in legal proceedings, some of which asedssed in “Item 1A: Risk Factors,” “Item 3: Le@abceedings” and “Note 11 -
Commitments and Contingencids’the consolidated financial statements incluatetthis report. We believe that we have meritoridefense:
to the claims against us, and we intend to defemdedves vigorously. However, even if successfut,defense against certain actions will be
costly and could require significant amounts of agament's time and result in the diversion of $icgmt operational resources. If the
plaintiffs were to prevail on certain claims, weghi be forced to pay significant damages and licgrntees, modify our business practices or
even be prohibited from conducting a significant o our business. Any such results could matiertzrm our business and could result in a
material adverse impact on the financial positr@sults of operations or cash flows of any or &thar business segments.
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Accounting for Income Taxes

Our annual tax rate is based on our income, st3ttaa rates and tax planning opportunities avédab us in the various jurisdictions in
which we operate. Tax laws are complex and sultjedifferent interpretations by the taxpayer argpeztive government taxing authorities.
Significant judgment is required in determining ¢ax expense and in evaluating our tax positianduding evaluating uncertainties. We
review our tax positions quarterly and adjust takabces as new information becomes available. @amie tax rate is significantly affected by
the tax rates that apply to our foreign earningsaddition to local country tax laws and regulasioour income tax rate depends on the extent
that our earnings are indefinitely reinvested algshe U.S. Indefinite reinvestment is determingdnianagement's judgment about and
intentions concerning our future operations. At &aber 31, 2014 , $7.9 billion of earnings had hadefinitely reinvested outside the U.S.,
primarily in active non-U.S. business operationg @ not intend to repatriate these earnings td fut$. operations and, accordingly, we do
not provide for U.S. federal income and foreignhiuitlding tax on these earnings.

Deferred tax assets represent amounts availabégltace income taxes payable on taxable incometumdyears. Such assets arise
because of temporary differences between the finhreporting and tax bases of assets and liadsliths well as from net operating loss anc
credit carryforwards. We evaluate the recoverabdftthese future tax deductions and credits bgssing the adequacy of future expected
taxable income from all sources, including reveasahxable temporary differences, forecasted dpeyaarnings and available tax planning
strategies. These sources of income rely heavikystimates that are based on a number of factmisiding our historical experience and shor
range and long-range business forecasts. At Deaeddh@014 , we had a valuation allowance on aeftas carryforwards based on our
assessment that it is more likely than not thatiéferred tax asset will not be realized.

We recognize and measure uncertain tax positioasdnrdance with generally accepted accountingiplies in the U.S., or GAAP,
pursuant to which we only recognize the tax beriedin an uncertain tax position if it is more ligghan not that the tax position will be
sustained on examination by the taxing authoribesed on the technical merits of the position. fBlxébenefits recognized in the financial
statements from such positions are then measusstilmm the largest benefit that has a greater3baercent likelihood of being realized uj
ultimate settlement. We report a liability for uoognized tax benefits resulting from uncertaingazitions taken or expected to be taken in a
tax return. GAAP further requires that a changgidgment related to the expected ultimate resatutibuncertain tax positions be recognized
in earnings in the quarter in which such changeiscdNe recognize interest and penalties, if aghated to unrecognized tax benefits in
income tax expense.

We file annual income tax returns in multiple taxjnrisdictions around the world. A number of yearay elapse before an uncertain
position is audited by the relevant tax authoritied finally resolved. While it is often difficuid predict the final outcome or the timing of
resolution of any particular uncertain tax positiaee believe that our reserves for income taxdecethe most likely outcome. We adjust these
reserves, as well as the related interest, wheyppate in light of changing facts and circumses Settlement of any particular position
could require the use of cash.

The following table illustrates our effective teates for 2014 , 2013 and 2012 :

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In millions, except percentages)
Provision for income taxes $ 3,48 % 61C $ 47E
As a % of income before income taxes 99% 18% 15%

Our future effective tax rates could be adverséfigcéed by earnings being lower than anticipateddantries where we have lower
statutory rates and higher than anticipated in t@smwhere we have higher statutory rates, by gbsim the valuation of our deferred tax
assets or liabilities, or by changes or interpretatin tax laws, regulations or accounting prifesp In addition, we are subject to the
continuous examination of our income tax returnghgylnternal Revenue Service, as well as varitate sind foreign tax authorities. We
regularly assess the likelihood of adverse outcamssglting from these examinations to determineatthequacy of our provision for income
taxes.

Based on our results for the year ended Decemhe034 , a one-percentage point change in our gi@vifor income taxes as a
percentage of income before taxes would have egbuitan increase or decrease in the provisioppfaximately $35 million , resulting in an
approximate $0.03 change in diluted earnings paresh
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Revenue Recognition

We may enter into certain revenue transactionmauily related to arrangements in our Enterpriggrsnt and certain advertising
contracts, that are considered multiple elememingements (arrangements with more than one ddlilgraVe also may enter into
arrangements to purchase goods and/or servicesciedi@n customers. As a result, significant intetgtion and judgment is sometimes
required to determine the appropriate accountinghfese transactions including: (1) how the arramg@ consideration should be allocated
among potential multiple deliverables; (2) devehgpan estimate of the stand-alone selling priceagh deliverable; (3) whether revenue
should be reported gross (as eBay is acting ameipal), or net (as eBay is acting as an ageA))ihen we provide cash consideration to our
customers, determining whether we are receiviniglamtifiable benefit that is separable from thetomeer's purchase of our products and/or
services and for which we can reasonably estinzatevélue; and (5) whether the arrangement wouldHaeacterized as revenue or
reimbursement of costs incurred. Changes in judgsn&ith respect to these assumptions and estircatdd impact the timing or amount of
revenue recognition.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The purchase price of an acquired company is dbodaetween intangible assets and the net tangdislets of the acquired business
the residual of the purchase price recorded aswitio@he determination of the value of the intalgi assets acquired involves certain
judgments and estimates. These judgments can mdhud are not limited to, the cash flows that ssehis expected to generate in the fu
and the appropriate weighted average cost of dapita

At December 31, 2014 , our goodwill totaled $9 idn and our identifiable intangible assets, rékled $564 million . We assess the
impairment of goodwill of our reporting units antiyaor more often if events or changes in circusmsees indicate that the carrying value may
not be recoverable. Goodwill is tested for impaintregt the reporting unit level by first performiagyjualitative assessment to determine
whether it is more likely than not that the faituaof the reporting unit is less than its carryirmdue. If the reporting unit does not pass the
gualitative assessment, then the reporting urdtis/ing value is compared to its fair value. Thie ¥alues of the reporting units are estimated
using market and discounted cash flow approachesdw®ill is considered impaired if the carrying valof the reporting unit exceeds its fair
value. The discounted cash flow approach uses &ghéature operating results. The market approaes comparable company information tc
determine revenue and earnings multiples to valueeporting units. Failure to achieve these exguboesults or market multiples may cause ¢
future impairment of goodwill at the reporting unife conducted our annual impairment test of gobbdwiof August 31, 2014 and 2013. A
December 31, 2014 , we determined that no impaitiwithe carrying value of goodwill for any repogi units was required. See “Note 4 -
Goodwill and Intangible Assets” to the consolidafi@dncial statements included in this report.

Stock-Based Compensation

We measure and recognize stock-based compensapense based on the fair value measurement fehaik-based payment awards
made to our employees and directors, including eyga stock options, employee stock purchases atricted stock awards, over the service
period for awards expected to vest. Stock-basecpeasation expense recognized for 2014 , 2013 ah? @@s $675 million , $609 million
and $488 million , respectively. See “Note 15 -cRtBased and Employee Savings Plans” to the catetelil financial statements included in
this report.
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We calculated the fair value of each restrictedlssoward based on our stock price on the dateasftgiVe calculated the fair value of
each stock option award on the date of grant usiaddlack-Scholes option pricing model. The deteation of fair value of stock option
awards on the date of grant using an option-priainglel is affected by our stock price as well auagptions regarding a number of additional
variables described below. The use of a Black-Ssholodel requires extensive actual employee excbeibavior data and a number of
assumptions, including expected life, expectedtilitja risk-free interest rate and dividend yiells a result, future stock-based compensatior
expense may differ from our historical amounts. Weighted-average grant-date fair value of stodioop granted during 2014 , 2013 and
2012 was $13.59 , $15.39 and $11.21 per sharesatregly, using the Black-Scholes model with thiéofeing weighted-average assumptions:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Risk-free interest rate 1.2% 0.6% 0.7%
Expected life (in years) 4.1 4.1 4.C
Dividend yield —% —% —%
Expected volatility 29% 34% 38%

Our computation of expected volatility for 2014013 and 2012 was based on a combination of histicaied market-based implied
volatility from traded options on our stock. Oumgoutation of expected life was determined baselistorical experience of similar awards,
giving consideration to the contractual terms &f $tock-based awards, vesting schedules and ekipestaf future employee behavior. The
interest rate for periods within the contractud 6f the award was based on the U.S. Treasury gigive in effect at the time of grant. The
estimation of awards that will ultimately vest regs judgment, and to the extent actual resuligpolated estimates differ from our current
estimates, such amounts will be recorded as a @aiivelladjustment in the period estimates are rdvidée consider many factors when
estimating forfeitures, including employee clasd historical experience.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See "Note 1 - The Company and Summary of Signifiégaeounting Policies" to the consolidated finahsi@mtements included in this
report, regarding the impact of certain recent antiag pronouncements on our consolidated finarst&kements.

ITEM 7A: QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to interest rate risk relating toimeestment portfolio and our outstanding debt. $&ek to reduce earnings volatility that
may result from changes in interest rates.

As of December 31, 2014 , approximately 40% oftotal cash and investment portfolio was held irhcasd cash equivalents. As such,
changes in interest rates will impact interest meoAs discussed below, fixed rate securities naae ltheir fair market value adversely
affected due to a rise in interest rates, and we suffer losses in principal if we are forced tdl securities that have declined in market value
due to changes in interest rates.

As of December 31, 2013, 100% of the outstandimjpseotes issued under our shelf registratiorestants bore interest at fixed rates.
In July 2014, we issued additional senior notesnraggregate principal amount of $3.5 billion coisgut of $850 million of floating rate notes
and $2.65 bhillion of fixed rate notes, as descrilvetthe “Shelf Registration Statement and Long-T&ebt” section of "ltem 7—Managemest’
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &webults of Operations” above. In order to redudatiity that may result from changes in
interest rates, we entered into $2.4 billion oéiest rate swap agreements that have the econffegt @ modifying the fixed interest
obligations associated with $1.15 hillion of ou2%. senior notes due July 2019, $750 million of 2&75% senior notes due July 2021, and
$500 million of our 3.450% senior notes due Jul2480 that the interest payable on those notesteiy became variable based on LIBOR
plus a spread. Further changes in interest ratésnpiact interest expense on any borrowings umderevolving credit facility, which bear
interest at floating rates, and the interest ratarmmy commercial paper borrowings we make and aby securities we may issue in the future
and, accordingly, will impact interest expense astof net revenues (or both).
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As of December 31, 2014 , we held no direct invesiis in auction rate securities, collateralizect déltigations, structured investment
vehicles or mortgage-backed securities. For aduitidetails related to our investment activitideape see "Note 6 - Investments" to the
consolidated financial statements included in taort.

Investments in both fixed-rate and floating-rateiast-earning instruments carry varying degreéstefest rate risk. The fair market
value of our fixed-rate investment securities mayalversely impacted due to a rise in interessraegeneral, fixedate securities with long
maturities are subject to greater interest-ratethian those with shorter maturities. While flogtiate securities generally are subject to less
interest-rate risk than fixed-rate securities, filogrrate securities may produce less income thpedated if interest rates decrease and may als
suffer a decline in market value if interest ratesease. Due in part to these factors, our investrimcome may fall short of expectations or
may suffer losses in principal if securities arllgbat have declined in market value due to chamgénterest rates. As of December 31, 2014
the balance of our government bond and corpordiesdeurity portfolio was $8.1 billion , which regsented approximately 51% of our total
cash and investment portfolio. As of December 8142, our government bond and corporate debt dgquoitfolio earned an average pretax
yield of approximateh1.21% , with a weighted average maturity of 22 rhergnd a weighted average remaining duration afoe@pately 15
months. If interest rates at the end of the yeaewW €0 basis points higher (lower), the fair maskatie of our total fixed-income investment
portfolio as of December 31, 2014 could have degégincreased) by approximately $103 million .

Investment Risk

The primary objective of our investment activitisgo preserve principal while at the same timerimnmg yields without significantly
increasing risk. To achieve this objective, we rtamour portfolio of cash equivalents and shontrtend long-term investments in a variety of
asset types, including bank deposits, money méukels, government bonds and corporate debt sezuriti

As of December 31, 2014 , our cost and equity mietheestments totaled $225 million , which représdrapproximately 1%f our tota
cash and investment portfolio and were primarilptexl to equity method investments in privatelydhedmpanies. We review our investments
for impairment when events and circumstances ineliaalecline in fair value of such assets belowyaay value is other-than-temporary. Our
analysis includes a review of recent operatingltesund trends, recent sales/acquisitions of toargées in which we have invested and other
publicly available data.

Equity Price Risk

We are exposed to equity price risk on marketapigte instruments due to market volatility. At Dadeer 31, 2014 , the total fair value
of our marketable equity instruments (primarilyated to our equity holdings in MercadoLibre) wad0#dillion , which represented
approximately 7% of our total cash and investmemtfplio.

Foreign Currency Risk

We have significant operations internationally thieg denominated in foreign currencies, primatily Euro, British Pound, Korean Won
and Australian Dollar, subjecting us to foreignremcy risk which may adversely impact our financésdults. We transact business in various
foreign currencies and have significant internatlaevenues as well as costs. In addition, we @haty international subsidiaries for their use
of intellectual property and technology and fortair corporate services provided by eBay and byPBhyOur cash flow, results of operations
and certain of our intercompany balances that gpesed to foreign exchange rate fluctuations mégrdinaterially from expectations and we
may record significant gains or losses due to fpreurrency fluctuations and related hedging atixii

We have a foreign exchange exposure managemengpnatesigned to identify material foreign curreegposures, manage these
exposures and reduce the potential effects of coyréuctuations on our reported consolidated dlsks and results of operations through the
purchase of foreign currency exchange contractssé& fioreign currency exchange contracts are aceddiot as derivative instruments; for
additional details related to our derivative insients, please see “Note 8 — Derivative Instrumetotsfie consolidated financial statements
included in this report.
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European Debt Exposures

We actively monitor our exposure to the Europearkets, including the impact of sovereign debt issagsociated with Cyprus, Gree
Ireland, Italy, Portugal and Spain. As of Decenttier2014 , we did not have any direct investmemtié sovereign debt of these countries or
in debt securities issued by corporations or fifnnstitutions organized in these countries. Wantain a small number of operating bank
accounts with Spanish, Italian and Portuguese bifrdthave balances that we do not consider mhteria
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ITEM 8: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The consolidated financial statements and accompgmptes listed in Part IV, Item 15(a)(1) of thienual Report on Form 10-K are
included elsewhere in this Annual Report on ForrK10

ITEM 9: CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A: CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedur&ased on the evaluation of our disclosure contant procedures (as defined in the
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the SecuHtiesange Act of 1934, or the Exchange Act) requingdExchange Act Rules 13a-15(b) or
15d-15(b), our principal executive officer and guincipal financial officer have concluded thatedishe end of the period covered by this
report, our disclosure controls and procedures wHeetive.

Changes in internal controlsThere were no changes in our internal controls Gimancial reporting as defined in Exchange Act
Rule 13a-15(f) that occurred during our most rdlgectimpleted fiscal quarter that have materialfigetied, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over fingaareporting.

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Ovieancial Reporting.Our management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting. Our management, including our printigeecutive officer and principal financi
officer, conducted an evaluation of the effectiv@nef our internal control over financial reportio@sed on the framework internal Control -
Integrated Framework (201issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission. Based on its evaloatio
under the framework imternal Control - Integrated Framewotkour management concluded that our internal cbotrer financial reporting
was effective as of December 31, 2014 .

The effectiveness of our internal control over ficial reporting as of December 31, 2014 has beditealiby PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP, an independent registered public accounting,fas stated in their report which appears in li&ga) of this Annual Report on Form 10-
K.

ITEM 9B: OTHER INFORMATION
Not applicable.

PART Il

ITEM 10: DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNRXCE

Incorporated by reference from our Proxy Staterfmmbur 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to lbedf with the SEC within
120 days after the end of the year ended Decenihed(d 4 .

Code of Ethics, Governance Guidelines and Committearters

We have adopted@ode of Business Conduct and Ethitat applies to all eBay employees and directors.Have also adoptedGode o
Ethics for Senior Financial Officethat applies to our senior financial officers, umtihg our principal executive officer, principahéincial
officer and principal accounting officer. Ti®de of Ethics for Senior Financial Officassincluded in ouCode of Business Conduct and
Ethicsposted on our website http://investor.ebayinc.com/corporate-governanaa.&f/e will post any amendments to or waivers from the
Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officasthat location.

We have also adoptd&glovernance Guidelines for the Board of Directarsl a written committee charter for each of ourifud
Committee, Compensation Committee and Corporatefdavnce and Nominating Committee. Each of thesardents is available on our
website ahttp://investor.ebayinc.com/corporate-governanga.cf

ITEM 11: EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Incorporated by reference from our Proxy Statenfembur 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to thedf with the SEC within
120 days after the end of the year ended Decenihe&d(3 4 .

Annual stock option grants awarded to executivespaiced and granted to executives on the sameaddtat the same price that they are
granted to and priced for the rest of our eligéaeployees and have the same four-year vesting stghed
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These annual stock option grants are awarded oih Agor if April 1 is not a trading day, the nexading day with vesting effective as of April
1). Prior to 2012, these stock option grants haentawarded on March 1 of each year (or if Marelag not a trading day, the next trading

with vesting effective as of March 1).

ITEM 12: SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS ANDMANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

Incorporated by reference from our Proxy Staterfmmbur 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to lbedf with the SEC within
120 days after the end of the year ended Decenihed(34 .

ITEM 13: CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, ANCDIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Incorporated by reference from our Proxy Statenf@mbur 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to tedf with the SEC within
120 days after the end of the year ended Decenihed(34 .

ITEM 14: PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Incorporated by reference from our Proxy Staterfmmbur 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to lbedf with the SEC within
120 days after the end of the year ended Decenihed(3 4 .

PART IV

Item 15: EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE
(a) The following documents are filed as part @ tieport:

1. Consolidated Financial Statements:

Page
Number
Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm E1
Consolidated Balance Sheet E-2
Consolidated Statement of Income E-3
Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Incoe F-4
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity E5
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements E7
2. Financial Statement Schedule

Schedule Il - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts E-45

All other schedules have been omitted becausenthamation required to be set forth therein is aygplicable or is
shown in the financial statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits Required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K
The information required by this Item is set fartthe Index of Exhibits that follows the signatyage of this Annual F-48
Report.

73




Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of elBay

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetadisted in the index appearing under Item 15{g)(&sent fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of eBay Inc. and its subsidiarég December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013hanmgsults of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the three years in the pezitded December 31, 2014 in conformity with actiogrprinciples generally accepted in the
United States of America. In addition, in our opimi the financial statement schedule listed initldex appearing under item 15(a)(2) prese
fairly, in all material respects, the informaticet $orth therein when read in conjunction with th&ated consolidated financial statements. Alsc
in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over fical reporting as of December 31, 2014
based on criteria establishedimernal Control - Integrated Framewo(R013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Omgitns of the
Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company's managamessponsible for these financial statementsfanahcial statement schedule, for
maintaining effective internal control over finaalcieporting and for its assessment of the effectdss of internal control over financial
reporting, included in Management's Report on l@kControl over Financial Reporting appearing uritlem 9A. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statementtefinancial statement schedule, and on the Coy'paternal control over financial
reporting based on our integrated audits. We caedusur audits in accordance with the standardseoPublic Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standamisinethat we plan and perform the audits to obta&rsonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatgrand whether effective internal control overfinial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. Our audits of the financialestegnts included examining, on a test basis, evasuapporting the amounts and disclosures ir
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made dyagement, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. Our audit ofrimaécontrol over financial reporting included dbtag an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, assessing the risk thataderial weakness exists, and testing and evafy#tie design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. Qditsaaiso included performing such other procedasewe considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provideaaonable basis for our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableasmesuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statet:iéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (fppeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetsofdmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureh®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witibaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readnaassurance regarding prevention or timely detectf unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agject to the risk that controls may become inadegbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
February 5, 2015
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PART II: FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ltem 8: Financial Statement:

eBay Inc.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

December 31, December 31,
2014 2013
(In millions, except par value amounts)
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,32¢ % 4,49¢
Short-term investments 3,77( 4,531
Accounts receivable, net 797 89¢
Loans and interest receivable, net 3,60( 2,78¢
Funds receivable and customer accounts 10,54¢ 9,26(
Other current assets 1,491 1,31(C
Total current assets 26,53: 23,28:
Long-term investments 5,77 4,971
Property and equipment, net 2,902 2,76(
Goodwill 9,09« 9,26
Intangible assets, net 564 941
Other assets 264 26¢€
Total assets $ 45,13: % 41,48¢

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Short-term debt $ 85C % 6
Accounts payable 401 30¢
Funds payable and amounts due to customers 10,54¢ 9,26(
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 5,39: 2,79¢
Deferred revenue 18¢ 15¢
Income taxes payable 154 107

Total current liabilities 17,53: 12,63¢

Deferred and other tax liabilities, net 792 841
Long-term debt 6,77 4,117
Other liabilities 12¢ 244
Total liabilities 25,22¢ 17,84:

Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)
Stockholders' equity:

Common stock, $0.001 par value; 3,580 shares dméthrl,224 and 1,294 shares outstanding 2 2
Additional paid-in capital 13,881 13,03:
Treasury stock at cost, 384 and 296 shares (14,059 (9,396
Retained earnings 18,90( 18,85
Accumulated other comprehensive income 1,171 1,15¢
Total stockholders' equity 19,90¢ 23,64’

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 4513:  $ 41,48t

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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eBay Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In millions, except per share amounts)
Net revenues $ 17,90: $ 16,047 $ 14,07.
Cost of net revenues 5,732 5,03¢ 4,21¢
Gross profit 12,17( 11,01: 9,85¢

Operating expenses:

Sales and marketing 3,58 3,06( 2,91:

Product development 2,00( 1,76¢ 1,57

General and administrative 1,84: 1,70z 1,56

Provision for transaction and loan losses 95¢ 791 58C

Amortization of acquired intangible assets 26¢ 31¢ 33t

Total operating expenses 8,65¢ 7,64( 6,96¢

Income from operations 3,51¢ 3,371 2,88¢
Interest and other, net 17 95 19¢
Income before income taxes 3,531 3,46¢ 3,08¢
Provision for income taxes (3,485 (610) (47%)
Net income $ 46 3 2,85¢ $ 2,60¢
Net income per share:

Basic $ 0.0¢ $ 220 % 2.0z

Diluted $ 0.04¢ $ 21¢ % 1.9¢
Weighted average shares:

Basic 1,251 1,29¢ 1,292

Diluted 1,26: 1,31 1,31

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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eBay Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In millions)
Net income $ 46 $ 2,85¢ $  2,60¢
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of recliasgibn adjustments:
Foreign currency translation gain (loss) (323 20¢ 337
Unrealized gains (losses) on investments, net 10¢ 234 9¢
Tax (expense) benefit on unrealized gains (losze#vestments, net (37 (93 (6)
Unrealized gains (losses) on hedging activities, ne 274 (52) (227
Tax (expense) benefit on unrealized gains (losme$)edging activities, net @) 2 4
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 15 30C 307
Comprehensive income $ 61 $ 315 $§ 2,91¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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eBay Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

(In millions)
Common stock:
Balance, beginning of year $ 2 3 2 3 2
Common stock issued — — —
Common stock repurchased/forfeited — — —

Balance, end of year 2 2 2
Additional paid-in-capital:
Balance, beginning of year 13,03 12,06: 11,14¢
Common stock and stock-based awards issued anchedsu 46 17¢ 31z
Stock-based compensation 693 572 48¢
Stock-based awards tax impact 117 224 117
Non-controlling interests — — —
Balance, end of year 13,88 13,03: 12,06:
Treasury stock at cost:
Balance, beginning of year (9,396 (8,059 (7,155
Common stock repurchased (4,65¢) (1,349 (89¢)
Balance, end of year (14,05¢) (9,39¢) (8,057
Retained earnings:
Balance, beginning of year 18,85¢ 15,99¢ 13,38¢
Net income 46 2,85¢ 2,60¢
Balance, end of year 18,90( 18,85« 15,99¢
Accumulated other comprehensive income:
Balance, beginning of year 1,15¢€ 85¢€ 54¢
Change in unrealized gains on investments 10¢ 234 99
Change in unrealized gains (losses) on cash flalgde 274 (52) (127)
Foreign currency translation adjustment (323) 20¢ 33t
Tax benefit (provision) on above items (449 (91 —
Balance, end of year 1,171 1,15¢ 85¢€
Total stockholders' equity $ 19,90¢ $ 23,647 % 20,86t

Number of Shares:
Common stock:

Balance, beginning of year 1,29¢ 1,29¢ 1,28¢
Common stock issued 18 25 30
Common stock repurchased/forfeited (89) (25) (22

Balance, end of year 1,22¢ 1,29¢ 1,29¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetheasolidated financial statements.
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eBay Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS



Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

(In millions)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 46 $ 2,85¢ $ 2,60¢
Adjustments:

Provision for transaction and loan losses 95¢ 791 58(
Depreciation and amortization 1,49( 1,40( 1,20(
Stock-based compensation 67& 60¢ 48¢
Deferred income taxes 2,80¢ (31) (3%
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation (115) (207) (130)
Gain on sale of equity investments — (7%) —
Gain on divestiture of businesses — — (11¢)

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acqaisiffects

Accounts receivable 1€ (123) (207)

Other current assets (189) (37¢) (310

Other non-current assets 14 (10§) (9€)

Accounts payable 87 7 (2€)

Accrued expenses and other liabilities (347) (©)] (164)

Deferred revenue 3C 2C 2€

Income taxes payable and other tax liabilities 19¢ 231 9

Net cash provided by operating activities 5,671 4,99t 3,83¢
Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of property and equipment 1,279 (1,250 (1,259

Changes in principal loans receivable, net (1,020 (794) (727)

Purchases of investments (8,839 (7,50%) (3,129

Maturities and sales of investments 8,52¢ 3,948 1,421

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (59) (869) (149)

Repayment of note receivable and sale of relatayemvestments — 48t —

Proceeds from divested business, net of cash didpos — — 144

Other (13) (22) (79)

Net cash used in investing activities (2,679 (6,019 (3,769
Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from issuance of common stock 30C 437 48¢

Repurchases of common stock (4,65%) (1,349 (89¢)

Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation 11¢ 201 13C

Tax withholdings related to net share settlemehtssiricted stock awards and units (252) (267) (18€)

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt, net 3,48: — 2,97¢

Repayments under commercial paper program — — (550

Repayment of debt — (400) —

Funds receivable and customer accounts, net (1,28%) (1,149 (4,12¢)

Funds payable and amounts due to customers, net 1,28t 1,14¢ 4,12¢

Other 9 18 (4)

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (1,029 (1,359 1,951

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casiatmts (24¢) 48 10C

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent 1,83¢ (2,329 2,12¢

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 4,49¢ 6,817 4,691

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 6,32¢ $ 4,49 % 6,811
Supplemental cash flow disclosures:

Cash paid for interest $ 9 3 9 3 1t

Cash paid for income taxes $ 34: % 46€ $ 78¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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eBay Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — The Company and Summary of Significant Aaunting Policies
The Company

We are a global technology company that enablesremge through three reportable segments: Markegpldgayments and Enterprise.
Our Marketplaces segment includes our eBay.confiophatand its localized counterparts and our othine platforms, such as our online
classifieds sites and StubHub. Our Payments segseamprised of our PayPal business. Our Enteymégment includes our Magento
business and provides commerce technologies, ommieth operations and marketing solutions for mertshaf all sizes that operate in genera
merchandise categories.

On September 30, 2014, we announced that our Bddditectors, following a strategic review of ouogvth strategies and structure, has
approved a plan to separate PayPal (consistingrodPayments segment) into an independent publiatjed company. We expect to complete
the transaction as a tax-free spin-off in the sdduadf of 2015, subject to market, regulatory, aadain other conditions. We also announced
that Dan Schulman has been appointed as PresitiEay®al and CEO-designee of the standalone PagRglany following separation, and
that Devin Wenig, currently president of eBay Mapkaces, will become CEO of eBay following sepamati

We are required to comply with various regulatisrmsidwide in order to operate our businesses, @adily our Payments business. We
also partner with banks and other financial initius in order to offer our Payments services glgb&hanges in laws or regulations, non-
compliance with laws or regulations or loss of kayk or financial institution partners could hav&gnificant adverse impact on our ability to
operate our Payments business; therefore, we mmah#ee areas closely to mitigate potential advienpacts.

When we refer to “we,” “our,” “us” or “eBay” in thidocument, we mean the current Delaware corporéiBay Inc.) and its California
predecessor, as well as all of our consolidatedidigries, unless otherwise expressly stated octhéext otherwise requires.

Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statesé@ntonformity with U.S. generally accepted acamgprinciples (GAAP) requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfengttthe reported amounts of assets and liaksligied disclosure of contingent assets anc
liabilities at the date of the consolidated finahstatements and the reported amounts of reveangesxpenses during the reporting period. Ol
an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates, imgjutiose related to provisions for transaction laaah losses, legal contingencies, income
taxes, revenue recognition, stock-based compemnsatimdwill and the recoverability of intangiblesats. We base our estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions théelieve to be reasonable under the circumstaatsal results could differ from those
estimates.

Principles of consolidation and basis of presentati

The accompanying financial statements are congetidand include the financial statements of eBay, lour wholly and majority-owned
subsidiaries and variable interest entities ("VI&tere we are the primary beneficiary. All interquany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation. Minority interests aeeorded as a honcontrolling interest. A qualiapproach is applied to assess the
consolidation requirement for VIEs. Investmentgiitities where we hold at least a 20% ownershgrést and have the ability to exercise
significant influence, but not control, over theéstee are accounted for using the equity methegadunting. For such investments, our shar
of the investees' results of operations is includddterest and other, net and our investmentrizaas included in long-term investments.
Investments in entities where we hold less thafi% Bwnership interest are generally accounted $orguthe cost method of accounting, and
our share of the investees' results of operatimiteciuded in our consolidated statement of inceonttie extent dividends are received.

We have evaluated all subsequent events througthatieethe financial statements were issued. We tigetosed material subsequent
events in "Note 20 - Subsequent Events."
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eBay Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

Revenue recognition

Our Marketplaces segment generates net transaetienues primarily from listing and final value $geaid by sellers. Listing fee
revenues are recognized ratably over the estingEadd of the listing, while revenues related twfivalue fees are recognized at the time tha
the transaction is successfully closed. An audtiansaction is considered successfully closed vettiégast one buyer has bid above the seller'
specified minimum price or reserve price, whichesgdrigher, at the end of the transaction term.

Our Payments segment earns net transaction revenoewily from processing transactions for custmn&evenues resulting from a
payment processing transaction are recognized thecansaction is completed.

Our Enterprise segment generates net transactienmues primarily from providing ecommerce techn@egorder processing,
fulfillment and customer care services to its dieThe revenues can be fixed or variable and asedon the activity performed and/or the
value of merchandise sold. Revenues are recogagéte underlying activity is performed or uporpshent of the underlying merchandise.

Our marketing services revenues, included in afilofsegments, are derived principally from the sdladvertisements, revenue sharing
arrangements, classifieds fees, marketing sereieg &nd lead referral fees. Our advertising reveatederived principally from the sale of
online advertisements. The duration of our adviedisontracts has ranged from one week to fivesjdaurt is generally one week to one year.
Advertising revenues on contracts are recogniz€amgwessions” (i.e., the number of times that dueatisement appears in pages viewed by
users of our websites) are delivered, or as “cli(khich are generated each time users on our wesbslick through our advertisements to an
advertiser's designated website) are providedveréiders. For contracts with minimum monthly oaderly advertising commitments where
the fee and commitments are fixed throughout tha,teve recognize revenue ratably over the ternhefagreement. Some of our advertising
contracts consist of multiple elements which gelhenaclude a blend of various impressions andkdias well as other marketing deliverables
Where neither vendor-specific objective evidencethiwd-party evidence of selling price exists, use management's best estimate of selling
price (BESP) to allocate arrangement consideratioa relative basis to each element. BESP is giynbesed on the selling prices of the
various elements when they are sold to customeaissoilar nature and geography on a stand-alosis ba estimated staralene pricing whe
the element has not previously been sold on a stbomk basis. These estimates are generally baspdaing strategies, market factors and
strategic objectives. Revenues related to revehargy arrangements are recognized based on revepasds received from our partners,
provided that collectability is reasonably assuRelvenues related to fees for listing items onatassified websites are recognized over the
estimated period of the classified listing. Leai@mnel fee revenue is generated from lead reféeed based on the number of times users click
through to a merchant's website from our websitead referral fees are recognized in the periagtiith a user clicks through to the
merchant's website.

Our other revenues are derived principally fromtcaetual arrangements with third parties that pieervices to our users and interest
and fees earned on the PayPal Credit portfolioaf Ireceivables. Revenues from contractual arraegesmvith third parties are recognized as
the contracted services are delivered to end usgesest and fees earned on the PayPal Credfofiorof loan receivables are computed and
recognized based on contractual interest and fes,rand are net of any required reserves and &atdwh of deferred origination costs.

To drive traffic to our websites, we provide indeas to our users in the form of coupons and bayer seller rewards. These incentives
are generally treated as reductions in revenue.

Internal use software and website development costs

Direct costs incurred to develop software for ingdruse and website development costs are capitigdind amortized over an estimated
useful life of one to five years. During the yearsled December 31, 2014 and 2013 , we capitaliastd,cprimarily related to labor and stock-
based compensation, of $395 million and $375 mllioespectively. Amortization of previously cafitad amounts was $277 million , $228
million and $184 million for 2014 , 2013 and 2012spectively. Costs related to the design or teaance of internal use software and wel
development are expensed as incurred.
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eBay Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

Advertising expense

We expense the costs of producing advertisemeite dime production occurs and expense the casbrminunicating advertisements in
the period during which the advertising space dima¢ is used, in each case as sales and marletpense. Internet advertising expenses are
recognized based on the terms of the individuad@ments, which are generally over the greaterefatio of the number of impressions
delivered over the total number of contracted irapi@ns, on a pay-per-click basis, or on a strdigbtbasis over the term of the contract.
Advertising expense totaled $1.3 billion , $1.0itwl and $1.1 billion for the years ended Decengier2014, 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

Stock-based compensation

We have equity incentive plans under which we geapiity awards, including stock options, restricséatk units, performance-based
restricted stock units, and performance share uwitsur directors, officers and employees. We priiy issue restricted stock units. We
determine compensation expense associated witlictedtstock units based on the fair value of @mmmon stock on the date of grant. We
determine compensation expense associated witk sfiiions based on the estimated grant date faievaethod using the Black-Scholes
valuation model. We generally recognize compensatipense using a straight-line amortization methaat the respective vesting period for
awards that are ultimately expected to vest. Adogiy, stock-based compensation expense for 2@D43 and 2012 has been reduced for
estimated forfeitures. When estimating forfeitums,consider voluntary termination behaviors ad a®krends of actual option forfeitures. '
recognize a benefit from stock-based compensati@guity to the extent that an incremental tax beiserealized by following the ordering
provisions of the tax law. In addition, we accofartthe indirect effects of stock-based compensatio the research tax credit and the foreign
tax credit through our consolidated statement cdine.

Provision for transaction losses

We are exposed to losses due to payment card bhadgdayment misuse, as well as non-performancadteedit losses from sellers.
Provisions for these items represent our estimiadetoal losses based on our historical experianceactuarial techniques, as well as econ
conditions. Provision for transaction losses ineliayPal's transaction loss expense as well ssslossulting from our customer protection
programs on and off our platforms.

Income taxes

We account for income taxes using an asset aniitijadpproach, which requires the recognition aes payable or refundable for the
current year and deferred tax liabilities and ask®tthe future tax consequences of events that haen recognized in our financial statement
or tax returns. The measurement of current andhefeax assets and liabilities is based on promsbf enacted tax laws; the effects of future
changes in tax laws or rates are not anticipafetedessary, the measurement of deferred tax d@ssetduced by the amount of any tax ben:
that are not expected to be realized based oradaibvidence.

We report a liability for unrecognized tax benef#sulting from uncertain tax positions taken goexted to be taken in a tax return. We
recognize interest and penalties, if any, relabegihtrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term, highlydiinvestments with original maturities of thmeenths or less when purchased and
are mainly comprised of bank deposits, certificatedeposit, money market funds and commercial pape

Allowance for doubtful accounts and authorized criexl

We record our allowance for doubtful accounts bagssh our assessment of various factors. We conkigirical experience, the age
the accounts receivable balances, credit qualiuofcustomers, current economic conditions andrdtrctors that may affect our customers'
ability to pay. The allowance for doubtful accouatsl authorized credits was $102 million and $1@6am at December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.
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eBay Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

Loans and interest receivable, net

Loans and interest receivable primarily representipased consumer receivables arising from loarterog a partner chartered financial
institution to individual consumers in the U.S piarchase goods and services through our PayPait@reducts. The terms of the consumer
relationship require us to submit monthly billghe consumer detailing loan repayment requirem@diis.terms also allow us to charge the
consumer interest and fees in certain circumstamas to the relatively small dollar amount of widual loans and interest receivable, we do
not require collateral on these balances.

As part of the arrangement with the partner chadéinancial institution, we sell a participatiorigrest in the entire pool of consumer
receivables outstanding to the same financialtut&in. We apply a control-oriented, financial-camnpnts approach and account for the asset
transfer as a sale and derecognize the portioantitgpation interest for which control has beerrendered. We do not recognize any gains or
losses on the sale of the participating intereshagarrying amount of the participating intergsitt approximates the fair value at time of
transfer. Participating interest that is retaineglincluded in loans and interest receivable aedhacounted for at amortized cost, net of an
allowance for loan losses. We maintain the sergicights for the entire pool of consumer receivaldatstanding and receive a fee
approximating fair value for servicing the assetderlying the participating interest sold.

Allowance for loans and interest receivable

The allowance for loans and interest receivableasgmts management's estimate of probable logseeit in our PayPal Credit portfo
of loan receivables. The provision related to thiegipal is included in provision for transactiondaloan losses and the provision related to the
interest is recorded as a reduction of marketimgices and other revenue. Management's evaluatiprobable losses is subject to judgments
and numerous estimates, including forecasted pa@htialance delinquency rates ("roll rates"). Rafles are the percentage of balances that w
estimate will migrate from one stage of delinquetecthe next based on our historical experienceyedkas external factors such as estimated
bankruptcies and levels of unemployment. The aikts are applied to principal and interest balafaresach stage of delinquency, from cur
to 180 days past due, in order to estimate theslaad interest receivable that are probable tdhbsged off by the end of 180 days. The
purchased consumer receivables are considereddbdre segment and one class.

We charge off loans and interest receivable imtbath in which the customer balance becomes 188 piast due. Bankrupt accounts are
charged off within 6@lays of receiving notification of customer bankayptrom the courts. Past due loans receivable roatio accrue intere
until such time as they are charged-off.

Funds receivable and funds payable

Funds receivable and funds payable relate primayigur Payments segment and arise due to thetdilear transactions through
external payment networks. When customers fund #esiount using their bank account or credit cardyithdraw money to their bank acco
or through a debit card transaction, there is aritlg period before the cash is received or settledally one to three business days for
U.S. transactions, and generally up to five busirdesys for international transactions.

Customer accounts and amounts due to customers

Customer accounts and amounts due to customets telaur Payments segment and based on differémcegulatory requirements and
commercial law in the jurisdictions where PayPatmapes, PayPal holds customer balances eitherexs diaims against PayPal or as an agen
or custodian on behalf of PayPal's customers. @Ggtdalances held by PayPal as an agent or custodibehalf of its customers are not
reflected on our consolidated balance sheet, wehiddomer balances held as direct claims againf?®aye reflected on our consolidated
balance sheet as a liability classified as amodimésto customers. At December 31, 2014 and 2028R#& held all customer balances (both in
the U.S. and internationally) as direct claims agaiPayPal. Further, various jurisdictions whergA2& operates requires us to hold eligible
liquid assets, as defined by the regulators ingljwssdictions, equal to at least 100% of the aggte amount of all customer balances.
Therefore, we use the assets underlying the custbal@nces to meet these regulatory requirementseparately classify the assets as
customer accounts in our consolidated balance sh&t do not commingle the assets underlying tiséoower balances with corporate funds
and separately maintain these assets in interdst@m-interest bearing bank deposits, time depasiisU.S. and foreign government and
agency securities. We classify the assets undertyie customer balances as current based on timpioge and availability to fulfill our direct
obligation under amounts due to customers.
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Investments

Short-term investments, which may include marketagjuity securities, time deposits, certificatedegiosit, government bonds and
corporate debt securities with original maturitégreater than three months but less than onewkan purchased, are classified as available
for-sale and are reported at fair value using ffreziic identification method. Unrealized gains doskes are excluded from earnings and
reported as a component of other comprehensiveriadtoss), net of related estimated tax provisimmisenefits.

Long-term investments may include marketable gavemt bonds and corporate debt securities, timedispaertificates of deposit and
cost and equity method investments. Debt secuatieslassified as available-for-sale and are tedat fair value using the specific
identification method. Unrealized gains and lossesur available-fosale investments are excluded from earnings arattegpas a compone
of other comprehensive income (loss), net of rdlasimated tax provisions or benefits.

We elect to account for certain customer accoumttjding foreign-currency denominated availablegale investments, under the fair
value option. The changes in fair value relatethittal measurement and subsequent changes indhie are included in earnings as a
component of interest and other, net.

Certain time deposits are classified as held taritgtand recorded at amortized cost. Our equittho@ investments are primarily
investments in privately held companies. Our cadatéd results of operations include, as a compoofenterest and other, net, our share of
the net income or loss of the equity method invesitsi Our share of investees' results of operatfonst significant for any period presented.
Our cost method investments consist of investmiengsivately held companies and are recorded dt éosounts received from our cost
method investees were not material to any periedqnted.

We assess whether an other-than-temporary impaido&non our investments has occurred due tortein fair value or other market
conditions. With respect to our debt securitieis #ssessment takes into account the severity amradiah of the decline in value, our intent to
sell the security, whether it is more likely thaot that we will be required to sell the securitydve recovery of its amortized cost basis, and
whether we expect to recover the entire amortized lsasis of the security (that is, whether a tleds exists).

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at historicdlless accumulated depreciation. Depreciation ispded using the straighibe methoc
over the estimated useful lives of the assets,rgéipeone to three years for computer equipmeudtsoftware, up to thirty years for buildings
and building improvements, ten years for aviatignipment, the shorter of five years or the terrtheflease for leasehold improvements and
three years for furniture, fixtures and vehicles.

Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill is tested for impairment at a minimum aenamnual basis. Goodwill is tested for impairmdrtha reporting unit level. A
qualitative assessment can be performed to deterwlirether it is more likely than not that the fatue of the reporting unit is less than its
carrying value. If the reporting unit does not ptesqualitative assessment, then the reportingsuiarrying value is compared to its fair
value. The fair values of the reporting units aséneated using income and market approaches. Gdddwonsidered impaired if the carrying
value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair valliee discounted cash flow method, a form of theine approach, uses expected future
operating results and a market participant discoatet The market approach uses comparable compa®s and other relevant information
generated by market transactions (either publiclgietd entities or merger and acquisitions) to dgvplicing metrics to be applied to historical
and expected future operating results of our rémprnits. Failure to achieve these expected rgstitanges in the discount rate or market
pricing metrics may cause a future impairment afdyaill at the reporting unit. We conducted our aalnmpairment test of goodwill as of
August 31, 2014 and 2013. As a result of this tes determined that no adjustment to the carryingevaf goodwill for any reporting units
was required.

Intangible assets consist of purchased custontsrdisl user base, marketing related, developeddtmdies and other intangible assets,

including patents and contractual agreements. driitéa assets are amortized over the period of estichbenefit using the straight-line method
and estimated useful lives ranging from one toteyglars. No significant residual value is estimdt@dntangible assets.
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Impairment of long-lived assets

We evaluate long-lived assets (including intangdseets) for impairment whenever events or chainggscumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of a long-lived asset may not loeverable. An asset is considered impaired ifarsying amount exceeds the undiscounted
future net cash flow the asset is expected to géaein 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , no impairment wasdo

Foreign currency

Most of our foreign subsidiaries use the local ency of their respective countries as their fun@laurrency. Assets and liabilities are
translated at exchange rates prevailing at thenbalaheet dates. Revenues, costs and expensematated into U.S. dollars using daily
exchange rates if the transaction is recorded iraocounting systems on a daily basis, and otherusing average exchange rates for the
period. Gains and losses resulting from the traioslaf our consolidated balance sheet are recoadealcomponent of accumulated other
comprehensive income.

Gains and losses from foreign currency transactmasecognized as interest and other, net.
Derivative instruments

We use derivative financial instruments, primafdywards and swaps, to hedge certain foreign cayrand interest rate exposures. We
may also use other derivative instruments not desegl as hedges, such as forwards used to hedggrfaurrency balance sheet exposures.
We do not use derivative financial instrumentstfading purposes. See “Note 8 - Derivative Instrotsiefor a full description of our derivatit
instrument activities and related accounting pe#ci

Concentration of credit risk

Our cash, cash equivalents, accounts receivalalesland interest receivable, funds receivablepmust accounts, and derivative
instruments are potentially subject to concentratibcredit risk. Cash, cash equivalents and custaocounts are placed with financial
institutions that management believes are of higldit quality. In addition, funds receivable aregeted with financial institutions or credit
card companies that management believes are ofchéglit quality. Our accounts receivable are derivem revenue earned from customers.
Our loans and interest receivable are derived tonsumer and merchant financing activities for auglrs. As of December 31, 2014 and
2013, no customer accounted for more than 10%bloans and interest receivable. In each of tlaesyended December 31, 2014, 2013 and
2012 , no customer accounted for more than 10%bfavenues. Our derivative instruments expose asdit risk to the extent that our
counterparties may be unable to meet the terntsechgreements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Bo&ifhGB") issued new accounting guidance clarifyihg aiccounting for the release
cumulative translation adjustment into net incontemwa parent either sells a part or all of its #reent in a foreign entity or no longer holds &
controlling financial interest in a subsidiary apgp of assets that is a nonprofit activity or aibass within a foreign entity. The new standard
was effective for fiscal years, and interim periedthin those fiscal years, beginning on or aftecBmber 15, 2013. The adoption of this
guidance did not have a material impact on oumiife statements.

In 2013, the FASB issued new accounting guidanagfging the accounting for obligations resultimgrh joint and several liability
arrangements for which the total amount under trengement is fixed at the reporting date. The smdard was effective for fiscal years,
and interim periods within those fiscal years, begig on or after December 15, 2013. The adoptfdhis guidance did not have a material
impact on our financial statements.

In 2013, the FASB issued new accounting guidangeirnag the presentation of certain unrecognizedbnefits as reductions to defel
tax assets rather than as liabilities in the cadatdd balance sheets when a net operating loggmavard, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit
carryforward exists. The new standard required &dipmn a prospective basis in the first quarte2@f4. The adoption of this guidance did
have a material impact on our financial statements.

In 2014, the FASB issued new guidance relatedgortang discontinued operations. This new standaisks the threshold for a disposal
to qualify as a discontinued operation and requims disclosures of both discontinued operatiombscantain other disposals that do not meet
the definition of a discontinued operation. The re#andard is effective for fiscal
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years beginning on or after December 15, 2014 dhdéhwpact the treatment of our planned -free spin-off of PayPal expected to occur in the
second half of 2015. Early adoption is permittetidnly for disposals that have not been reportdihamncial statements previously issued. We
are evaluating the impact of adopting this new antiog guidance on our financial statements.

In 2014, the FASB issued new accounting guidaniete to revenue recognition. This new standartreyilace all current GAAP
guidance on this topic and eliminate all industpecific guidance. The new revenue recognitionauie provides a unified model to detern
when and how revenue is recognized. The core i that a company should recognize revenuepictithe transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that refleetstimsideration for which the entity expects teebgtled in exchange for those goods or
services. This guidance will be effective for eBag. beginning January 1, 2017 and can be appitedreretrospectively to each period
presented or as a cumulatigfect adjustment as of the date of adoption. Veéesanluating the impact of adopting this new actiogrguidanc
on our financial statements.

In 2014, the FASB issued new guidance related veldpment-stage entities. The new standard remal/@cremental financial
reporting requirements from GAAP for developmeratgst entities. The accounting standards update@tsoves an exception provided to
development stage entities in consolidations foereining whether an entity is a variable inteesdity. As of the first annual period beginn
after December 15, 2014, the presentation andodigot requirements in Topic 915 will no longer éguired. The revised consolidation
standards are effective one year later, for figeakrs beginning after December 15, 2015. Early tdlofs permitted. We are evaluating the
impact, if any, of adopting this new accountingdguice on our financial statements.

In 2014, the FASB issued new guidance relateddalibclosures around going concern. The new stdrptavides guidance around
management's responsibility to evaluate whetheetisesubstantial doubt about an entity's abititgdntinue as a going concern and to provide
related footnote disclosures. The new standartfasteve for fiscal years, and interim periods viitithose fiscal years, beginning after
December 15, 2016. Early adoption is permitted. ddhaption of this standard is not expected to lzaneaterial impact on our financial
statements.

In 2014, the FASB issued new guidance related singhown accounting. The new guidance provides anittjentity with an option to
apply pushdown accounting in its separate finarste@tements upon occurrence of an event in whicrcgoirer obtains control of the acquired
entity. The amendments are effective on NovembePQ@84. We adopted this guidance, as required,mredber 18, 2014. The adoption of
this guidance did not have a material impact onfimancial statements.
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Note 2 — Net Income Per Share

Basic net income per share is computed by dividietgincome for the period by the weighted averagaber of common shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted net incoree ghare is computed by dividing net income forghgod by the weighted average number
of shares of common stock and potentially diluteenmon stock outstanding during the period. Thetidi effect of outstanding options and
equity incentive awards are reflected in dilutetineome per share by application of the treastogksmethod. The calculation of diluted net
income per share excludes all anti-dilutive comrabares. The following table sets forth the companadf basic and diluted net income per
share for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012

(In millions, except per share amounts)

Numerator:
Net income $ 46 $ 2,85t $ 2,60¢
Denominator:
Weighted average shares of common stock - basic 1,251 1,29t 1,292
Dilutive effect of equity incentive awards 11 18 21
Weighted average shares of common stock - diluted 1,26: 1,31 1,31
Net income per share:
Basic $ 0.0 $ 22C % 2.02
Diluted $ 0.0¢ $ 218 % 1.9¢
Common stock equivalents excluded from income patetl share because their effect
would have been anti-dilutive 7 4 4

Note 3 — Business Combinations and Divestitures
Our acquisition activity in 2014 , 2013 and 201#as as follows:
2014 Acquisition Activity

During 2014, we completed three acquisitions, filleich are included in our Marketplaces segmenttafjgregate purchase
consideration of approximately $58 million , cotisig primarily of cash. The allocation of the puasle consideration resulted in net liabilities
of approximately $1 million , purchased intangibksets of $29 million and goodwill of $30 millioiThe consolidated financial statements
include the operating results of the acquired rssins since the respective dates of the acqussifsn forma results of operations have not
been presented because the effect of the acquisitias not material to our financial results.

2013 Acquisition Activity
Braintree

We completed the acquisition of Braintree on Deocenil®, 2013. We acquired Braintree to accelerag®&&s growth in mobile
payments. We paid total consideration of approxalyab713 million , consisting primarily of cash. &l on our allocation of the purchase
consideration we recorded approximately $126 mmltdd acquired intangible assets, net liabilitiegpproximately $32 million and goodwill of
approximately $619 million . Acquired intangiblesats included customer-related, marketing-relaad,technology-based assets, which is
consistent with our similar prior acquisitions. Biteee is included in our Payments segment. We rgdigelo not expect goodwill to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

We have included the financial results of Brainireeur consolidated financial statements fromdh&e of acquisition. Revenues and
expenses related to Braintree for the period enBiecember 31, 2013 were not material. Pro formaltesf operations have not been
presented because the effect of the acquisitiomneamaterial to our financial results.
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Other

Other acquisition activity during 2013 consistediof acquisitions, four of which are included irr diarketplaces segment and two in
our Payments segment, for aggregate purchase esatsah of approximately $164 million , consistipgmarily of cash. The allocation of the
purchase consideration resulted in net liabiliGeapproximately $16 million , purchased intangiatsets of approximately $56 million and
goodwill of approximately $124 million . The congltalted financial statements include the operatasylts of the acquired businesses since tt
respective dates of the acquisitions. Pro formaltesf operations have not been presented bet¢hesdfect of the acquisitions was not
material to our financial results.

2013 Divestiture Activity

In conjunction with our acquisition of GSI in 20Me immediately divested 100 percent of GSI's ksshsports merchandise business
and 70 percent of GSI's ShopRunner and RueLalLadésss (together, the "divested businesses"). iVhstdd businesses were sold for a not
receivable with a face value of $467 million . Th& value of the note receivable was determineldet&287 million based on comparable
market interest rates and was recorded in othetsBsour consolidated balance sheet. The difterdetween the fair value of the note
receivable and the carrying value of the divesigsin®esses resulted in a loss of approximately $28ion . The loss was recorded in interest
and other, net in our consolidated statement afrimein 2011. The carrying value of our retainettesia the ShopRunner and Ruelala
businesses was approximately $75 million and wesrded in longerm investments. We accounted for our retainegtést in the ShopRunr
and RuelLala businesses under the equity methoccotating.

In September 2013, the Kynetic note receivablenepaid and our investments in RueLalLa and ShopRumee sold for total cash
proceeds of approximately $485 million . This trctgon resulted in a net gain of approximately $vllion , which has been recognized in
interest and other, net in our consolidated stattmieincome.

2012 Acquisition and Divestiture Activity

During 2012, we completed three acquisitions, tivavloich are included in our Marketplaces segment@me in our Payments segment,
for aggregate purchase consideration of approxign&tet9 million , consisting primarily of cash. Th#ocation of the purchase consideration
resulted in net liabilities of approximately $21llfon , purchased intangible assets of $70 milkord goodwill of $100 million . The
consolidated financial statements include the dpeyaesults of the acquired businesses sincea$ective dates of the acquisitions. Pro fc
results of operations have not been presented bedha effect of the acquisitions was not matéoialur financial results.

In May 2012, we completed the sale of Rent.conpfoceeds of approximately $145 million , resultin@ gain of approximately $118
million . The results of operations from Rent.cora aot material to any period presented.
Note 4 — Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill

The following table presents goodwill balances adgistments to those balances for each of our t&persegments for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013 :

December 31, December 31,
December 31, Goodwill Goodwill
2012 Acquired Adjustments/Allocations 2013 Acquired Adjustments/Disposals 2014
(In millions)
Reportable segment$:
Marketplaces $ 473: $ 11z $ 17 $ 4,861 $ 3¢ $ (21%) $ 4,67¢
Payments 2,51¢ 60z @ 3,12( — 10 3,13(
Enterprise 1,28¢ — — 1,28¢ — — 1,28¢
Total Goodwill $ 8531 $ 714 $ 16 $ 9,267 $ 3¢ $ (203 $ 9,09¢

F-15




eBay Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

(1) During the first quarter of 2014, we changed mportable segments based upon changes in caniaegional structure which reflect the
integration of our Magento platform into our Entésp segment. The above table presents recastlsegraent activity to reflect the move
of our Magento platform into our Enterprise segmemior to this change, Magento was reported ipaate and other.

The adjustments to goodwill during the year endeddmnber 31, 2014 were due primarily to foreigneney translation, a measurement
period adjustment related to our acquisition ofitree which closed December 19, 2013 and a chisnger reportable segments. Refer to
"Note 5 - Segments" for further discussion on thange in our reportable segments. The adjustmemsddwill during the year ended
December 31, 2013 were due primarily to foreigrrency translation.

We conducted our annual impairment test of goodaelbf August 31, 2014. As of December 31, 201é datermined that no
impairment of the carrying value of goodwill foryareporting units was required.

Intangible Assets

The components of identifiable intangible asse¢saarfollows:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Weighted Weighted
Gross Average Net Average
Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying Useful Life Gross Carrying  Accumulated Carrying Useful Life
Amount Amortization Amount (Years) Amount Amortization Amount (Years)

(In millions, except years)
Intangible assets:
Customer lists and user

base $ 1641 $ (1,367 $ 274 5 $ 165: $ 1,219 % 44C 5

Marketing related 84¢ (729 12C 5 78C (677) 103 5

Developed technologies 57¢ (47¢) 101 4 554 (407) 152 4

Braintree relatet” N/A N/A N/A N/A 15E — 15E —

All other 27¢ (210 69 4 278 (189) 90 4
$ 334t  $ (2,789 % 564 $ 3,41t $ 2,47 $ 941

(1) During 2014, we allocated the Braintree inthigassets between customer lists, marketing tebaid developed technologies intangible
assets.

Amortization expense for intangible assets was $8illéon , $424 million and $433 million for the ges ended December 31, 2014 ,
2013 and 2012, respectively.

Expected future intangible asset amortization a@3exfember 31, 2014 is as follows (in millions):

Fiscal years:
2015 $ 30¢€
2016 182
2017 50
2018 22
2019 4
Thereafter —

$ 564
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Note 5 — Segments

We have three reportable segments: Marketplacgspéds and Enterprise. We allocate resources t@sselss the performance of each
reportable segment using information about its mereeand operating income (loss). We do not evalopéeating segments using discrete asse
information. We do not allocate gains and lossesifequity investments, interest and other incomégaes to our reportable segments.

During the first quarter of 2014, we changed oporéable segments based upon changes in our oeg@mnial structure which reflect the
integration of our Magento platform into our Entésp segment. Prior to this change, Magento wasrteg in corporate and other. Also during
the first quarter of 2014, we revised our intemahagement reporting of certain Marketplaces ti@iess to align more closely with our
related operating metrics. Related to this changereclassified our Marketplaces vehicles andestdte revenues from net transaction
revenues to marketing services and other reveuis.period amounts have been revised to conforthé current period segment reporting
structure.

The Corporate and other category includes inconpgreses and charges such as:

« results of operations of various initiatives whatipport all of our reportable segme

e corporate management costs, such as human resdiimeese and legal, not allocated to our segm
e amortization of intangible asse

e restructuring charges; a

e stockbased compensation expel
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The following tables summarize the financial pemiance of our reportable segments and provide ancd@ion to our consolidated
operating results for the periods reflected below:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In millions)
Net Revenue
Marketplaces
Net transaction revenues $ 6,99t $ 6,56¢ $ 5,83¢
Marketing services and other revenues 1,82z 1,71t 1,56¢
8,811 8,28¢ 7,39¢
Payments
Net transaction revenues 7,21¢ 6,09¢ 5,14¢
Marketing services and other revenues 68€ 532 42¢
7,90¢ 6,62¢ 5,57¢
Enterprise®
Net transaction revenues 98¢t 89¢ 85C
Marketing services and other revenues 258 26¢ 271
1,23¢ 1,16¢ 1,121
Elimination of inter-segment net reveniie (57) (32) (21)
Total consolidated net revenue $ 17,90: $ 16,047 $ 14,07:
Operating income (loss)
Marketplaces $ 3327 $ 3,351 $ 2,94:
Payments 1,83¢ 1,58¢ 1,35¢
Enterprise 83 72 55
Corporate and other (1,73)) (1,640 (1,469
Total operating income (loss) $ 3514 % 3371 % 2,88¢

(1) During the first quarter of 2014, we changed mportable segments based upon changes in caniaegional structure which reflect the
integration of our Magento platform into our Entésp segment. The above table presents recastlasegraent results to reflect the move
of our Magento platform into our Enterprise segmenior to this change, Magento was reported ipa@te and other. The table also
presents recast annual segment results to reflecetlassification of Marketplaces vehicles arad estate revenues from net transaction
revenue to marketing services and other revenue.

(2) Represents revenue generated between our abosegments.
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The following tables summarize the allocation dof m¥enues and long-lived tangible assets basagtography:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In millions)
Net revenues:
u.S. $ 8,49t $ 7,712 $ 6,77¢
United Kingdom 2,63: 2,18 1,88¢
Germany 2,10% 1,93( 1,67¢
Rest of world 4,667 4,22: 3,72¢
Total net revenues $ 17,90: $ 16,047 $ 14,07:

December 31,

2014 2013
(In millions)
Long-lived tangible assets:
u.s. $ 292 % 2,75¢€
International 22¢ 24C
Total long-lived tangible assets $ 315 § 2,99¢

Net revenues are attributed to U.S. and internatigaographies primarily based upon the countmyhicth the seller, payment recipient,
customer, website that displays advertising, oeosiervice provider, as the case may be, is locataty-lived assets attributed to the U.S. and
international geographies are based upon the goimtvhich the asset is located or owned. Totagtssby segment are not presented as that
information is not used to allocate resources sess performance at the segment level and is vietrred by our Chief Operating Decision
Maker.

Note 6 — Investments

At December 31, 2014 and 2013 , the estimated/&dire of our short-term and long-term investmefassified as available for sale, are
as follows:

December 31, 2014

Gross Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
(In millions)
Short-term investments:
Restricted cash $ 29 % — 3 — 3 29
Corporate debt securities 2,51¢ 1 (D) 2,51¢
Government and agency securities 3 — — 3
Time deposits and other 181 — — 181
Equity instruments 10 1,02¢ — 1,03¢
$ 2,74; % 1,02¢ $ 2 $ 3,77(
Long-term investments:
Corporate debt securities 5,31¢ 18 (18) 5,31¢
Government and agency securities 232 1 — 238
$ 5551 $ 18 (18 $ 5,552

F-19




eBay Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

December 31, 2013

Gross Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
(In millions)
Short-term investments:
Restricted cash $ 17 $ — ¢ — $ 17
Corporate debt securities 3,52¢ 4 — 3,52¢
Government and agency securities 43 — — 43
Time deposits and other 49 — — 49
Equity instruments 12 881 — 89¢
$ 3,646 $ 88t $ — $ 4,531
Long-term investments:
Corporate debt securities 4,40¢ 41 (5) 4,44¢
Government and agency securities 25C 1 — 251
$ 4,65¢ $ 42 $ B $ 4,69¢

At December 31, 2014 , we held no time depositssfi@d as held to maturity, compared to $6 millaaof December 31, 2013, which
were recorded at amortized cost.

We had no material long-term or short-term investis¢hat have been in a continuous unrealizeddosgion for more than 12 months
as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 . Refer to "N®teAccumulated Other Comprehensive Income" for am®reclassified to earnings from
unrealized gains and losses.

Our fixed-income investment portfolio consists offmorate debt securities and government and agamyrities that have a maximum
maturity of nine years. The corporate debt and gowent and agency securities that we invest igarerally deemed to be low risk based on
their credit ratings from the major rating agencidse longer the duration of these securitiesntioee susceptible they are to changes in mark
interest rates and bond yields. As interest ratease, those securities purchased at a lower stigw a mark-to-market unrealized loss. The
unrealized losses are due primarily to changesdditspreads and interest rates. We expect tzeethle full value of all these investments
upon maturity or sale. As of December 31, 2014s¢hsecurities had a weighted average remainirggidnrof approximately 15 months.
Restricted cash is held primarily in money marketds and interest bearing accounts for lettersegficrelated primarily to our global
sabbatical program and various lease arrangements.

The estimated fair values of our short-term andjiterm investments classified as available for bgldate of contractual maturity at
December 31, 2014 are as follows:

December 31,

2014
(In millions)

One year or less (including restricted cash of $29) $ 2,73
One year through two years 1,55(
Two years through three years 2,05¢
Three years through four years 1,10¢
Four years through five years 73€
Five years through six years 86
Six years through seven years 2
Seven years through eight years —
Eight years through nine years 17
Nine years through ten years —

$ 8,28¢

Equity and cost method investments

We have made multiple equity and cost method imvests which are reported in long-term investmentsur consolidated balance
sheet. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, ouryequi cost method investments totaled $225 mikind $269 million , respectively.
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Note 7 — Fair Value Measurement of Assets and Lialities

The following tables summarize our financial asseid liabilities measured at fair value on a reéogrbasis as of December 31, 2GR
2013:

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for Significant Other
Balance as of Identical Assets Observable Inputs
Description December 31, 2014 (Level 1) (Level 2)
(In millions)

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,32¢ % 3917 % 2,411
Short-term investments:

Restricted cash 29 29 —

Corporate debt securities 2,51¢ — 2,51¢

Government and agency securities 3 — 3

Time deposits 181 — 181

Equity instruments 1,03¢ 1,03¢ —
Total short-term investments 3,77( 1,067 2,70:
Funds receivable and customer accounts 4,161 — 4,161
Derivatives 222 — 22z
Long-term investments:

Corporate debt securities 5,31¢ — 5,31¢

Government and agency securities 23¢ — 238
Total long-term investments 5,552 — 5,55:
Total financial assets $ 20,03: % 498 % 15,04¢
Liabilities:
Derivatives $ 29 % —  § 29
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Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for Significant Other
Balance as of Identical Assets Observable Inputs
Description December 31, 2013 (Level 1) (Level 2)
(In millions)

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,49 % 4,15¢  $ 33t
Short-term investments:

Restricted cash 17 17 —

Corporate debt securities 3,52¢ — 3,52¢

Government and agency securities 43 — 43

Time deposits 49 — 49

Equity instruments 89:< 89:< —
Total short-term investments 4,531 91C 3,621
Funds receivable and customer accounts 3,56: — 3,56:
Derivatives 44 — 44
Long-term investments:

Corporate debt securities 4,44¢ — 4,44¢

Government and agency securities 251 — 251
Total long-term investments 4,69¢ — 4,69¢
Total financial assets $ 17,326 $ 5,06¢ $ 12,25¢
Liabilities:
Derivatives $ 151  § —  § 151

Our financial assets and liabilities are valueshgsnarket prices on both active markets (levelnt) lass active markets (level 2). Level 1
instrument valuations are obtained from real-tiraetgs for transactions in active exchange marketving identical assets. Level 2
instrument valuations are obtained from readilyilaiée pricing sources for comparable instrumeidisntical instruments in less active
markets, or models using market observable ingiits.majority of our derivative instruments are \ealwsing pricing models that take into
account the contract terms as well as multiple tispthere applicable, such as equity prices, intests yield curves, option volatility and
currency rates. We did not have any transfersnafrftial instruments between valuation levels dufid4 or 2013 .

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term, higilydiinvestments with original or remaining matiestof three months or less when
purchased and are comprised primarily of bank depa=rtificates of deposit, money market fundd eammercial paper. We had total funds
receivable and customer accounts of $10.5 billopnfeDecember 31, 2014 , of which approximately2$#llion was invested in time deposits
and U.S. and foreign government and agency seesiritVe elect to account for certain customer adsouncluding foreign-currency
denominated available-for-sale investments, urfaefdir value option. Election of the fair valuetiop allows us to significantly reduce the
accounting asymmetry that would otherwise arisenndeeognizing foreign exchange gains and lossasimglto available-for-sale investments
and the corresponding customer liabilities.

In addition, we had cost and equity method investsief approximately $225 million and $269 milliorcluded in longterm investment
on our consolidated balance sheet at December034, &nd 2013 , respectively. Additionally, as otBmber 31, 2014, we held no time
deposits classified as held to maturity, compaoe®bt million as of December 31, 2013, which werprded at amortized cost.

Our derivative instruments vary in duration depagdin contract type. Our foreign exchange derieationtracts are primarily short-term

in nature, generally one month to grear in duration. Certain foreign currency consaftsignated as cash flow hedges may have a dudd
up to 18 months. The duration of our interest datevative contracts match the duration of thedixate notes due 2019, 2021 and 2024.
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As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, we held no tineestments in auction rate securities, colldized debt obligations, structured
investment vehicles or mortgage-backed securities.

Other financial instruments, including accountsereable, loans and interest receivable, accountalpe, funds receivable, certain
customer accounts, funds payable and amounts duestomers, are carried at cost, which approxintatss fair value because of the short-
term nature of these instruments.

Note 8 — Derivative Instruments
Summary of Derivative Instruments

Our primary objective in holding derivatives isrezluce the volatility of earnings and cash flowsoagated with changes in foreign
currency exchange rates and interest rates. Oivatiges expose us to credit risk to the extent tha counterparties may be unable to mee
terms of the arrangement. We seek to mitigate gakltby limiting our counterparties to, and by sgfimg the risk across, major financial
institutions. In addition, the potential risk oskwith any one counterparty resulting from thjgetyf credit risk is monitored on an ongoing
basis. To further limit credit risk, we also enit@o collateral security arrangements related ttade interest rate derivative instruments
whereby collateral is posted between counterpaiftide fair value of the derivative instrument erds certain thresholds. Additional collatera
would be required in the event of a significantdireowngrade by either party.

Foreign Exchange Contracts

We transact business in various foreign currermigeshave significant international revenues as agttosts denominated in foreign
currencies, which subjects us to foreign currengly. We use foreign currency exchange contractseigdly with maturities of 12 months or
less, to reduce the volatility of cash flows priityarelated to forecasted revenues, expenses,sagsdtliabilities denominated in foreign
currencies. The objective of the foreign exchang@racts is to better ensure that the U.S. doliprivalent cash flows are not adversely
affected by changes in the applicable U.S. dobaeifjn currency exchange rate. For derivative imsénts that are designated as cash flow
hedges, the effective portion of the derivativeasngor loss is initially reported as a componeraafumulated other comprehensive income
(loss) and subsequently reclassified into earnimdgise same period the forecasted transactiontafearnings. The ineffective portion of the
unrealized gains and losses on these contraetsyifis recorded immediately in earnings. We ewaltize effectiveness of our foreign exche
contracts on a quarterly basis. We do not use amjgn exchange contracts for trading purposes.

For our derivative instruments designated as dashtiedges, the amounts recognized in earningterkta the ineffective portion were
not material in each of the periods presentedvandid not exclude any component of the changéasinvalue of the derivative instruments
from the assessment of hedge effectiveness. A=oélmber 31, 2014 , we estimate that $155 millionedfderivative gains related to our cash
flow hedges included in accumulated other comprsifrerincome will be reclassified into earnings \itthe next 12 months.

Interest Rate Contracts

In connection with the July 2014 issuance of oxedirate notes due 2019, 2021 and 2024, we entdedertain interest rate swap
agreements that have the economic effect of madjfiie fixed interest obligations associated whittse notes so that the interest payable on
these senior notes effectively became variablecbasd_ondon InterBank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plugpaesd. We have designated these swa
agreements as qualifying hedging instruments a@@erounting for them as fair value hedges. Thassactions are characterized as fair v
hedges for financial accounting purposes becawseptotect us against changes in the fair valumedhiin of our fixed rate borrowings due to
benchmark interest rate movements. Changes irathedlues of these interest rate swap agreemeatgeognized in other assets or other
liabilities with a corresponding increase or desecsim long-term debt. Each quarter we pay intdyaséd on LIBOR plus a spread to the
counterparty and on a semi-annual basis receieegsit from the counterparty per the fixed ratéenebe senior notes. The net amount is
recognized as interest expense in interest and,atee The ineffective portion of the unrealizeadng and losses on these contracts, if any, is
recorded immediately in earnings. We evaluate ffeztveness of our contracts on a quarterly ba#is.do not use any interest rate swap
agreements for trading purposes.

For our derivative instruments designated as falume hedges, the amounts recognized in earningtedelo the ineffective portion were

not material in each of the periods presentedyveadid not exclude any component of the changéaiiitvalue of the derivative instruments
from the assessment of hedge effectiveness.
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Fair Value of Derivative Contracts

The fair value of our outstanding derivative ingtents as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 were asvill

December 31, December 31,
Balance Sheet Location 2014 2013
(In millions)
Derivative Assets:
Foreign exchange contracts designated as casthiidges Other Current Asse $ 17¢ % 15
Foreign exchange contracts not designated as gedgin
instruments Other Current Asse 3C 29
Interest rate contracts designated as fair valdgéds Other Asset 22 N/A
Total derivative assets $ 222 % 44
Derivative Liabilities:
Foreign exchange contracts designated as casthédges Other Current Liabilitie $ 2 % 121
Foreign exchange contracts not designated as gedgin
instruments Other Current Liabilitie 27 3C
Total derivative liabilities $ 2¢ 3 151
Total fair value of derivative instruments $ 19 (107)

Under the master netting agreements with the réigpemunterparties to our derivative contract®jsct to applicable requirements, we
are allowed to net settle transactions of the dgpe with a single net amount payable by one parthe other. However, we have elected to
present the derivative assets and derivative iisilon a gross basis on our consolidated balaheet. As of December 31, 2014 , the potenti
effect of rights of set-off associated with thegign exchange contracts would be an offset to hssiets and liabilities by $29 milligmesulting
in a net derivative asset of $171 million and nbdeivative liability. We are not required to pigd nor are we entitled to receive, collateral
related to our foreign exchange derivative trarisast As of December 31, 2014 , we had neithergddchor received collateral related to our
interest rate derivative transactions.

Effect of Derivative Contracts on Accumulated Oth€omprehensive Income

The following table summarizes the activity of dative contracts that qualify for hedge accountis@f December 31, 2014 and 2013,
and the impact of these derivative contracts onmctated other comprehensive income for the yaaded December 31, 2014 and 2013 :

Amount of gain (loss)
reclassified from
accumulated other

Amount of gain (loss) comprehensive income
recognized in other to net revenue and operating
comprehensive income expense
December 31, 2013 (effective portion) (effective portion) December 31, 2014
(In millions)
Foreign exchange contracts
designated as cash flow hedges $ (10€) 23¢ (36) $ 16¢
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Amount of gain (loss)
reclassified from
accumulated other

Amount of gain (loss) comprehensive income
recognized in other to net revenue and operating
comprehensive income expense
December 31, 2012 (effective portion) (effective portion) December 31, 2013
(In millions)
Foreign exchange contracts
designated as cash flow hedges $ (55) (65) (149 $ (106)

Effect of Derivative Contracts on Consolidated Statent of Income

The following table provides the location in ourdncial statements of the recognized gains or $osdated to our foreign exchange
derivative instruments:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In millions)

Foreign exchange contracts designated as casthiidges recognized in net revenues $ (36) $ 4 $ 44
Foreign exchange contracts designated as casthfldges recognized in operating expenses — (9 1€
Foreign exchange contracts not designated as hgdgtruments recognized in interest a
other, net 8 14 —

Total gain (loss) recognized from foreign exchadggvative contracts in the

consolidated statement of income $ (28) $ 1 8 6C

The following table provides the location in ourdncial statements of the recognized gains or $asdated to our interest rate derivative
instruments:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In millions)

Gain (loss) from interest rate contracts designatefair value hedges recognized in inter
and other, net $ 22 N/A N/A
Gain (loss) from hedged items attributable to heldigk recognized in interest and other,
net (22) N/A N/A

Total gain (loss) recognized from interest ratévdgive contracts in the consolidated

statement of income $ — —  $ —

The following table provides the location in ourdncial statements of the recognized gains or $osdated to our other derivative
instruments:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In millions)
Other contracts not designated as hedging instrtemenognized in interest and other, ne — — 3
Total gain (loss) recognized from other derivateatracts in the consolidated statement
of income $ — —  $ 3
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Notional Amounts of Derivative Contracts

Derivative transactions are measured in termsehtitional amount, but this amount is not recomiethe balance sheet and is not, w
viewed in isolation, a meaningful measure of tis& profile of the instruments. The notional amasrgenerally not exchanged, but is used
only as the basis on which the value of foreigrhexge payments under these contracts are deterniinedollowing table provides the
notional amounts of our outstanding derivatives:

December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In millions)
Foreign exchange contracts designated as castfidges $ 1908 $ 2,29¢ % 2,321
Foreign exchange contracts not designated as hgdgtruments 2,53¢ 3,311 4,30z
Interest rate contracts designated as fair valdgéds 2,40( N/A N/A
Total $ 6,847 $ 560t $ 6,62/

Note 9 — Balance Sheet Components
Property and Equipmel

As of December 31,

2014 2013
(In millions)
Property and equipment:

Computer equipment and software $ 6,07: $ 5,17¢
Land and buildings, including building improvements 94: 931
Leasehold improvements 54¢ 512
Furniture and fixtures 35C 29C
Construction in progress and other 331 20¢
8,24¢ 7,12(

Accumulated depreciation (5,349 (4,360
$ 2,90 $ 2,76(

Total depreciation expense on our property andpeaent in the years ended December 31, 2014 , 264 2@12 totaled $1.1 billion ,
$976 million and $767 million , respectively.

Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Total compensation and related benefits includestorued expenses and other current liabilities$v&2 million and $672 million for
the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 , tashec
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Note 10 — Debt

The following table summarizes the carrying valilew outstanding debt as of December 31, 20142848 :

Coupon Carrying Value as of Effective Carrying Value as of Effective
Rate December 31, 2014 Interest Rate December 31, 2013 Interest Rate

(In millions, except percentages)
Long-Term Debt
Floating Rate Notes:

LIBOR plus
Senior notes due 2017 0.20% % 45C 0.56(% — —%
LIBOR plus
Senior notes due 2019 0.48% 40C 0.811% — —%
Fixed Rate Notes:
Senior notes due 2015 0.70(% $ — $ 25C 0.82(%
Senior notes due 2015 1.625% — 59¢ 1.80%%
Senior notes due 2017 1.35(% 1,00(¢ 1.45€6% 1,00 1.45€%
Senior notes due 2019 2.200% 1,14¢ 2.34% — —%
Senior notes due 2020 3.25(% 49¢ 3.38%% 49¢ 3.38%
Senior notes due 2021 2.87%% 74¢ 2.99% — —%
Senior notes due 2022 2.600% 99¢ 2.67¢% 99¢ 2.67¢%
Senior notes due 2024 3.45(% 74¢ 3.531% — —%
Senior notes due 2042 4.00(% 743 4.115% 742 4.11%
Total senior notes 6,73¢ 4,08¢
Hedge accounting fair value
adjustments 22 N/A
Other indebtedness 19 28
Total long-term debt $ 6,77 $ 4,117
Short-Term Debt
Senior notes due 2015 0.700% 25C 0.82(% — —%
Senior notes due 2015 1.625% 60C 1.80%% — —%
Other indebtedness — 6
Total short-term debt 85C 6
Total Debt $ 7,627 $ 4,12:

Senior Notes

In July 2014, we issued senior unsecured notesgmpr notes, in an aggregate principal amounBd Billion . These senior notes
consist of $450 million aggregate principal amoaifioating rate notes due 2017, $400 million aggte principal amount of floating rate
notes due 2019, $1.15 billion aggregate principabant of 2.2% fixed rate notes due 2019, $750 amltiggregate principal amount of 2.875%
fixed rate notes due 2021 and $750 million aggesgéancipal amount of 3.45%xed rate notes due 2024. The floating rate ndtes2017 be:
interest at a floating rate equal to the 3-montB@R plus 0.20% . The floating rate notes due 204#r nterest at a floating rate equal to the 3
month LIBOR plus 0.48% . Interest on the floatiaternotes due 2017 is paid quarterly on Januarp@8l, 28, July 28 and October 28 of each
year. Interest on the floating rate notes due 29p&id quarterly on February 1, May 1, August @ Blovember 1 of each year. Interest on
fixed rate notes due 2019, 2021 and 2024 is payste-annually on February 1 and August 1. Thetifigarate notes are not redeemable prio
to maturity. We may redeem some or all of the firatg notes of each series at any time and froma toriime prior to their maturity, generally
at a make-whole redemption price.

To help achieve our interest rate risk managemigjetctives, in connection with the July 2014 isswaotsenior notes, we entered into
interest rate swap agreements that effectively edad $2.4 billion of our fixed rate debt to flowirate debt
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based on LIBOR. These swaps were designated asafaie hedges against changes in the fair valgerin fixed rate senior notes resulting
from changes in interest rates. The gains and$asdated to changes in the fair value of interatst swaps substantially offset changes in the
fair value of the hedged portion of the underlyitept that are attributable to changes in marketést rates.

The effective interest rates for our senior notetuide the interest payable, the amortization bt teesuance costs and the amortizatic
any original issue discount on these senior ndtésrest on these senior notes is payable eithanteply or semiannually. Interest expense
associated with these senior notes, including dratidn of debt issuance costs, during the yeade@ecember 31, 2014 and 2013 was
approximately $137 million and $105 million , respeely. At December 31, 2014 , the estimated ¥alue of these senior notes was
approximately $7.5 billion .

The indenture pursuant to which the senior noteg Wgsued includes customary covenants that, arotiray things and subject to
exceptions, limit our ability to incur, assume organtee debt secured by liens on specified assetster into sale and lease-back transaction
with respect to specified properties, and alsalides customary events of default.

Other Indebtedness

Our other indebtedness is comprised of overdrattii@s. We have formal overdraft facilities india bearing interest on drawn balan
at approximately a 10% rate per annum. Drawn bafkace expected to be repaid in more than one year.

Commercial Paper

We have a $2 billion commercial paper program pamsto which we may issue commercial paper notés maturities of up to 397
days from the date of issue in an aggregate paheimount of up to $2 billion at any time outstangdiAs of December 31, 2014 , there were
no commercial paper notes outstanding.

Credit Agreement

In 2011, we entered into a credit agreement thatiges for an unsecured $3 billion five-year rewodvcredit facility that includes a
$300 million letter of credit sub-facility and a@Lmillion swingline sub-facility, with availableobrowings under the revolving credit facility
reduced by the amount of any letters of creditsamithgline borrowings outstanding from time to tifdée may also, subject to the agreeme!
the applicable lenders, increase the commitmerdsmnihe revolving credit facility by up to $1 bih . Funds borrowed under the credit
agreement may be used for general corporate pwpose

As of December 31, 2014 , no borrowings or lettérsredit were outstanding under our $3 billionditagreement. However, as
described above, we have a $2 billion commercipeparogram and maintain $2 billion of availablerbaing capacity under our credit
agreement in order to repay commercial paper bongsuvn the event we are unable to repay thoseotamgs from other sources when they
become due. Accordingly, at December 31, 2014hilfin of borrowing capacity was available for ettpurposes permitted by the credit
agreement.

Loans under the credit agreement bear interesthetr €i) the London Interbank Offered Rate (* LIRJ) plus a margin (based on our
public debt credit ratings) ranging from 0.625 gatcto 1.125 percent or (ii) a formula based oratpent bank's prime rate, the federal funds
effective rate or LIBOR plus a margin (based onmublic debt credit ratings) ranging from zero gertcto 0.125 percent. The credit agreemer
will terminate and all amounts owing thereundet bl due and payable on November 22, 2016, unéggsbé commitments are terminated
earlier, either at our request or, if an eventeafadlt occurs, by the lenders (or automaticallyhie case of certain bankruptcy-related events of
default), or (b) the maturity date is extended uponrequest, subject to the agreement of the lsndée credit agreement contains customary
representations, warranties, affirmative and nggatovenants, including a financial covenant, evefdefault and indemnification provisions
in favor of the banks. The negative covenants ohelestrictions regarding the incurrence of liesudhject to certain exceptions. The financial
covenant requires us to meet a quarterly finanegtlwith respect to a minimum consolidated inteceserage ratio.

We were in compliance with all covenants in ourstaniding debt instruments for the period ended BDbee 31, 2014 .
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Future Maturities

Expected future principal maturities as of Decen#er2014 are as follows (in millions):

Fiscal Years:
2015 $ 85C
2016 —
2017 1,45(
2018 —
2019 1,55(
Thereafter 3,75(

$ 7,60(C

Note 11 — Commitments and Contingencies
Commitments

As of December 31, 2014 , approximately $20.2dnillof unused credit was available to PayPal Ceedibuntholders. While this amount
represents the total unused credit available, we hat experienced, and do not anticipate, thaifalur PayPal Credit accountholders will
access their entire available credit at any givaintgn time. In addition, the individual lines ofedit that make up this unused credit are sul
to periodic review and termination by the chartdirdncial institution that is the issuer of PayRagdit products based on, among other th
account usage and customer creditworthiness. Witensumer makes a purchase using a PayPal Creditgir the chartered financial
institution extends credit to the consumer, fur@sextension of credit at the point of sale andaades funds to the merchant. We subsequ
purchase the consumer receivables related to theuoter loans and as result of that purchase, beaisk of loss in the event of loan defaults.
However, we subsequently sell a participation ggem the entire pool of consumer loans to thetehed financial institution that extended the
consumer loans. Although the chartered financstituntion continues to own each customer accouatpwn and bear the risk of loss on the
related consumer receivables, less the participatierest held by the chartered financial institut and PayPal is responsible for all servicing
functions related to the customer account balankesf December 31, 2014 , the total outstandimgggral balance of this pool of consumer
loans was $3.7 billion , of which the charteredfinial institution owned a participation interes$@63 million , or 4.4% of the total
outstanding balance of consumer receivables atititat

In addition, in June 2014, we agreed, subject ttaseconditions, that PayPal, one of its affil&at@ a third party partner will purchase a
portfolio of consumer loan receivables relatinghte customer accounts arising out of our curreeditprogram agreement with Synchrony
(formerly GE Capital Retail Bank) for a price basedthe book value of the consumer loan receivgtbesolio at the time of the purchase
(expected to be October 2016), subject to ceridjinstments and exclusions. As of December 31, 2@yhchrony had a net receivables
portfolio under the credit program agreement ofragpimately $1.5 billion .
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Lease Arrangements

We have lease obligations under certain non-cableetsperating leases. Future minimum rental paysientdler our non-cancelable
operating leases at December 31, 2014 are as fllow

Leases

(In millions)
2015 $ 11¢
2016 9€
2017 83
2018 63
2019 42
Thereafter 52
Total minimum lease payments $ 44¢

Rent expense in the years ended December 31, Z¥B,and 2012 totaled $159 million , $152 milleomd $152 million , respectively.
Litigation and Regulatory Proceedings
Overview

We are involved in legal and regulatory proceedimgsn ongoing basis. Many of these proceedingmararly stages and may seek an
indeterminate amount of damages. If we believedHass arising from such matters is probable amdoe reasonably estimated, we accrue th
estimated liability in our financial statementsoifly a range of estimated losses can be determivedccrue an amount within the range that,
in our judgment, reflects the most likely outcorifigione of the estimates within that range is advetstimate than any other amount, we ac
the low end of the range. For those proceedingghich an unfavorable outcome is reasonably possiliienot probable, we have disclosed an
estimate of the reasonably possible loss or rah@gsses or we have concluded that an estimateeofdasonably possible loss or range of
losses arising directly from the proceeding (n@onetary damages or amounts paid in judgment tesetnt) are not material. If we cannot
estimate the probable or reasonably possible losange of losses arising from a legal proceedirgghave disclosed that fact. In assessing th
materiality of a legal proceeding, we evaluate, agnother factors, the amount of monetary damageset, as well as the potential impact of
non-monetary remedies sought by plaintiffs (ergunctive relief) that may require us to change lousiness practices in a manner that could
have a material adverse impact on our busines#$ &&pect to the matters disclosed in this NotenvElare unable to estimate the possible los
or range of losses that could potentially reswtrfrthe application of such non-monetary remedies.

Amounts accrued for legal and regulatory proceesifiogwhich we believe a loss is probable werematerial for the year ended
December 31, 2014. Except as otherwise noted éopitbceedings described in this Note 11, we haweladed, based on currently available
information, that reasonably possible losses ayidirectly from the proceedings (i.e., monetary dges or amounts paid in judgment or
settlement) in excess of our recorded accrualalapenot material. However, legal and regulatoncpedings are inherently unpredictable anc
subject to significant uncertainties. If one or maratters were resolved against us in a reporéngg for amounts in excess of management’
expectations, the impact on our operating resulfsxancial condition for that reporting period ddiloe material.

Litigation

eBay's Korean subsidiary, IAC (which has merged (Bmarket and is now named eBay Korea), has natifieapproximatel20 million
users of a January 2008 data breach involving patlsoidentifiable information including name, adds, resident registration number and
some transaction and refund data (but not includmegit card information or real time banking infation). Approximately 149,000 users
sued IAC over this breach in several lawsuits imgém courts and more may do so in the future (diotpafter final determination of liability).
Trial for a group of representative suits begaAugust 2009 in the Seoul Central District Court [¥%), and trial for additional suits began
later in the SCDC. There is some precedent in Kfirea court to grant “consolation money” for dataaches without a specific finding of
harm from the breach. Such precedents have inv@agthents of up to approximately $200 per usedaimuary 2010, the SCDC ruled that
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IAC had met its obligations with respect to defergdihe website from intrusion and, accordingly, hadiability for the breach. This January
2010 ruling was appealed by approximately 34,0@ihfffs to the Seoul High Court. In September 2ah2 Seoul High Court announced its
decision upholding the SCDC's January 2010 decisiothree cases involving 55 plaintiffs. During13) the Seoul High Court upheld the
SCDC's January 2010 ruling in another 18 casedvmgp33,795 plaintiffs. The Seoul High Court's g#an in 10 of these 18 cases has been
appealed by 33,215 plaintiffs to the Korea Supréuert, and the Korea Supreme Court is currentljerging a total of 11 cases with 33,218
plaintiffs. In January 2013, the Seoul Western fisCourt ruled in favor of IAC with respect to tveases filed by 2,291 plaintiffs by
following the SCDC's January 2010 ruling, and 2,pBdntiffs proceeded to appeal this decision ef 8eoul Western District Court to the
Seoul High Court. We expect decisions in thesexcas2015.

eBay Inc., eBay Domestic Holdings, Inc., Pierre @yar and Joshua Silverman have been sued by dsaidist. in California Superior
Court in San Francisco (Case No.: CGC - 08 - 48h2X*aigslist filed suit on May 13, 2008 allegithgit we engaged in conduct designed to
harm craigslist's business while we negotiatedetmine and while we were a minority shareholderaigslist. craigslist's allegations include
that we (i) misrepresented, concealed, suppressgéhded to disclose facts in order to induce gshst to take detrimental action; (ii) interfe
with craigslist's business operations; (i) impedy disseminated and misused confidential andntgyy information from craigslist that we
received as a minority investor; (iv) infringed atitlited craigslist's trademark and trade name;(ahtreached duties owed to craigslist. The
complaint seeks significant compensatory and pesidiamages, rescission and other relief. In additioSeptember 2014, craigslist filed an
amended complaint alleging trade secret misap@tipn and seeking new and additional compensatuypanitive damages. The parties are
currently engaged in discovery and a trial daterteds/et been set.

Regulatory Proceedings

PayPal routinely reports to the U.S. DepartmerihefTreasurys Office of Foreign Assets Control (OFAC) on paymsdhhas rejected
blocked pursuant to OFAC sanctions regulationsandny possible violations of those regulationgFR&has cooperated with OFAC in rec
years regarding PayF's review process over transaction monitoring aasl $elf-reported a large number of small dollar @mbéransactions
that could possibly be in violation of OFAC sanoB8aegulations. Beginning in September 2014, we legngaged in settlement discussions
with OFAC regarding the possible violations arisirgm PayPal’'s practices between 2009 and 2013resudt of which we have accrued
reserves we believe are adequate to cover anynfiadif violation. In addition, PayPal continuestmperate with OFAC regarding more rec
self-reported transactions that could also posdiblyn violation of OFAC sanctions regulations. $8elf-reporting transactions could result in
claims or actions against us including litigationjunctions, damage awards or require us to changdusiness practices and could result in a
material loss, require significant management tirasult in the diversion of significant operationaources or otherwise harm our business.

On August 7, 2013 and January 13, 2014, eBay, Payidats subsidiary, Bill Me Later, received Ciliivestigative Demands (CIDs)
from the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (OFfeBuesting that we provide testimony, produceudwents and provide information
relating primarily to the acquisition, managememgl operation of the PayPal Credit products, iriolmdnline credit products, advertising,
loan origination, customer acquisition, servicidgbt collection, and complaints handling practiddse CIDs could lead to an enforcement
action and/or one or more significant consent ardehich may result in substantial costs, includagal fees, fines, penalties and remediatior
expenses. We are cooperating with the CFPB in aimmewith the CIDs and exploring whether we mayebée to resolve these inquiries.
Resolution of these inquiries could require us kenmonetary payments to certain customers, pag find/or change the manner in which w
operate the PayPal Credit products, which couleessly affect our financial results and resultspérations.

In May 2014, we publicly announced that criminakrgvable to penetrate our network and steal cedttian, including user names,
encrypted user passwords and other non-financéldeta, from eBay’s Marketplaces business unibriipaking this announcement, eBay
Marketplaces required all buyers and sellers orMbagketplaces platform to reset their passwordséter to login to their account. In addition
to making this public announcement, we proactiwgiproached a number of regulatory and governmbotiés, including those with the most
direct supervisory authority over our data privacyl data security programs, to specifically infahem of the incident and our actions to
protect our customers in response. Certain of thegelatory agencies have requested us to prouidleefr, more detailed information regard
the incident, and we believe that we have fullypmrated in all of those requests. To date, we hav&een informed by any regulatory
authority of an intention to bring any enforcemadtion arising from this incident; however, in faéure we may be subject to fines or other
regulatory action. In addition, in July 2014, agiive class action lawsuit was filed against usalteged violations and harm resulting from
incident. We are vigorously defending the lawsuit.
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General Matters

Other third parties have from time to time claimadd others may claim in the future, that we haeniged their intellectual property
rights. We are subject to patent disputes, andaxpat we will increasingly be subject to addibpatent infringement claims involving
various aspects of our Marketplaces, Payments atetfitise businesses as our products and senacgisice to expand in scope and
complexity. Such claims may be brought directlynalirectly against our companies and/or againstcostomers (who may be entitled to
contractual indemnification under their contractthws), and we are subject to increased exposusadh claims as a result of our recent
acquisitions, particularly in cases where we aterarg into new lines of business in connectiorhveitich acquisitions. We have in the past
been forced to litigate such claims. We may alsmbree more vulnerable to thiggarty claims as laws such as the Digital MillenniGapyright
Act, the Lanham Act and the Communications DeceXatyare interpreted by the courts, and as we exfiamdcope of our businesses (both in
terms of the range of products and services thaiffee and our geographical operations) and becsubgect to laws in jurisdictions where the
underlying laws with respect to the potential lidpiof online intermediaries like ourselves arther unclear or less favorable. We believe that
additional lawsuits alleging that we have violapadent, copyright or trademark laws will be fileghinst us. Intellectual property claims,
whether meritorious or not, are time consuming eostly to defend and resolve, could require expensanges in our methods of doing
business or could require us to enter into cosijyalty or licensing agreements on unfavorable terms

From time to time, we are involved in other dispute regulatory inquiries that arise in the ordyneourse of business, including suits
our users (individually or as class actions) allggiamong other things, improper disclosure ofpiges, rules or policies, that our practices,
prices, rules, policies or customer/user agreemeaalate applicable law or that we have acted uhfaind/or not acted in conformity with such
prices, rules, policies or agreements. In additiothese types of disputes and regulatory inqyigas operations are also subject to regulatory
and/or legal review and/or challenges that tenefiect the increasing global regulatory focus tdak the payments industry is subject and,
when taken as a whole with other regulatory andlative action, such actions could result in tim@osition of costly new compliance burdens
on our Payments business and its customers andeayo increased costs and decreased transactiome and revenue. Further, the numbe
and significance of these disputes and inquiriedrasreasing as our company has grown larger, asinbsses have expanded in scope (both i
terms of the range of products and services thaiffee and our geographical operations) and oudpets and services have increased in
complexity. Any claims or regulatory actions agains, whether meritorious or not, could be timestoning, result in costly litigation, dama
awards (including statutory damages for certairseawf action in certain jurisdictions), injunctiedief or increased costs of doing business
through adverse judgment or settlement, requit® ebange our business practices in expensive wegsire significant amounts of
management time, result in the diversion of sigaifit operational resources or otherwise harm osinbas.

Indemnification Provisions

In the ordinary course of business, we have inddiieited indemnification provisions in certain @fir agreements with parties with
which we have commercial relations, including aanglard marketing, promotions and application-progning-interface license agreements.
Under these contracts, we generally indemnify, ialdnless and agree to reimburse the indemnifiety far losses suffered or incurred by
indemnified party in connection with claims by &dhparty with respect to our domain names, trad&mdogos and other branding element
the extent that such marks are applicable to odopeance under the subject agreement. In certaes; we have agreed to provide
indemnification for intellectual property infringemt. Our Enterprise business has provided in méitg major ecommerce agreements an
indemnity for other types of third-party claims, ialn are indemnities mainly related to various iletetual property rights, and we have
provided similar indemnities in a limited numberagfreements for our other businesses, includindgviagrento business. In our PayPal
business, we have provided an indemnity to our @arprocessors in the event of certain thuedty claims or card association fines agains
processor arising out of conduct by PayPal or Plagtiaomers. PayPal has also provided a limitedrimaity to merchants using its retail point
of sale payment services and to manufacturers gfaint of sale devices (e.g., the PayPal Herecdsand the Beacon device). In addition, Bil
Me Later has provided indemnification provisionstsiagreements with the chartered financial ingtihs that issue its credit products. It is
possible to determine the maximum potential losteuthese indemnification provisions due to ouiitkah history of prior indemnification
claims and the unique facts and circumstanceswedain each particular provision. To date, lossesrded in our statement of income in
connection with our indemnification provisions hana been significant, either individually or caltvely.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2014 , we had no off-balancetstigangements that have, or are reasonably likdiave, a current or future
material effect on our consolidated financial cdiodi, results of operations, liquidity, capital exglitures or capital resources.

We have various cash pooling arrangements witmizh institutions for cash management purposessé&tarrangements allow for cash
withdrawals from each of these financial institn8ased upon our aggregate operating cash balaelcewithin the same financial institution
(“Aggregate Cash Deposits”). These arrangementsadlisw us to withdraw amounts exceeding the Agagre@ash Deposits up to an agreed-
upon limit. The net balance of the withdrawals #me Aggregate Cash Deposits are used by the fiabinstitution as a basis for calculating
our net interest expense or income under thesegamaents. As of December 31, 2014 , we had adbtd.2 billion in cash withdrawals
offsetting our $7.2 billion in Aggregate Cash Depokeld within the same financial institution undeese cash pooling arrangements.

Note 12 — Related Party Transactions

We have entered into indemnification agreementl wadtch of our directors, executive officers andaterother officers. These
agreements require us to indemnify such individualshe fullest extent permitted by Delaware léov,certain liabilities to which they may
become subject as a result of their affiliationhwis.

All contracts with related parties are at rates t@nohs that we believe are comparable with thoaedbuld be entered into with
independent third parties. There were no matesiated party transactions in 2014 . As of Decerdie2014 , there were no material amounts
payable to or amounts receivable from related @surti

Note 13 — Stockholders' Equity

Preferred Stock

We are authorized, subject to limitations presatibg Delaware law, to issue preferred stock in @neore series; to establish the
number of shares included within each seriesxtth# rights, preferences and privileges of theeshaf each wholly unissued series and any
related qualifications, limitations or restrictiormsd to increase or decrease the number of shhess series (but not below the number of
shares of a series then outstanding) without arifiéu vote or action by our stockholders. At Decentkil, 2014 and 2013 , there were 10
million shares of $0.001 par value preferred staathorized for issuance, and no shares issuedtstanding.

Common Stock
Our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorponagiuthorizes us to issue 3.6 billion shares ofrnomstock.
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Note 14 — Stock Repurchase Program

In June 2012, our Board of Directors authorizetbalsrepurchase program that provides for the @mse of up to $2 billion of our
common stock, with no expiration from the date wtharization. In January 2014, our board of directuthorized an additional $5 billion
stock repurchase program, with no expiration fromdate of authorization. The stock repurchaserprog are intended to offset the impact of
dilution from our equity compensation programs auhject to market conditions and other factors,adso used to make opportunistic
repurchases of our common stock to reduce ourandsig share count. Any share repurchases undestack repurchase programs may be
made through open market transactions, block tramastely negotiated transactions (including de@ded share repurchase transactions) or
other means at times and in such amounts as maeagedeems appropriate and will be funded from oarkimg capital or other financing
alternatives.

Our stock repurchase programs may be limited oniteated at any time without prior notice. The tigniand actual number of shares
repurchased will depend on a variety of factorsluiding corporate and regulatory requirements epaicd other market conditions and
management's determination as to the appropriatefusur cash.

The stock repurchase activity under our stock refase programs during 2014 is summarized as follows

Remaining
Shares Average Price Value of Shares Amount
Repurchased per Share® Repurchased Authorized
(In millions, except per share amounts)

Balance at January 1, 2014 25 % 54.3C % 1,36C $ 64C
Authorization of additional plan in January 2014 — — — 5,00(
Repurchase of shares of common stock 88 52.6¢ 4,65¢ (4,655
Balance at December 31, 2014 112 § 5301 § 6,01  § 98¢t

(1) Stock repurchase activity excludes broker cossions.

As of December 31, 2014 , we had repurchased tharmfiwunt of common stock authorized under our RO stock repurchase
program and a total of approximately $985 milliemained for further repurchases of our common stodler our 2014 stock repurchase
program. These repurchased shares were recordezhasry stock and were accounted for under thiengethod. No repurchased shares have
been retired.

In addition, in January 2015, our board of direst@authorized an additional $2 billion stock refmage program, with no expiration from
the date of authorization. This new stock repureh@sgram, together with approximately $985 millicemaining under our January 2014
stock repurchase program, brings the total repsechathorization as of January 2015 to approxima$d.0 billion .

Note 15 — Stock-Based and Employee Savings Plans
Equity Incentive Plans

We have equity incentive plans under which we geapiity awards, including stock options, restricseatk units, performance-based
restricted stock units, and performance share uwitsur directors, officers and employees. At Deler 31, 2014 , 720 million shares were
authorized under our equity incentive plans andhiRon shares were available for future grant.

All stock options granted under these plans gelyevabt 12.5% six months from the date of grants¥one year from the date of gr:
for grants to new employees) with the remaindetingsat a rate of 2.08% per month thereafter, gantkrally expire seven to ten years from
the date of grant. The cost of stock options iemeined using the Black-Scholes option pricing maaethe date of grant.

Restricted stock units are granted to eligible exygés under our equity incentive plans. In geneeatricted stock units vest in equal

annual installments over a period of three to figars, are subject to the employees' continuingceto us and do not have an expiration date
The cost of restricted stock units is determinadgithe fair value of our common stock on the ddtgrant.
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In 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , certain executives wigidke to receive performance-based restrictedlstmits. The number of restricted
stock units ultimately received depends on ourress performance against specified performancettasgt by the Compensation Committee
If the performance criteria are satisfied, the perfance-based restricted stock units are grantiéa ome-half of the grant vesting in March
following the end of the performance period andré@aining one-half vesting one year later. A mortdf these awards were modified as
described below.

In 2012, certain executives were granted performahere units with performance-based vesting condit The number of performance
share units ultimately received depends on eBaysltmtal stockholder return meeting or exceedimggnhedian total stockholder return of eBay
Inc.'s 2012 peer group over annual performancegefrom 2013 to 2016 and cumulative performancege from 2012 to 2016. The
performance share units are also subject to cer&sting and eligibility requirements and the sharederlying the performance share units
issued upon satisfaction of the vesting conditidfreny, cannot be sold until after December 31, 2 portion of these awards were modifiec
as described below.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

We have an employee stock purchase plan for gibédi employees. Under the plan, shares of our comstock may be purchased over
an offering period with a maximum duration of tweays at 85% of the lower of the fair market valodle first day of the applicable offering
period or on the last day of the six-month purchzexéod. Employees may purchase shares havingue waltt exceeding 10% of their eligible
compensation during an offering period. Duringykars ended 2014 , 2013, and 2012 , employeebamed approximately 4 million , 4
million and 4 million shares under this plan atrage prices of $42.06 , $35.51 and $26.10 per shespectively. At December 31, 2014 ,
approximately 27 million shares of common stockeverserved for future issuance.

Employee Savings Plan

We have a savings plan, which qualifies under 8retD1(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Particigaéimployees may contribute up to
50% of their eligible compensation, but not morantistatutory limits. In 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , wetdbuted one dollar for each dollar a
participant contributed, with a maximum contributiof 4% of each employee's eligible compensatiobjest to a maximum employer
contribution of $10,400 , $10,200 and $10,000 pepleyee for each period, respectively. Our mh&. employees are covered by various ¢
savings plans. Our total expenses for these sapiags were $89 million in 2014 , $84 million inIand $71 million in 2012 .

Deferred Stock Units

Beginning with the 2011 annual meeting of stockbkoddwe have granted deferred stock units to eankemployee director (other than
Mr. Omidyar) at the time of our annual meeting twickholders equal to the result of dividing $22@,&9 the fair market value of our common
stock on the date of grant. In addition, prioranuary 1, 2015, new directors who are not emplogé#&se company or its subsidiaries or
affiliates received a one-time grant of deferrextktunits equal to the result of dividing $150,&80the fair market value of our common stock
on the date of grant. Each deferred stock unittitomss an unfunded and unsecured right to reaaiveshare of our common stock (or, with
respect to deferred stock units granted prior tgust 1, 2013, the equivalent value thereof in cagbroperty at our election). Each deferred
stock unit award granted to a new non-employeettiraipon election to the Board vests 25% one frear the date of grant, and at a rate of
2.08% per month thereafter. If the services ofdinector are terminated at any time, all rightshi® unvested deferred stock units will also
terminate. In addition, directors may elect to reeein lieu of annual retainer and committee clieérs and at the time these fees would
otherwise be payable (i.e., on a quarterly bas@riears for services provided), fully vested deféistock units with an initial value equal to
amount based on the fair market value of commorksibthe date of grant. Following the terminatidra non-employee director's service on
the Board of Directors, deferred stock units grdmteor to August 1, 2013 are payable in stockashc(at our election), while deferred stock
units granted on or after August 1, 2013 are payablely in stock. As of December 31, 2014 , thegee approximately 351,0Gfeferred stoc
units outstanding included in our restricted stonk activity below. A portion of these awards wemnedified as described below.

Modifications of Share-Based Awards

During 2014, the Company modified the terms of masistock-based awards of nine non-employee diea®well as the CEO, CFO,
General Counsel, SVP of Human Resources and S\®mforate Communications in anticipation of ounpled separation of our PayPal
business. The modifications for the non-employeectibrs provide for the full acceleration of equatyards granted to non-employee directors
more than 12 months prior to such person ceasibg @director. The modifications for the departxgcutives provide for the full
acceleration of certain awards at the date theratpa is completed and extended the
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exercise periods of certain awards. The amountgyrézed for modifications for the year ended Decen#i, 2014 were immaterial.
Stock Option Activity

The following table summarizes stock option acyivinder our equity incentive plans as of and ferythar ended December 31, 2014 :

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining
Exercise Contractual Aggregate
Shares Price Term (Years) Intrinsic Value

(In millions, except per share amounts and years)

Outstanding at January 1, 2014 14 % 29.7¢
Granted and assumed 2 3 54.9(
Exercised B) $ 25.92
Forfeited/expired/canceled @ % 41.4z2
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 10§ 34.1¢ 373 $ 20¢
Expected to vest 9 % 33.6¢ 3.65 $ 207
Options exercisable 6 $ 28.7: 281 $ 17t

The aggregate intrinsic value of options was caleudl as the difference between the exercise pfiteeainderlying awards and the
guoted price of our common stock. At December 8142, options to purchase 9 million shares of ammmon stock were in-the-money.

The weighted average grant-date fair value of aytigranted during the years 2014 , 2013 and 2052p4/@.59 , $15.39 and $11.21 ,
respectively. During the years 2014 , 2013 and 202 aggregate intrinsic value of options exeatisnder our equity incentive plans was
$159 million , $292 million and $276 million , remgiively, determined as of the date of option eiserc

Restricted Stock Unit Activity

A summary of the status of restricted stock uiiRSU") granted (including performance-based regdastock units that have been
earned) under our equity incentive plans as of Bgg 31, 2014 and changes during the year endeenilmsr 31, 2014 is presented below:

Weighted Average

Gra}nt—Date
Units (Fpi'; \s/r?::::)
(In millions, except per share amounts)
Outstanding at January 1, 2014 34 $ 42.32
Awarded and assumed 21 % 54.7:
Vested 13 $ 40.1¢
Forfeited 6 $ 47.11
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 36 $ 50.21
Expected to vest at December 31, 2014 31

During the years 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , the agtgegainsic value of restricted stock units vestedier our equity incentive plans was
$759 million , $813 million and $591 million , respively.
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Stock-based Compensation Expense

The impact on our results of operations of recayditock-based compensation expense for years éetmber 31, 2014 , 2013 and
2012 was as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In millions)
Cost of net revenues $ 7€ $ 79 % 55
Sales and marketing 18z 15¢ 13t
Product development 227 187 13¢
General and administrative 18¢ 184 16C
Total stock-based compensation expense $ 675 % 60 $ 48¢
Capitalized in product development $ 18 $ 15§ 1¢

As of December 31, 2014 , there was approximat&lg $illion of unearned stock-based compensatiahwhil be expensed from 2015
through 2018. If there are any modifications oraadlations of the underlying unvested awards, wg barequired to accelerate, increase or
cancel all or a portion of the remaining unearnedlisbased compensation expense. Future uneamgdtzised compensation will increase tc
the extent we grant additional equity awards, ckahg mix of grants between stock options andiogstt stock units or assume unvested
equity awards in connection with acquisitions.

Stock Option Valuation Assumptions

We calculated the fair value of each stock optiwaral on the date of grant using the Black-Schopg®o pricing model. The following
weighted average assumptions were used for the yealed December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 :

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Risk-free interest rate 1.2% 0.6% 0.7%
Expected life (in years) 4.1 4.1 4.C
Dividend yield —% —% —%
Expected volatility 29% 34% 38%

Our computation of expected volatility is basedaorombination of historical and market-based intplielatility from traded options on
our common stock. Our computation of expectedisifieased on historical experience of similar awagilsng consideration to the contractual
terms of the stock-based awards, vesting schedulkgxpectations of future employee behavior. fiterést rate for periods within the
contractual life of the award is based on the Ur8asury yield curve in effect at the time of grant

Note 16 — Income Taxes

The components of pretax income for the years egmgmber 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In millions)
United States $ 172 $ 594 $ 60%
International 3,35¢ 2,87 2,47¢
$ 3,531 $ 3,46¢ $ 3,08¢
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The provision for income taxes is comprised offtiilwing:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In millions)
Current:

Federal $ 49z % 458 $ 327
State and local 20 4 63
Foreign 16E 19C 12C
$ 677 $ 641 $ 51C

Deferred:
Federal $ 2,80¢ $ 18 $ 34
State and local 14 (22 (29
Foreign (14) 27 (45)
2,80¢ (31 (35)
$ 3,48t $ 61C $ 47E

The following is a reconciliation of the differenbetween the actual provision for income taxesthadgrovision computed by applying
the federal statutory rate of 35% for 2014 , 2048 2012 to income before income taxes:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In millions)

Provision at statutory rate $ 1,23¢ $ 1,21 % 1,08(
Permanent differences:

Prior year foreign earnings no longer considerei@fimitely reinvested 2,991 — —

Foreign income taxed at different rates (709 (607) (617)

Change in valuation allowance (142) — 3

Stock-based compensation 42 33 (149

State taxes, net of federal benefit 34 (26) 39

Research and other tax credits (27) (43 1

Divested business — 21 (42)

Other 59 19 24

$ 3,488 % 61C $ 47t

F-38




eBay Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognfaethe future tax consequences of differences beiwthe carrying amounts of assets an
liabilities and their respective tax bases usingcead tax rates in effect for the year in whichdfferences are expected to be reversed.
Significant deferred tax assets and liabilitiessisinof the following:

December 31,

2014 2013
(In millions)
Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss, capital loss and credits $ 172 % 31C
Accruals and allowances 371 341
Stock-based compensation 161 14t
Net unrealized losses 19 5
Net deferred tax assets 72% 801
Valuation allowance (49) (186€)
$ 674 $ 61t

Deferred tax liabilities:
Unremitted foreign earnings $ (2,995 $ (24¢)
Acquisition-related intangibles (160) (29¢€)
Depreciation and amortization (399 (35))
Available-for-sale securities (28E) (332
Other (24) (28)
(3,867) (1,257)
$ (3,18¢) $ (63¢)

As of December 31, 2014 , our federal, state areida net operating loss carryforwards for incomepurposes were approximat&i§l
million , $627 million and $149 million , respeatly. The federal and state net operating loss fiammards are subject to various limitations
under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Codeappticable state tax laws. If not utilized, thedeal net operating loss carryforwards will
begin to expire in 2016 and the state net operdtisg carryforwards will begin to expire in 201%eTcarryforward periods on our foreign net
operating loss carryforwards are as follows: $8Bioni do not expire, $39 million are subject to wation allowance and begin to expire in
2018, and the remaining $22 million are primarilpfgct to expiration beginning in 2025. As of Det®m31, 2014 , our federal and state tax
credit carryforwards for income tax purposes wergraximately $2 million and $67 million , respeey. If not utilized, the federal tax credit
carryforwards will begin to expire in 2024 and mokthe state tax credits carry forward indefinjtel

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, our federaltahlpiss carryover amounted to $116 million and3#dllion , respectively. The
decrease in the capital loss carryover is duedaitiization of the carryover as a result of aleinpompany transaction involving the sale of
appreciated securities to a non-U.S. wholly ownedusiliary during the fourth quarter of 2014. Theaéning capital loss carryover is expectec
to be utilized before expiration in 2019. As sutte valuation allowance against our capital lossyoaer has been released.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013 , we maintained @atiain allowance with respect to certain of ouredefd tax assets relating primarily
to operating losses in certain states and varionsthS. jurisdictions that we believe are not ljk&l be realized.

During the first quarter of 2014, we altered oupita allocation strategy, which included changing intent with regard to the indefinite
reinvestment of foreign earnings from certain of fmueign subsidiaries for 2013 and prior yearsaAsgsult, we provided for U.S. income and
applicable foreign withholding taxes on $9.0 billiof undistributed foreign earnings for 2013 anidipyears, and recorded a deferred tax
liability of approximately $3.0 billion . Based @ecember 31, 2014 foreign exchange rates, thesargmbave been revalued to $8.2 billain
undistributed foreign earnings and $2.8 billiordeferred tax liability. The impact of this changeeéflected in other comprehensive
income. The deferred tax liability is included itceued expenses and other current liabilities arconsolidated balance sheet, which totals
$2.8 billion at December 31, 2014 and $204 miliecember 31, 2013. We have not repatriated athese earnings and as such no relate
taxes have become payable.
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We have not provided for U.S. federal or foreigoome taxes, including withholding taxes on $7.89dsil of our non-U.S. subsidiaries'
undistributed earnings as of December 31, 2014 intéad to indefinitely reinvest the $7.9 billioh@ur non-U.S. subsidiaries’ undistributed
earnings in our international operations. Accordling/e currently have no plans to repatriate tHosels. As such, we do not know the time or
manner in which we would repatriate those fundsasee the time or manner of repatriation is unoentge cannot determine the impact of
local taxes, withholding taxes and foreign tax @sedssociated with the future repatriation of sealmings and therefore cannot quantify the
tax liability. In cases where we intend to repagria portion of our foreign subsidiaries’ undistited earnings, we provide U.S. and applicable
foreign taxes on such earnings and such taxesieliged in our deferred taxes or tax payable liéddl depending upon the planned timing ant
manner of such repatriation.

On a regular basis, we develop cash forecastditoate our cash needs internationally and domdistid&e consider projected cash
needs for, among other things, investments in gistiag businesses, potential acquisitions andtabpansactions, including repurchases of
our common stock and debt repayments. We estirhatarhount of cash available or needed in the jiatisds where these investments are
expected, as well as our ability to generate cashdse jurisdictions and our access to capitakatar This analysis enables us to conclude
whether or not we will indefinitely reinvest thercent period’s foreign earnings. We benefit from talings concluded in several different
jurisdictions, most significantly Switzerland, Sagpre and Luxembourg. These rulings provide famifigantly lower rates of taxation ¢
certain classes of income and require various tioids of investment and employment in those jucisoins. These rulings resulted in a tax
savings of $555 million and $540 million in 2014da2013 , respectively, which increased earningshpare (diluted) by approximately $0.44
and $0.41 in 2014 and 2013, respectively. Theseulings are currently in effect and expire overipds ranging from 2020 to the duration of
business operations in the respective jurisdictigvis evaluate compliance with our tax ruling agreeta annually.

The following table reflects changes in unrecogaitaex benefits since January 1, 2012 :

2014 2013 2012
(In millions)
Gross amounts of unrecognized tax benefits aseobélyinning of the period $ 334 % 34C % 28¢
Increases related to prior period tax positions 35 104 6C
Decreases related to prior period tax positions (18) (143) (24)
Increases related to current period tax positions 61 37 19
Settlements (16) 4 @
Gross amounts of unrecognized tax benefits aseoéttiul of the period $ 39€ $ 334§ 34C

During 2014 we increased our reserves by $96 miliaw various issues that related to tax examimatisks assessed during the year. In
addition, we reduced our reserves by $34 millioseldbon audit findings and settlement of multipleartain tax positions. If the remaining
balance of unrecognized tax benefits were realizedfuture period, it would result in a tax behefi $314 million . As of December 31, 2014
our liabilities for unrecognized tax benefits wéreluded in accrued expenses and other currerilitied and deferred and other tax liabilities,
net.

We recognize interest and/or penalties relatedht@mrain tax positions in income tax expense. 142062 million was included in tax
expense for interest and penalties. The amoumitefast and penalties accrued as of December 34, &td 2013 was approximately $71
million and $77 million , respectively.

We are subject to both direct and indirect taxatiothe U.S. and various states and foreign jucisalis. We are under examination by
certain tax authorities for the 2003 to 2012 taargeWe believe that adequate amounts have beewvedsfor any adjustments that may
ultimately result from these or other examinatioftse material jurisdictions where we are subjeqidtential examination by tax authorities
tax years after 2002 include, among others, the (F&leral and California), France, Germany, Itilgrea, Israel, Switzerland, Singapore,
United Kingdom and Canada.

Although the timing of the resolution and/or closwf audits is highly uncertain, it is reasonaldggible that the balance of gross
unrecognized tax benefits could significantly changthe next 12 months. However, given the nunalbgears remaining subject to
examination and the number of matters being exainiwe are unable to estimate the full range of iptssadjustments to the balance of gross
unrecognized tax benefits.
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Note 17 — Loans and Interest Receivable, Net

Loans and interest receivable primarily representipased consumer receivables arising from loarterbg our partner chartered
financial institutions to individual consumers tarphase goods and services through our PayPalt@nedthant network. Although a chartered
financial institution continues to own each respectustomer account, we own the related consuetaivable and PayPal is responsible for
all servicing functions related to the customerats. Effective August 2013, ownership of mosthef existing customer accounts was
transitioned from WebBank to a new chartered fimarostitution, Comenity Capital Bank. As parttbe arrangement, we sell Comenity
Capital Bank a participation interest in the engio®l of consumer receivables outstanding undectistomer accountdDuring 2014 and
2013, we purchased approximately $5.3 billion $ad. billion , respectively, in consumer receivablés of December 31, 2014 , the total
outstanding principal balance of this pool of cansureceivables is $3.7 billion , of which Comeriitgpital Bank owned a participation
interest of $163 million , or 4.40% of the totaltstanding balance of consumer receivables at titat €omenity Capital Bank has no recourse
against us related to its participation interestfédure of debtors to pay when due. The partitigainterest held by Comenity Capital Bank
the same priority to the interests held by us arglibject to the same credit, prepayment, andeistteate risk associated with this pool of
consumer receivables.

Loans and interest receivable are reported at thegtanding principal balances, net of particirainterest sold and pro-rata allowances
including unamortized deferred origination costd astimated collectible interest and fees. We usenaumer's FICO score, among other
measures, in evaluating the credit quality of amsuimer receivables. A FICO score is a type oficeetre that lenders use to assess an
applicant's credit risk and whether to extend ¢réwdividual FICO scores generally are obtainecheguarter the consumer has an outstandin
consumer receivable owned by PayPal Credit. Thghtedl average consumer FICO score related to thleogpeconsumer receivables and
interest receivable balance outstanding as of Dbee®il, 2014 was 687 compared to 688 as of Dece®ih@013 . As of December 31, 2014
and 2013, approximately 54.2% and 54.7% , resgalgtiof the pool of consumer receivables and @dereceivable balance was due from
consumers with FICO scores greater than 680 , wikigenerally considered "prime" by the consumeditrindustry. As oDecember 31, 20!
and 2013, 9.2% and 9.1%espectively, of the pool of consumer receivabled interest receivable balance was due from metowith FICC
scores below 599 . As of December 31, 2014 and 2@pBroximately 89% and 90% , respectively, of @amsumer receivables and interest
receivable portfolio was current.

During 2013, we began a pilot program, working vétbhartered financial institution, for the chagtéfinancial institution to offer
working capital loans to selected merchant sel\fs.subsequently purchase the related mercharnvatde from the chartered financial
institution and, as a result, bear the risk of iosthe event the loan defaults. Under the progizemticipating merchants can borrow a certain
percentage of their annual payment volume procesgé&thyPal and are charged a fixed fee for the. [bhis program is still in the pilot
phase. As of December 31, 2014 , the total oulstgrbalance of this pool of merchant receivablas approximately $99 million .

The following table summarizes the activity in #ilpwance for loans and interest receivable forytbars ended December 31, 2014 and
2013:

(In millions)
Balance as of January 1, 2013 $ 101
Charge-offs (232
Recoveries 14
Provision 263
Balance as of January 1, 2014 14¢€
Charge-offs (297)
Recoveries 28
Provision 31¢
Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ 19¢
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Note 18 — Interest and Other, Net

The components of interest and other, net for dayended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 &ohoass:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In millions)
Interest income $ 13¢ % 111 $ 134
Interest expense (123 (100 (63
Gain (loss) on divestiture of businesses — 75 11¢€
Other 7 9 7
$ 17 % 95 3 19€

Note 19 — Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The following table summarizes the changes in acdared balances of other comprehensive incoméehfoyéars ended December 31,
2014 .

Unrealized
Gains (Losses) Unrealized Foreign Estimated tax
on Cash Flow Gains on Currency (expense)
Hedges Investments Translation benefit Total
(In millions)

Balance at December 31, 2013 $ (106) $ 921 $ 657 $ (31¢) $ 1,15¢
Other comprehensive income before reclassifications 23¢€ 16C (323 (44) 31
Amount of gain (loss) reclassified from accumulabéuer
comprehensive income (36) 52 — — 16
Net current period other comprehensive income 274 10¢€ (323 (44) 15
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ 16€  $ 1,02¢ § 334 $ (360 $ 1171

The following table summarizes the changes in acdated balances of other comprehensive incomentoyears ended December 31,
2013:

Unrealized
Gains (Losses) Unrealized Foreign Estimated tax
on Cash Flow Gains on Currency (expense)
Hedges Investments Translation benefit Total
(In millions)

Balance at December 31, 2012 $ (55 $ 687 $ 44¢ 3 (225 $ 85€
Other comprehensive income before reclassifications $ (65 $ 24z % 206 % 9) $ 29t
Amount of gain (loss) reclassified from accumulabiuer
comprehensive income $ 149 $ 9 % — 3 — (5)
Net current period other comprehensive income $ (51) $ 234 % 20 $ 91) $ 30C
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ (106) $ 921 % 657 $ (31€) $ 1,15¢
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The following table provides details about reclfisaiions out of accumulated other comprehensicerme for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013:

Amount of Gain (Loss)
Reclassified from
Accumulated Other

Details about Accumulated Other Comprehensive Comprehensive Affected Line Item in the Statement of
Income Components Income Income
2014 2013
(In millions)
Gains (losses) on cash flow hedges - foreign exgdaontracts $ (36) % (4) Net revenues
— (3) Cost of net revenues
1 (1) Sales and marketing
— (5) Product development
Q) (1) General and administrative
(36) (14) Total, before income taxes
— — Provision for income taxes
(36) (14) Total, net of income taxes
Unrealized gains on investments 52 9 Interest and other, net
52 9 Total, before income taxes
— — Provision for income taxes
52 9 Total, net of income taxes
Total reclassifications for the period $ 16§ (5) _Total, net of income taxes

Note 20 — Subsequent Events

In January 2015, at a regular meeting of the Colyipd8oard of Directors (the “Board”), the Board epged a plan to implement a
strategic reduction of its existing global workfer@s a result, the Company expects to reducedt&farce globally by approximately 2,400
positions worldwide. The reduction is expectedécshbstantially completed in the first half of 20The Company expects to incur pre-tax
restructuring charges of approximately $100 millpsimarily for employee-related costs.

On January 21, 2015, we announced that we willkipéoeng strategic options for our eBay Enterpssgment, including a possible sale
or IPO.
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Supplementary Data — Quarterly Financial Data — Undited

The following tables present certain unaudited obdated quarterly financial information for eachtloe eight quarters ended

December 31, 2014 . This quarterly information besn prepared on the same basis as the Consolieiatattial Statements and includes all

adjustments necessary to state fairly the inforondfor the periods presented.

2014

Net revenues

Gross profit

Net income (loss)

Net income (loss) per share-basic
Net income (loss) per share-diluted

Weighted-average shares:
Basic
Diluted

2013

Net revenues

Gross profit

Net income

Net income per share-basic
Net income per share-diluted
Weighted-average shares:

Basic
Diluted

Quarterly Financial Data

Quarter Ended

(Unaudited, in millions, except per share amounts)

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
$ 4,26: $ 4,36¢ 4,35:¢ 4,921
$ 2911 % 2,97¢ 2,964 3,321
$ (2,320 $ 67€ 67% 1,02
(1.82) 0.54 0.54 0.8:
$ 1.89 $ 0.5: 0.54 0.8z
1,27¢ 1,25¢ 1,24: 1,23(
1,27¢ 1,26 1,251 1,241

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30Y December 31
$ 3,74¢  $ 3871 $ 3,89: $ 4,53(
$ 2,59 $ 2,666 $ 2,66¢ $ 3,081
$ 677 $ 64C $ 68¢ $ 85(
$ 05z $ 0.4¢ $ 05: % 0.6€
$ 051 $ 0.4¢ % 05: % 0.6%
1,29¢ 1,29 1,29¢ 1,29¢
1,31¢ 1,31: 1,31(C 1,31(

(1) The quarterly financial information include$25 milliongain on the sale of our investments in RueLalLa%imopRunner.
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eBay Inc.
FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

The Financial Statement Schedule Il — VALUATION ANDUALIFYING ACCOUNTS is filed as part of this AnnuBeport on Form 10-K.

Balance at Charges
Beginning of  Charged/Credited Charged to Utilized/Write-  Balance at End
Period to Net Income Other Account offs of Period
(In millions)
Allowances for Doubtful Accounts and
Authorized Credits
Year Ended December 31, 2012 $ 87 $ 177 $ — % a7 $ 89
Year Ended December 31, 2013 89 24¢ — (232) 10€
Year Ended December 31, 2014 $ 10€ $ 84 $ — $ (88 $ 10z
Allowance for Transaction, Loan and
Interest Losses
Year Ended December 31, 2012 $ 19 ¢ 57: % — $ (53¢) $ 22¢
Year Ended December 31, 2013 22¢ 80t — (72¢€) 307
Year Ended December 31, 2014 $ 307 $ 96 $ — $ (88€) $ 38¢
Tax Valuation Allowance
Year Ended December 31, 2012 $ 83 % 16 $ 78 % 8 $ 16¢
Year Ended December 31, 2013 16¢ 35 (2 (16) 18€
Year Ended December 31, 2014 $ 18€ $ (135) $ 2 $ — 49
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amentiedregistrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the usigeied, thereunto duly authorized, in the City ahSose, State of California, on the 5th day o
February, 2015.

eBay Inc.

By: /s/ John J. Donahoe

John J. Donahoe
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each pemshose sighature appears below constitutes anmrgp@ohn Donaha
Robert H. Swan, Brian J. Doerger, and Michael Robiaon, and each or any one of them, each withdiner of substitution, his or her
attorney-in-fact, to sign any amendments to thi®re with exhibits thereto and other documentsdnnection therewith, with the Securities
and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and conifig all that each of said attorneys-in-fact, @ $ubstitute or substitutes, may do or

cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, as amended, this report has sigeed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in thea#pa indicated on February 5, 2015 .

Principal Executive Officer: Principal Financial Officer:
By: /s/ John J. Donahoe By: /s/ Robert H. Swan
John J. Donahoe Robert H. Swan
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director Senior Vice President, Finance and Chief FinanciaDfficer

Principal Accounting Officer:

By: /s/ Brian J. Doerger

Brian J. Doerger
Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer
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By:

By:

By:

By:

By:

By:

By:

Isl Pierre M. Omidyar

Additional Directors

Pierre M. Omidyar
Founder, Chairman of the Board and Director

/s/ Edward W. Barnholt

Edward W. Barnholt
Director

/s/ David W. Dorman

David W. Dorman
Director

/s/ Bonnie S. Hammer

Bonnie S. Hammer
Director

/s/ David M. Moffett

David M. Moffett
Director

/sl Thomas J. Tierney

Thomas J. Tierney
Director

/sl Frank D. Yeary

Frank D. Yeary
Director
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By:

By:

By:

By:

By:

By:

/s/ Fred D. Anderson

Fred D. Anderson
Director

/sl Scott D. Cook

Scott D. Cook
Director

/s/ William C. Ford, Jr.

William C. Ford, Jr.
Director

/sl Kathleen C. Mitic

Kathleen C. Mitic
Director

/sl Richard T. Schlosberg, IlI

Richard T. Schlosberg, IlI
Director

s/ Perry M. Traquina

Perry M. Traquina
Director




INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Incorporated by Reference

Filed with
No. Exhibit Description this 10-K Form File No. Date Filed
2.01*++ Share Purchase Agreement, dated as of Septemd@09d, as 10-Q 00024821 10/27/200¢
amended on September 14, 2009, by and among RedjstBay
International AG, Sonorit Holding, A.S. and Sprioglod Group
S.a.r.l. (formerly SLP Ill Cayman DS IV Holdingsag.l.)
2.02* Amendments to Share Purchase Agreement, dated@ctaber 19, 8-K 00024821 11/20/200¢
2009, October 21, 2009, November 5, 2009 and Noeerh®, 200¢
by and among Registrant, eBay International AG dsibiriolding,
A.S. and Springboard Group S.a.r.l. (formerly SUFCByman DS
IV Holdings S.a.r.l.)
2.03** Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated March 27, 2a8digng 8-K 00024821 3/30/2011
Registrant, Gibraltar Acquisition Corp. and GSI Goerce, Inc.
3.01 Registrant's Amended and Restated Certificate adfrfroration. 8-K 00024821 4/27/201%
3.02 Registrant's Amended and Restated Bylaws. 8-K 00024821 1/7/201¢
4.01 Form of Specimen Certificate for Registrant's ComrS8tock. S-1 33359097 8/19/199¢
4.02 Indenture dated as of October 28, 2010 betweensRagt and 8-K 00024821 10/28/201(
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee.
4.03 Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 28, Béteen 8-K 00024821 10/28/201(
Registrant and Wells Fargo Bank, National Assoaigtas trustee.
4.04 Forms of 1.625% Note due 2015 and 3.250% Noe 2020. 8-K 00024821 10/28/201(
4.05 Forms of 0.70% Note due 2015, 1.35% Note due 2D5D% Note 8-K 00024821 7/24/201z
due 2022 and 4.00% Note due 2042.
4.06 Indenture dated as of July 2, 2007 between GSI Gencen Inc. and 10-Q 00024821 7/22/2011
The Bank of New York, as trustee.
4.07 First Supplemental Indenture dated as of June@¥] o the 10-Q 00024821 7/22/2011
Indenture dated as of July 2, 2007 between GSI| Genven Inc. and
The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.
4.08 Form of 2.50% Convertible Senior Note d0272 10-Q 00024821 7/22/2011
4.09 Forms of Floating Rate Note due 2017, Floating Ruite due 8-K 00024821 7/28/201¢
2019, 2.200% Note due 2019, 2.875% Note due 208 Bat50%
Note due 2024
10.01+  Form of Indemnity Agreement entered into by Registwith each S-1 33359097 7/15/199¢
of its directors and executive officers.
10.02+  Registrant's 1998 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended 10-K 00024821 2/28/2007
10.03+  Form of Stock Bonus Agreement under Registran®8 Equity 10-Q 00024821 10/27/200¢

Incentive Plan.



10.04+  Form of Stock Option Agreement under Registrar@$81Equity 10-Q 00024821 10/27/200¢
Incentive Plan.

10.05+  Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (and Penfomce-Based 10-K 00024821 2/28/2007
Restricted Stock Unit Agreement) under Registrar8%3 Equity
Incentive Plan.
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Incorporated by Reference

Filed with

No. Exhibit Description this 10-K Form File No. Date Filed

10.06+ Registrant's Amended and Restated 1998 Employexd Siarchase 10-Q 00024821 7127/2007
Plan.

10.07+  Registrant's 1998 Directors Stock Option Plan,rasraled. 10-K 00024821 2/28/2007

10.08+  Registrant's 1999 Global Equity Incentive Planam&nded. 10-Q 00024821 7127/2007

10.09+  Form of Stock Option Agreement under Registrard%91Global 10-Q 00024821 10/27/200¢
Equity Incentive Plan.

10.10+  Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under Regig's 1999 10-K 00024821 2/28/2007
Global Equity Incentive Plan.

10.11+  Registrant's 2001 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended 10-K 00024821 2/28/2007

10.12+  Form of Stock Option Agreement under RegistrafiG12Equity 10-Q 00024821 10/27/200¢
Incentive Plan.

10.13+  Registrant's 2003 Deferred Stock Unit Plan, as a®en 10-K 00024821 2/28/2007

10.14+ Amendment to Registrant's 2003 Deferred Stock Blaih, effective 10-Q 00024821 7/19/201z
April 2, 2012.

10.15+  Form of Director Award Agreement under RegistraR@63 10-Q 00024821 7/19/201z
Deferred Stock Unit Plan.

10.16+  Form of Electing Director Award Agreement under Regnt's 10-Q 00024821 7/19/201z
2003 Deferred Stock Unit Plan.

10.17+  Form of New Director Award Agreement under Registea2003 10-Q 00024821 7/19/201z
Deferred Stock Unit Plan.

10.18+  Form of 2003 Deferred Stock Unit Plan Restricteac8tUnit Grant 10-Q/A 00024821 4/24/200¢
Notice and Agreement.

10.19+  Registrant's 2008 Equity Incentive Award Plan, mglded and S-8 00024821 5/15/201¢
restated.

10.20+ Amendment to the Registrant's 2008 Equity Incenfiweard Plan, 10-Q 00024821 7/29/200¢
Registrant's 2001 Equity Incentive Plan, Registsal®99 Global
Equity Incentive Plan, Registrant's 1998 Equityeimive Plan and
Shopping.com Ltd. 2004 Equity Incentive Plan.

10.21+  Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (&w®formance- 10-Q 00024821 7/19/201z
Based Restricted Stock Unit Agreement) under Regiss 2003
Deferred Stock Unit Plan, Registrant's 2008 Eglritentive Award
Plan and GSI Commerce, Inc. 2010 Equity Incentiiaa P

10.22+  Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (Wiledified 10-Q 00024821 7/19/201z
Vesting) under Registrant's 2008 Equity Incentiweafd Plan.

10.23+  Form of Stock Option Agreement under RegistrafiB82Equity 10-Q 00024821 7/19/201z

Incentive Award Plan.



10.24+

10.25+

10.26+

10.27+

Form of Stock Option Agreement (with Modified Vesf) under
Registrant's 2008 Equity Incentive Award Plan.

Form of Performance Share Unit Award Agreement unde
Registrant's 2008 Equity Incentive Award Plan.

Form of Director Deferred Stock Unit Award Agreerhander
Registrant's 2008 Equity Incentive Award Plan.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (and Penfomce-Based
Restricted Stock Unit Agreement) under Registrét@338 Equity
Incentive Award Plan.

F-49

10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

8-K

00024821

00024821

00024821

00024821

7/19/201z

7/19/201:

7/19/201z

6/25/200¢




Incorporated by Reference

Filed with
No. Exhibit Description this 10-K Form File No. Date Filed
10.28+  eBay Incentive Plan. DEF 14A 00024821 3/19/201(
10.29+  Amendment to eBay Incentive Plan, effective ApriPR12. 10-Q 00024821 7/19/201z
10.30+  eBay Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan. 8-K 00024821 12/20/200:
10.31+ Employment Letter Agreement dated March 31, 20@8yben John 10-Q/A 00024821 4/24/200¢
Donahoe and Registrant.
10.32+  Letter Agreement dated September 30, 2008 betwebrRSwan 10-Q 00024821 10/23/200¢
and Registrant.
10.33+ GSI Commerce, Inc. 2010 Equity IncenkNen. 10-Q 00024821 7/22/2011
10.34+ Amendment to GSI Commerce, Inc. 2010 t¥dacentive Plan. 10-Q 00024821 7/22/2011
10.35+  Amendment to GSI Commerce, Inc. 2010 Equity IncenRlan, 10-Q 00024821 7/19/201z
effective April 2, 2012.
10.36+  Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement ung&i 10-Q 00024821 7/19/201:
Commerce, Inc. 2012 Equity Incentive Plan.
10.37+  GSI Commerce, Inc. Leadership Team Incentive Ffdad as
Appendix B to GSI Commerce, Inc.'s Definitive Prd&&atement on
Schedule 14A filed with the Commission on April 2808 and
incorporated herein by reference).
10.38+ Amendment to GSI Commerce, Inc. Leadership Teamniie 10-Q 00024821 7/19/201z
Plan, effective April 2, 2012.
10.39+  Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (and Penfomce-Based 10-Q 00024821 7/22/2011
Restricted Stock Unit Agreement) under GSI Commdrae 2010
Equity Incentive Plan, as amended.
10.40+ eBay Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan. DEF 14A 00024821 3/19/201z
10.41+  Offer letter dated August 30, 2011 and execute8eptember 2, 8-K 00024821 9/6/2011
2011 between Registrant and Devin Wenig.
10.42 Credit Agreement, dated as of November 22, 201Bnagyamong 8-K 00024821 11/28/201:
Registrant, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Admatise Agent,
and the other parties thereto.
10.43 First Amendment, dated as of March 4, 2013, taGheit 10-Q 00024821 4/19/201:
Agreement, dated as of November 22, 2011, by arahgm
Registrant, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Admatise Agent,
and the other parties thereto.
10.44+  Form of New Director Award Agreement under Regisfsa2008 10-Q 00024821 4/19/201z
Equity Incentive Award Plan.
10.45+  Form of Director Annual Award Agreement under Ragist’s 200€ 10-Q 00024821 4/19/201z

Equity Incentive Award Plan.



10.46+

10.47+

10.48+

10.49+

10.50+

Form of Electing Director Quarterly Award Agreememider
Registrant’s 2008 Equity Incentive Award Plan.

Form of Performance Share Unit Award Agreement unde
Registrant’s 2008 Equity Incentive Award Plan.

Form of Global Stock Option Agreement under Regigts 2008
Equity Incentive Award Plan.

Form of Global Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (&siformance-
Based Restricted Stock Unit Agreement) under Regiss 2008
Equity Incentive Award Plan.

Separation Agreement dated September 15, 2014 betiRegistrar
and Mark Carges.
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Filed with Incorporated by Reference

No. Exhibit Description this 10-K Form File No. Date Filed
10.51+  Offer Letter dated September 29, 2014 between Regtsand 10-Q 00024821 10/16/201¢
Daniel Schulman.
10.52+  Letter Agreement dated September 29, 2014 betwegisRant and 10-Q 00024821 10/16/201¢
Devin Wenig.
10.53+ Written Description of Transaction Suscaisd Retention Program. X
10.54+ Amendment dated December 31, 2014 to Offer Leénben
Registrant and Daniel Schulman. X
12.01 Statement regarding computation of ratio of eammitagfixed
charges. X
21.01 List of Subsidiaries. X
23.01 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP consent. X
24.01 Power of Attorney (see signature page). X
31.01 Certification of Registrant's Chief Executive Offic as required by
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. X
31.02 Certification of Registrant's Chief Financial O#ic¢ as required by
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. X
32.01 Certification of Registrant's Chief Executive Offic as required by
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. X
32.02 Certification of Registrant's Chief Financial Offi¢ as required by
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. X
101.INS XBRL Instance Document X
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document X
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docune X
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhen X
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document X
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenim X

+  Indicates a management contract or compensatonygplarrangeme

++ Portions of this exhibit are subject to a requestbnfidential treatment and have been redactddilu separately with the Securities
and Exchange Commission.

* The annexes and schedules to the Share PurchasenAgnt have been omitted from this filing pursuartem 601(b)(2) of Regulation
S-K. The Registrant will furnish copies of any axe®or schedules to the Securities and Exchanger@sion upon request.

**  The schedules and exhibits to the Agreement anddI®&erger have been omitted from this filing puast to Item 601(b)(2) of
Regulation S-K. The Registrant will furnish copadfsany annexes or schedules to the Securities aodaBge Commission upon request.
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EXHIBIT 10.53
Written Description of Transaction Success and iR&te Program

On December 15, 2014, the Compensation CommittégedBoard of Directors of eBay Inc. (the "Compgratiopted an arrangement in which
certain of the Company’s executives will particgpafl he executives that may participate includeGg® and CFO, as well as any other
executive officers who will not be continuing witither ongoing company after the separation ofxbmpany’s ecommerce and payments
businesses (“Departing Executive Officers”). Unitthe terms of the arrangement, called the Traiwa8uccess and Retention Program, eacl
Departing Executive Officer would be entitled tataén benefits in the event the officer remains Eyed through the separation of the
Company’s ecommerce and payments businesses aodhds employment is terminated at the time obsafion.

The benefits for the CEO and CFO would includeshgaayment equal to two times annual base salalyvemtimes the annual cash incentive
paid at the target amount, as well as the accéedaraf all restricted stock unit and stock optiamaads that were outstanding and unvested as |
the date of termination of employment. The besdéit other Departing Executive Officers would imbé a cash payment equal to 1.5 times
annual base salary and 1.5 times the annual ceshtiwe paid at the target amount, as well as ¢belaration of all restricted stock unit and
stock option awards that were outstanding and uadess of the date of termination of employmentaddition, for all stock option awards
granted in calendar years 2013, 2014 and 2015byifthe post-termination period to exercise anyeasptions will be extended from 90 days
to 36 months.

Performance under all outstanding performalpased restricted stock unit ("PBRSU") awards wdlldalculated in accordance with the term
the plans under which such awards were grantdthudh the existing performance targets will be teederformance as of the quarter most
recently completed to recognize the shorter perémiee period. In addition, the time-based vestleghents of any resulting PBRSU awards
granted will also accelerate.

In the event that the separation occurs prior toebeer 31, 2015, performance for the 2015 vestrumatstanding performance share unit
awards will be determined based on total sharehoédarn calculated on the date immediately pricihe effective date of the separation and
the 2016 vest will be cancelled. All other termigh® performance share unit awards will remaifulhforce and effect.



EXHIBIT 10.54

December 31, 2014

Daniel Schulman

c/o eBay Inc.

2065 Hamilton Avenue
San Jose, California 95125

Dear Dan:

This letter will serve as an amendment to the eyt offer letter between you and eBay Inc. (tBerhpany”)dated September 2
2014 (the “Letter”). Among other items, the Lettiesscribes an equity clawback make-good payment' (Huity Clawback Make-good
Paymen”) to cover the pre-tax income you would be reqdit@ repay your current employer for amounts redliin the 24 months prior to
your termination of employment, up to a total amoafr$610,496,388. You agreed to work with the Cony's counsel to negotiate with your
now former employer to avoid the imposition of thewback to the extent possible, and have done so.

In the course of negotiations, your prior emploglaimed that it was entitled to a greater amoumepayment, on the grounds that
additional awards would be encompassed under tipdoger’s clawback agreements. The Company and gwe disputed that claim, and the
parties have now come to a compromise to resolyeand all claims of your former employer. As a teghe amount of the Equity Clawback
Make-good Payment will be in the amount of up t8,800,000.00.

Except as specifically set forth in this amendmalitpther terms and conditions of the Letter welinain in full force and effect.

Very truly yours,

/s/ John Donahoe

John Donahoe

President and Chief Executive Officer
eBay Inc.

ACCEPTED:
/s/ Daniel Schulman
Daniel Schulman

December 31, 2014



Exhibit 12.01

eBay Inc.

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges
(In millions, except ratio data)

Year Ended December 31,

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Income Before Income Taxes, Noncontrollin
Interest and Income/Loss of Equity Method
Investees 2,111 3,926 3,111 3,483 3,576
Add: Fixed Charge® 45 80 122 161 175
Earnings® 2,156 4,006 3,233 3,644 3,751
Fixed Charge& 45 80 122 161 175
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges 47.9 X 50.1 X 26.4 X 22.6 X 21.4 X

(1) Fixed Charges consist of interest expensecan@stimate of an appropriate portion of rentajgesentative of the interest factor. The
estimate of interest within rental expense is estit to be one-third of rental expense.
(2) Earnings consist of income before income tageacontrolling interest and equity in gains @ses of equity method investees plus

Fixed Charges.



LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014

DOMESTIC SUBSIDIARIES

Name

7601 Trade Port Drive, LLC, a Kentucky limited lily company
935 KOP Associates, LLC, a Pennsylvania limitefilisy company
935 HQ Associates, LLC, a Delaware limited liaililompany
1075 First Global Associates, LLC, a Pennsylvainigtéd liability company
Baazee.com, Inc., a Delaware corporation

Bill Me Later, Inc., a Delaware corporation

Duff Research, LLC, a California limited liabiligompany

eBay China, Inc., a Delaware corporation

eBay Domestic Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporatio

eBay Foundation, a California private foundation

eBay Insurance Services, Inc., a Delaware corporati

eBay International Inc., a Delaware corporation

eBay Mobile Labs, Inc., a Delaware corporation

eBay Partner Network, Inc., a Delaware corporation

eBay Real Estate, Inc., a Delaware corporation

eBay Software Foundation LLC, a Delaware limitedbility company
Eureka Labs, Inc., a Delaware corporation

Global Commerce Services, Inc., a Delaware corjmrat

GSI Commerce, Inc., a Delaware corporation, DBAyeBaterprise, Inc.
Half.com, Inc., a Pennsylvania corporation

KOP Promotions LLC, a Virginia limited liability ecopany

Last Minute Transactions, Inc., a Delaware corponat
Marketplace Insurance Inc., a Hawaii corporation

PayPal Asset Management, Inc., a Delaware corporati

PayPal Charitable Giving Fund, a Delaware non-statkoration
PayPal Data Services, Inc., a Delaware corporation

PayPal Gift Card Services, Inc., a Arizona corporat

PayPal Global Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporatio

PayPal, Inc., a Delaware corporation

ProStores, Inc., a Delaware corporation

Shutl, Inc., a Delaware corporation

StubHub, Inc., a Delaware corporation

Truvie Security, Inc., a Delaware corporation

Venmo, LLC., a Delaware limited liability company

WHERE, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company

WHI Solutions, Inc., a Delaware corporation

X.commerce, Inc., a Delaware corporation, DBA Magec.
Zvents, Inc., a California corporation

Exhibit 21.01




INTERNATIONAL SUBSIDIARIES

Jurisdiction of Percent Ownership

Name Incorporation If Less Than 100%
Autoact AB Sweden

Baazee.com Private Limited Mauritius

Bil Markedet ApS Denmark

BillSafe GmbH Germany

Den Bla Avis A/S Denmark

EachNet.com Limited

eBay Advertising Group GmbH

eBay Asia Pacific Regional Management Services Ltd.
eBay Australia and New Zealand Pty Limited

eBay Canada Limited

eBay China Limited

eBay Classifieds Argentina S.R.L.

eBay Classifieds Denmark ApS

eBay Classifieds Mexico, S. de R.L. de C.V.

eBay Corporate Services GmbH

eBay Czech Republic s.r.o.

eBay do Brasil Servicos de Consultoria e Markelitdn
e-Dialog Singapore Private Ltd.

e-Dialog UK Limited

eBay Enterprise e-Commerce (Shanghai) Corp. Ltd.
eBay Enterprise Fulfilment GmbH

eBay Europe Sarl

eBay Europe Services Ltd.

eBay France SAS

eBay GmbH

eBay e-Commerce Technology Operations (Shanghaj)L@b
eBay Engineering & Research Center (Shanghai)l@a.,
eBay India Pvt. Ltd.

eBay International Advertising GmbH

eBay International AG

eBay International Fund Co. 2 Sarl

eBay International Hong Kong Ltd.

eBay International Marketing GmbH

eBay International Treasury Center Sarl

eBay International Treasury Center 2 Sarl

eBay Israel Holding Ltd.

eBay ltalia S.r.l.

eBay Japan K.K.

eBay Korea Co., Ltd.

eBay KTA (UK) Limited

eBay Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

eBay Marketing (Thailand) Company Limited

eBay Motors India Private Limited

eBay Malaysia Sdn Bhd

eBay Merchant Services GmbH

eBay New Ventures K.K.

eBay Polska Sp z o.0.

eBay RU LLC

AD A CAndinn~ CA

Cayman Islands

Germany

Korea

Australia

Canada

Cayman Islands, British West Indies
Argentina

Denmark

Mexico

Germany

Czech Republic

Brazil

Singapore

United Kingdom

People's Republic of China
Germany

Luxembourg

Ireland

France

Germany

People’s Republic of China
People’s Republic of China
India

Switzerland

Switzerland

Luxembourg

Hong Kong

Switzerland

Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Israel

Italy

Japan

Korea 99.9%
United Kingdom

People’s Republic of China

Thailand

India

Malaysia

Germany

Japan

Poland

Russia

L invAanmbhAiiva



eBay Services Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V. Mexico

eBay Sweden AB Sweden

eBay Singapore Services Private Limited Singapore

eBay Software Technologies (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. People’s Republic of China




Jurisdiction of Percent Ownership

Name Incorporation If Less Than 100%
eBay Spain International, S.L. Spain

eBay Taiwan Company Ltd. Taiwan

eBay Treasury Sarl Luxembourg

eBay Treasury International Fund Co. Sarl Luxembourg

eBay (UK) Limited

EU Liaison Office BVBA

Gitti Gidiyor Bilgi Teknolojileri Sanayi ve Ticarédnonim Sirketi
GSI Commerce GmbH

GSI Commerce Solutions International , S.L.

GSI Commerce Japan K.K.

GSI Luxembourg S.a.r.l.

Gumtree.com Limited

Gumtree South Africa (Pty) Ltd.

Internet Performance Testing Ltd.

LLC NBCI “PayPal RU"

Marktplaats B.V.

mobile.de GmbH

Nihon PayPal K.K.

PayPal Argentina SRL

PayPal Australia Pty Limited

PayPal Bilisim Hizmetleri Limited Sirketi
PayPal CA Limited

PayPal Credit Pty Ltd.

PayPal Deutschland GmbH

PayPal Do Brasil Servicos de e Pagamentos Ltda.
PayPal (Europe) Ltd.

PayPal (Europe) Sarl

PayPal (Europe) Sarl et Cie, SCA
PayPal Europe SE

PayPal Europe Services Ltd.

PayPal European Marketing S.A.
PayPal France SAS

PayPal Hong Kong Limited

PayPal India Private Limited

PayPal Information Technologies (Shanghai) Co., Ltd
PayPal International Limited

PayPal International Sarl

PayPal Israel Holding (2008) Ltd.
PayPal Israel Ltd.

PayPal Italia s.r.l.

PayPal Japan K.K.

PayPal Korea Services LLC

PayPal Malaysia Services Sdn Bhd
PayPal Mexico, S. de R.L. de C.V.
PayPal Nederlands B.V.

PayPal Payments Pte. Holdings S.C.S.

United Kingdom
Canada

Belgium

Turkey 93%
Germany

Spain

Japan

Luxembourg

United Kingdom
South Africa

British Virgin Islands
Ireland/Luxembourg
Italy

Norway

Russian Federation
The Netherlands
Germany

Japan 50%
Argentina

Australia

Turkey

Canada

Australia

Germany

Brazil

United Kingdom
Luxembourg
Luxembourg

Ireland

Ireland

Switzerland

France

Hong Kong

India

People’s Republic of China
Ireland/Singapore
Luxembourg

Israel

Israel

Italy

Japan

Korea

Malaysia

Mexico

The Netherlands

Luxembourg



PayPal Payments Pte. Ltd.
PayPal Payments Private Limited
PayPal Philippines, Inc.

PayPal Polska Sp z 0.0.

PayPal Pte. Ltd.

PayPal SE

Singapore
India
Philippines
Poland
Singapore

United Kingdom




Name

Jurisdiction of Percent Ownership
Incorporation If Less Than 100%

PayPal Services Canada Limited

PayPal Settlement Services (ChongQing) Co., Ltd.
PayPal Spain S.L.

PayPal Taiwan Services Limited

PayPal (UK) Limited

PayPal 2 Sarl

PayPal 3 Sarl

PayPal 4 Sarl

Private Sale GmbH

Private Sale International GmbH

PT PayPal Marketing Services

Shanghai An Jie Bao Tong Network Technology Cdl, Lt
Shanghai eBay Network Information Services Co., Ltd
Shopping.com GmbH

Shopping.com UK Ltd.

Shutl Limited

StubHub Europe Sarl

StubHub Services Sarl

Via-Online GmbH

WHERE d.o.o0.

X.Commerce Development LLC

Zendor/GSI Commerce Limited

Zong SA

Zong GmbH

Canada

People’s Republic of China
Spain

Taiwan

United Kingdom
Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Germany

Germany

Indonesia

People’s Republic of China
People’s Republic of China 50%
Germany

United Kingdom

United Kingdom
Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Germany

Croatia

Ukraine

United Kingdom
Switzerland

Germany



Exhibit 23.01

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (Nos. 333-154449, 333-175733,
333-197522), Form S-4 (No. 333-97727 and No. 333-117914), and Form S-8 (Nos. 333-64179, 333-87593, 333-41944, 333-58046,
333-97729, 333-100426, 333-107832, 333-117913, 333-127971, 333-129072, 333-136118, 333-140942, 333-143880, 333-149131,
333-149132, 333-151851, 333-155314, 333-159778, 333-165438, 333-168295, 333-171154, 333-174242, 333-175416, 333-
175417, 333-176477, 333-176663, 333-178369, 333-181535, 333-181539, 333-192514, 333-193299, 333-195987) of eBay Inc. of
our report dated February 5, 2015 relating to the consolidated financial statements, financial statement schedule and the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K .

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
February 5, 2015



Exhibit 31.01

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER,
AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002.

[, John J. Donahoe, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of eBay,;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or én#ttate a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durimg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaing, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrali$slosure controls and procedures and presentidisineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conantprocedures, as of the end of the period coumyehlis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig's internal control over financial reportitgt occurred during the registra
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofisttal quarter in the case of an annual repo# tias materially affected, or is reason:
likely to materially affect, the registrant's imet control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) drithve disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdtaxmnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@ispersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize aport financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ John J. Donahoe

John J. Donahoe

President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: February 5, 2015



Exhibit 31.02

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER,
AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002.

I, Robert H. Swan, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of eBay,;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or én#ttate a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durimg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaing, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrali$slosure controls and procedures and presentidisineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conantprocedures, as of the end of the period coumyehlis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig's internal control over financial reportitgt occurred during the registra
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofisttal quarter in the case of an annual repo# tias materially affected, or is reason:
likely to materially affect, the registrant's imet control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) drithve disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdtaxmnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@ispersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize aport financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/Robert H. Swan

Robert H. Swan

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Date: February 5, 2015



Exhibit 32.01

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER,
AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002.

I, John J. Donahoe, hereby certify pursuant to 18.C. Section 1350 adopted pursuant to Sectioro®@& Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that:

(i) The accompanying annual report on Form 10-Ktleryear ended December 31, 2014 fully compli¢b thie requirements of
Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the SecuritieshHaxge Act of 1934, as amended; and

(ii) The information contained in such report faigresents, in all material respects, the finamgaldition and results of operations of
eBay Inc.

/s/ John J. Donahoe

John J. Donahoe

President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: February 5, 2015

The foregoing certification is being furnished $pleursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and is noighéled as part of this report.



Exhibit 32.02

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER,
AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002.

I, Robert H. Swan, hereby certify pursuant to 18.0. Section 1350 adopted pursuant to Section B dBarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that:

(i) The accompanying annual report on Form 10-Ktli@ryear ended December 31, 2014 fully compliéb thie requirements of
Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securitiesiaxge Act of 1934, as amended; and

(ii) The information contained in such report fpigresents, in all material respects, the finammialdition and results of operations of
eBay Inc.

/s/ Robert H. Swan

Robert H. Swan

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Date: February 5, 2015

The foregoing certification is being furnished $pleursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and is noighfled as part of this report.



